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FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR-GENERAL

b e R =

The 2003/04 Annual Report of the National Treasury is presented at a
time when the country celebrates ten years of democracy and reflects
on the significant social and economic reforms that have guided
transformation.

Government had to meet the challenge of steering an economy
characterised by high inflation, massive public debt and a huge budget
deficit, and one that serviced a fragmented governance structure, into
an economy that could bring macroeconomic stability and sustainable
growth and development. This required a complete overhaul in the way
the economy had to be managed. The social reconstruction agenda was
paramount. Guided by the principles of the Reconstruction and
Development Programme, the reprioritisation of expenditure was a key
focus of government budgeting. Social change and development has to
be achieved and had to be sustainable.

While not at the projected levels, our economy continued to grow and
employment showed a slight increase at 1,6 per cent. We also saw
robust growth in investment in physical and human capital. The rand
continued to appreciate in 2002 and 2003 following trends that saw it
emerge from extremely weak levels at the end of 2001.

Inflation remained within the target range of three to six per cent over
the past year and lower interest rates improved growth prospects. The
past financial year also saw a more expansionary fiscal stance, with
strong growth in social spending and infrastructure investment. Our
public sector borrowing requirement has increased. This is as a result
of the expansionary fiscal stance and increasing capital expenditure by
non-financial public entities.

This Annual Report reflects the activities of the National Treasury
against the backdrop of our economic performance, fiscal and financial
management. We report on key programmes of the National Treasury,
including the extension of amnesty for undeclared foreign assets
providing relief for the failure to disclose foreign assets in terms of
Exchange Control and tax. We also introduced the Mineral and
Petroleum Royalty Bill currently being revised to accommodate public
comments.

Our international programme continues to strengthen South Africa's

i rteme
B

Lesetja Kganyago
Director-General:
National Treasury

Maria Ramos
Former Director-General:
National Treasury

economic relations across the world and especially on the continent. The National
Treasury has been involved in providing technical support for the creation of the African
Peer Review Mechanism and also hosted a successful conference of African Finance
Ministers in March 2004 to discuss issues of voice and representation of African countries

in the Bretton Woods Institutions.

At the end of 2003, we bid farewell to our former Director-General, Maria Ramos, who
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was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of Transnet. We wish her well in her new
endeavour and express our sincere gratitude for her able leadership and pioneering role
at the helm of the National Treasury.

A7

Lesetja Kganyago
Director-General: National Treasury
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THE MINISTRY

W
As Finance Minister and Executive Authority responsible for the
National Treasury since 1996, Minister Trevor Manuel has provided
consistent leadership and direction to the National Treasury. Under his
guidance, the macroeconomic policies endorsed by Cabinet and
implemented by the National Treasury have brought certainty and
stability to the South African economy. His ability to work closely with
all social partners has helped to develop confidence in this
Government's ability to deliver on its macroeconomic objectives. These
objectives are to reduce poverty and vulnerability through sustained
delivery of social services, while investing in the productive capacity of
our people. Moreover, to meet the country's developmental needs, the
Ministry continues to integrate the activities of Government, business,
labour and civil society.

For the period under review, Minister Manuel was ably supported by
Deputy Minister Mandisi Mpahlwa. We need to thank him for his

leadership and congratulate him on his recent appointment as Minister Trevor A Manuel, MP
of Trade and Industry. Welcome to Jabu Moleketi, our new Deputy Minister of Finance

Minister of Finance, who brings a wealth of experience from the

Gauteng Executive Council. We also need to acknowledge the services

of the previous Director-General, Maria Ramos, who left the Treasury in November 2003.
Her legacy will remain with the Treasury for many years.

The National Treasury can be measured not only by the vision and drive of its leadership,
but also by the high calibre of its staff. One can confidently state that the Treasury has
become an employer of choice, attracting good quality personnel. Loyalty, commitment,
hard work and team spirit are the foundation blocks upon which the National Treasury
has been built.

Working in the Ministry of Finance is highly pressurised. A core team of dedicated and
committed individuals ensures that the Minister's and Deputy Minister's operational
needs are met, that information is managed to ensure timely decision making and that
they are able to fulfill their obligations to Cabinet and Parliament.

Globalisation offers many opportunities and challenges, especially for the developing
world. In representing South Africa, Minister Manuel plays an active role in various
multinational fora such as the International Monetary Fund and the World Bank, the
African Development Bank, Commonwealth Finance Ministers Meetings and theUnited
Nations. Since November 2001, Minister Manuel has occupied the Chair of the
Development Committee, a policy-making committee of the World Bank, where he
champions the views of emerging economies. Last year, Cabinet agreed to extend his
tenure as Chair of the Development Committee for a second term. More recently,
Minister Manuel has been appointed to serve on the Africa Commission, a United
Kingdom initiative on African development.
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International visits undertaken by the Minister of Finance during the 2003/04

financial year

9 - 18 April 2003

30 May - 4 June 2003

1 - 3 August 2003

6 - 7 August 2003

12 - 18 August 2003

18 - 25 September 2003

24 - 30 October 2003

7 - 10 March 2004

Washington, New York and Boston, USA, to attend the
Spring Meetings of the IMF and World Bank; an
Economic and Social Council Meeting (United Nations)
and to address a seminar at the Kennedy School of
Government.

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, to attend the Annual Meetings of
the African Development Bank and the Africa Group |
Constituency Meeting.

Kampala, Uganda, to attend an Africa Group 1
Constituency Meeting.

Gaberone, Botswana, to attend a South African
Development Committee on Finance Ministers' Meeting.

Brasilia and Rio de Janeiro, Brazil, to meet with his
counterpart and other Ministers in the new Brazilian
Government.

Dubai, United Arab Emirates, to attend the Annual
Meetings of the World Bank and the IMF.

Morelia, Mexico, and Washington and New York in the
USA, to attend the G20 Ministerial Meeting, a special
session of the Big Table in Washington and a High Level
Dialogue on Financing for Development in New York.

London and Oxford, United Kingdom, to meet with
Chancellor Gordon Brown and deliver an inaugural
lecture.



International visits undertaken by the Deputy Minister of Finance
during the 2003/04 financial year

30 May - 3 June 2003

27 - 29 August 2003

30 August - 5 September 2003

5 - 25 September 2003

24 - 30 October 2003

14 - 20 December 2003

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, to attend
meetings of the  Economic
Commission for Africa and African
Development Bank.

Entebbe, Uganda, to attend the
Eastern and Southern Africa Anti-
Money Laundering Group Meeting.

Kuala Lumpur and Bangkok, a state
visit with President Thabo Mbeki to
Malaysia, and to attend a business
meeting with the community of
Thailand.

Brunei and Dubai, to attend the
Commonwealth Finance Ministers'
Meeting and IMF/World Bank Annual
Meetings.

Sao Paulo, Brazil, to attend the XII
Socialist International Congress with
the President.

Marrakech, Morocco, and London, to
attend the Cooperation Conference of
the G77 (Head of Delegation).

rirtrirereee
i R =

Jabu Moleketi

Deputy Minister of Finance

Mandisi Mpahlwa
Former Deputy
Minister of Finance
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National Treasury

VISION

The National Treasury is the custodian of the nation's financial resources. We hold
ourselves accountable to the nation to discharge our responsibilities professionally and
with humility, and with the aim of promoting growth and prosperity for all.

We aspire to excellence in the quality of our analysis, our advice and the execution of our
financial management responsibilities. We aim to realise the full potential of South
Africa's economy and people and to mobilise the resources of the state, business
enterprises and the wider community in a partnership of trust and mutual respect.

MISSION AND OBJECTIVES

The National Treasury aims to promote economic development, good governance, social
progress and rising living standards through accountable, economic, efficient, equitable
and sustainable management of South Africa's public finances.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, broad-based empowerment, progressive
realisation of human rights and the elimination of poverty. We are responsible for
preparing a sound and sustainable national Budget and an equitable division of resources
between the three spheres of government.

We strive to raise fiscal resources equitably and efficiently and to manage Government's
financial assets and liabilities soundly.

We promote transparency and effective financial management.

VALUES

As custodians of the nation's financial resources, the National Treasury acknowledges the
authority of Parliament through whom we are accountable to the nation.

We value teamwork, sound planning and enthusiasm and strive continually to improve
the quality, accuracy and reliability of our service delivery.

Our people are our most valued assets. We seek to be an employer of choice, we invest
in the education and training of our staff, we cultivate a learning and consultative
environment, we make use of the best available technological support and we aim to
mobilise the full potential of our people.

In our dealings with the public and with our colleagues we act transparently and with
integrity, showing respect and demonstrating fairness and objectivity.

In achieving these things, we will honour the faith that the South African public has
placed in us.
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National Treasury

MINISTER'S STATEMENT ON POLICY AND COMMITMENT

2004 is the year momentous in the history of South Africa. This is our tenth year of
democratic rule and an appropriate opportunity to reflect on our past achievements and
confront the challenges that lie ahead. As in 1994 and 1999, the 2004 election results
confirm the overwhelming support and confidence of the electorate in this Government's
ability to create a better life for all its citizens.

How the National Treasury manages our public finances is extremely important in our
fight to reduce the levels of poverty and vulnerability. Moreover, the responsibility rests
with Government to ensure that our public spending is both affordable and sustainable.
This Government has therefore not shied away from making difficult policy choices and
tough decisions. Since 1994, successive budgets have progressively extended the
resource envelope devoted to services in poor communities. Spending on education,
training and skills development is a priority and a necessary precondition for addressing
inequality and divisions within our society. Furthermore, our poverty reduction strategy
includes the promotion of work opportunities, creating sustainable communities and
consolidating our social security system. We have delivered and will continue to deliver
affordable housing, access to water and sanitation, health care services and electricity to
the most marginalised sectors of our society.

From a macroeconomic perspective, reduced inflation and lower interest rates; well-
diversified financial markets; a gradual relaxation of exchange controls; reduced debt
service costs; tax incentives to stimulate investment; healthy public finances; and a
favourable environment for trade and industrial development, are established features of
the South African economy. Having laid these secure foundations, a more expansionary
fiscal policy stance was adopted in 2001. Alongside this, the emphasis in economic policy
has shifted to microeconomic and logistical reforms, encapsulated in the Microeconomic
Reform Strategy, that underpin improved industrial performance and market
development. For the decade ahead, an accelerated pace of growth and development must
be achieved if we are to overcome the divisions between the "two economies” that coexist
in our developing nation.

Over the past decade, we have witnessed the maturing of our intergovernmental fiscal
system. The largest allocation of our nation's resources is channelled through the budgets
of provincial and local government. We are, therefore, mindful of the need for continued
capacity building in respect of human resources and systems to ensure that funds are
properly spent. The staggered implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act
(56 for 2003), which commences in 2004, will create uniformity, improve financial
management and ensure greater public accountability for funds appropriated at municipal
and town-council level. The challenge ahead is to ensure that Government's objective of
extending basic services to historically unserved communities is achieved.

Since 1994, South Africa has taken up its rightful place in the global community.
Globalisation offers many opportunities and challenges for emerging economies. We are
active participants in internal fora such as the World Bank, International Monetary Fund,
United Nations and the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development. Many
of the policies and initiatives adopted by our Government are in line with the Monterrey
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consensus, building African unity through the New Partnership for Africa's Development
and achieving the objectives of the Millennium Development Goals. South Africa
occupies significant positions in these international fora and we will use our influence to
enhance the voice and representation of developing countries in these fora over the next
five years.

In terms of public accountability, the role of Parliament and civil society in overseeing
government policy, monitoring spending and measuring public service delivery is
important. The inclusion of measurable objectives in this year's ‘Estimates of National
Expenditure’, multi-year budgeting and improved financial reporting as required by the
Public Finance Management Act, have provided Parliament with the relevant information
to exercise its oversight role and hold the Executive to account.

At

Trevor A'Manuel, MP
Minister of Finance
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National Treasury

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE

The National Treasury has a legislative mandate to promote the national Government's
fiscal policy framework and the coordination of macroeconomic policy; to coordinate
intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations; manage the Budget preparation process;
and to promote and enforce transparency and effective management in respect of revenue
and expenditure; assets and liabilities; public entities; and constitutional institutions.

Parliamentary Services

The Minister of Finance, as a Member of Parliament, places a high premium on the
Ministry's interaction with Parliament. The Ministry ensures active collaboration with
members of Parliament and with the parliamentary committees on an ongoing basis. Key
to this objective is the Parliamentary Office located in the Ministry.

Parliamentary Services has to foster a transparent and cooperative working environment
with Parliament. It is the representative office of the Minister of Finance at Parliament
and the vehicle through which financial policies and legislation are presented to
Parliament for consideration and approval.

The Parliamentary Office facilitates the flow of information from the National Treasury
via Cabinet to Parliament. It serves a liaison role by ensuring that parliamentary decisions
are forwarded to the National Treasury and, in this way, policy drafters are kept abreast
of the views of public representatives. The Parliamentary Office is essentially a service
provider to the Minister of Finance, the three departments under his executive authority
(the National Treasury, the South African Revenue Service and Statistics SA) and the two
chairpersons of the respective Finance Committees in Parliament.

The key functions of Parliamentary Services include:

I Keeping the Minister informed of his parliamentary commitments;

I Ensuring that presentations and speeches are prepared,;

I Accompanying the Minister and his senior officials to meetings and parliamentary
sittings;
Liaising with political parliamentary structures, for example, the Chief Whip's Office
and the Office of the Leader of Government Business on behalf of the Minister;

I Providing the Minister with parliamentary procedural support;

| Facilitating the drafting of answers to questions posed to the Minister for submission
to Parliament;
Advising the parliamentary committee chairpersons on the legislative programme;
and
Ensuring that legislation is placed on the committee agenda timeously and that senior
officials brief the committee to facilitate meaningful deliberations on legislation,
policy documents and areas of economic interest that the committee wishes to focus
on.

10
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The National Treasury tables legislation, which can be categorised as follows, in
Parliament annually:

Legislation conceptualised and prepared in-house;

Legislation prepared by such regulatory bodies as the Financial Services Board and
the South African Reserve Bank, with National Treasury providing policy direction;
and

Tax legislation prepared jointly with the South African Revenue Services. The
National Treasury provides policy direction.

The following is a list of legislation tabled in Parliament during the 2003/2004 financial
year:

1.

Pensions (Supplementary) Act, (8 of 2003)
Introduced as Pensions (Supplementary) Bill [B11-2003]
Assented to on 23 April and published in the Gazette on 30 April 2003

Exchange Control Amnesty and Amendment of Taxation Laws Act, (12 of
2003)

Introduced as Exchange Control Amnesty and Amendment of Taxation Laws Bill
[B26-2003]

Assented to on 30 May and published in the Gazette on 31 May 2003

Bophuthatswana National Provident Fund Act Repeal Act, (13 of 2003)
Introduced as Bophuthatswana National Provident Fund Act Repeal Bill [B13-2003]
Assented to on 14 June and published in the Gazette on 18 June 2003

Sefalana Employee Benefits Organisation Act Repeal Act, (14 of 2003)
Introduced as Sefalana Employee Benefits Organisation Act Repeal Bill [B14-2003]
Assented to on 14 June and published in the Gazette on 18 June 2003

Insurance Amendment Act, (17 of 2003)
Introduced as Insurance Amendment Bill [B52-2003]
Assented to on 16 July and published in the Gazette on 23 July 2003

Appropriation Act, (18 of 2003)
Introduced as Appropriation Bill [B8-2003]
Assented to on 16 July and published in the Gazette on 23 July 2003

Banks Amendment Act, (19 of 2003)
Introduced as Banks Amendment Bill [B15-2003]
Assented to on 30 July and published in the Gazette on 5 August 2003

Special Pensions Amendment Act, (21 of 2003)
Introduced as Special Pensions Amendment Bill [B35-2002]
Assented to on 1 October and published in the Gazette on 7 October 2003

i}
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National Treasury

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Financial and Fiscal Commission Amendment Act, (25 of 2003)
Introduced as Financial and Fiscal Commission Amendment Bill [B21-2003]
Assented to on 12 October and published in the Gazette on 17 October 2003

Special Pensions Second Amendment Act (30 of 2003)
Introduced as Special Pensions Second Amendment Bill [B3-2003]
Assented to on 7 November and published in the Gazette on 12 November 2003

Government Employees Pension Law Amendment Act, (35 of 2003)
Introduced as Government Employees Pension Law Amendment Bill [B45-2003]
Assented to on 7 November and published in the Gazette on 12 November 2003

Adjustments Appropriation Act, (37 of 2003)
Introduced as Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B69-2003]
Assented to on 4 December and published in the Gazette on 8 December 2003

Pensions Second (Supplementary) Act, (39 of 2003)
Introduced as Pensions Second (Supplementary) Bill [B59-2003]
Assented to on 10 December and published in the Gazette on 15 December 2003

Revenue Laws Amendment Act, (45 of 2003)
Introduced as Revenue Laws Amendment Bill [B72-2003]
Assented to on 17 December and published in the Gazette on 20 December 2003

Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, (56 of 2003)
Introduced as Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Bill [B1-2002]
Assented to on 9 February and published in the Gazette on 13 February 2004

Drought Relief Adjustments Appropriation Act, (4 of 2004)
Introduced as Drought Relief Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B5-2004]
Assented to on 30 March and published in the Gazette on 31 March 2004

Division of Revenue Act, (12 of 2004)
Introduced as Division of Revenue Bill [B4-2004]
Assented to on 30 March and published in the Gazette on 31 March 2004

2]



rirarerTt
BTN

ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S OVERVIEW

M

In preparing this Annual Report, the National Treasury undertook an examination of
service delivery results for the period covered by its Strategic Plan for 2003 - 2006 and
by the 2003 “Estimates of National Expenditure’. This section provides an overview of
the key challenges that the Treasury set for itself in the 2003 Strategic Plan and highlights
its major achievements.

The Annual Report fulfils three objectives. Firstly, it provides an account of our
achievements in line with the measurable objectives and output targets set out in the
Strategic Plan. Secondly, it shows, through the audited financial statements, how
resources appropriated by Parliament appropriated for the 2003/04 financial year have
been utilised in support of the Treasury's legislative mandate. Finally, it provides an
account of the challenges that are likely to impact on future plans and resource
allocations.

As an ongoing objective, the National Treasury has committed itself to fiscal and
budgetary reform aimed at promoting sustainable growth and development, reducing
poverty, enhancing budgetary transparency and improving financial management. The
formulation of a three-year budget framework — the Medium-Term Expenditure
Framework (MTEF) introduced in 1998 — and the introduction of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) in 2000, provided a firm foundation for the objectives set for
2003. Critical to budget and fiscal reforms have been the alignment of policy priorities,
departmental plans and available resources. Through ongoing advice and support to
departments and agencies, the overall quality of budgeting and financial management
improved. In particular, improvements to measurable objectives of spending programmes
have supported better allocation decisions and added to the coverage of service delivery
commitments tabled by departments in the ‘Estimates of National Expenditure’, thereby
aiding Parliament in its oversight role.

Improved transparency and comprehensiveness of budgets for national and provincial
departments took a further step forward with the finalisation of the ‘“New Economic
Reporting Format and Standard Chart of Accounts’ at the end of March 2003. Through
the collaborative efforts of the Accountant-General and the Budget Office, the new format
was implemented successfully in the 2004 Budget.

Significant progress has been made in public sector financial management and
accounting. A key objective set for the 2003/04 financial year was the implementation of
improved formats for financial reporting by national and provincial government and the
migration towards Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP). This was
finalised at the end of March 2004 together with enhancements in accounting policies.

The publication of the 2003 ‘Intergovernmental Fiscal Review’ once again provides a
consolidated overview of provincial and local funding of basic and social service
delivery. The Review shows that provincial budgets reflect a strong alignment with
national priorities and a commitment to sustainable service delivery. The enactment of the
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) in the first half of 2004 provides the legal
basis for modernising budgeting and financial management, and forms an integral part of
the broader local government reform agenda.

2]
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The provision of services in Government will benefit from the promulgation of the
‘Supply Chain Management Framework’ in December 2003. In line with provisions in
the PFMA and MFMA, responsibility and accountability for the procurement of goods
and services will progressively be devolved to accounting officers.

Our ability to increase overall public spending over the past decade is largely the benefit
of having put in place the correct macroeconomic fundamentals. In 2003, a total of R105
billion in additional resources was added to baseline budgets in support of new spending
priorities. While increases in expenditure have largely funded the rapid expansion in
social spending, budget policy will focus increasingly on infrastructure investment and
human resources development. Ensuring the correct balance in budget policy also
includes strengthening the macro-micro linkages in the South African economy. In this
regard, greater attention has been focused on studying the microeconomic constraints in
our economy that hamper growth, and collaborating with other departments in reviewing
utilities and their price-setting mechanisms in the economy, given their impact on the
general price level.

The Strategic Plan that covered the 2003/04 financial year identified efficient public
sector debt management as a priority for the National Treasury. A key objective of our
debt management strategy is to ensure that Government's budget deficit is financed at the
lowest possible cost and risk levels, which means borrowing in domestic and foreign
markets, ensuring continued access to both markets and enhancing their liquidity through
the issue of tradable instruments. The revised net borrowing requirement for 2003/04 of
R36,5 billion was successfully financed through the issuance of domestic short-term and
long-term loans, foreign loans and changes in cash and other balances.

The finalisation of the restructuring process and absorption of staff into the new structure
of the National Treasury was the key focus of the human resources management strategy
for 2003/04. Complementing the new structure were the development and
implementation of new performance management and personnel development systems,
which entailed finalising performance agreements and the ongoing evaluation and
training of staff at all levels.

As an institution tasked by the PFMA with the responsibility for financial and fiscal
matters, the National Treasury is in a much stronger position to tackle the strategic
objectives that it has set for itself over the next five years. These include, among others:
the promotion of sustainable growth and work opportunities; the optimal allocation and
utilisation of resources; and maintaining of macroeconomic stability.

The National Treasury Annual Report for 2003/04 gives a detailed account of the
progress we have made towards achieving our measurable objectives and output targets.
More importantly, this Annual Report allows us to reflect on our past performance with
a view to improving our contribution towards our objectives.

14
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ADMINISTRATION

Purpose: To provide strategic management and administrative support to the National
Treasury, giving political and managerial leadership to the work of the Department.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to provide an effective management and
administrative support service to the core business divisions within National Treasury
through continuous refinement of organisational policy and procedures in line with the
requirements of the public service, and to ensure compliance with applicable legislation
and appropriate best practices.

The programme is divided into four subprogrammes:

The Ministry provides for the Ministerial Office of the Ministry of Finance and
includes the Office of the Minister and parliamentary and ministerial support
Services.

The Deputy Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the Deputy Minister
of Finance and related support services.

The Management subprogramme provides for the Office of the Director-General and
related support services.

Corporate Services supports the administration and smooth running of the
Department.

The Corporate Services division manages the Administration programme. The division is
responsible for financial management and administration within the National Treasury
and aims to create a productive and creative working environment that enhances
departmental efficiency.

The division consists of four units (Human Resources Management; Financial
Management; Legal Services; and Communications and Information Technology) that
provide the backbone support-service operations to the core business of the National
Treasury.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Financial Management unit (comprising Financial Administration and Procurement)
is focused on maximising compliance with all relevant financial statutes and regulations,
the most important of which is the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA),
and providing excellent service to its customers, both internally and externally. The
Department has again received an unqualified audit report for the 2004 financial year.
Further information on this unit's work is detailed in the Management Report.

Procurement Reform — On 10 September 2003, Cabinet approved the adoption of the
'Policy to Guide Uniformity in Procurement Reform Processes in Government' that sets
out the direction that Government is moving towards in the implementation of supply
chain management. Accounting officers are required to establish and implement a supply
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chain management function, located within the Chief Financial Officer's structure, to
promote sound financial management and uniformity. The ‘Regulatory Framework for
Supply Chain Management” was promulgated on 5 December 2003. This Framework
serves as a formal requirement to accounting officers to ensure the implementation of the
supply chain management process as an integral part of their financial systems and to
develop and implement an effective and efficient supply chain management system.

As one of the pilot departments for the new procurement framework, the National
Treasury has already made progress in this area. The Department's procurement function
is located within the Chief Financial Officer's structure. The ‘Accounting Officer's
Procurement Procedures’ have been developed and implemented and contain
departmental procurement procedures. An established Accredited Procurement unit is in
operation, and the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and Regulations have
been fully implemented.

The Department initiated processes to review its current procurement policies and
procedures to ensure alignment with the Regulatory Framework.

Information Technology — The restructuring of the unit has proved to be very successful,
with valuable input obtained from all stakeholders. As a result, the Information
Technology unit aligned itself with the strategic direction of the National Treasury and
placed strong emphasis on service delivery to all clients. A more efficient organisational
structure for the unit has been drafted and is in the process of being finalised. The new
structure will ensure that the best services are delivered to clients, both internally and
externally, when and where required.

In-house applications have been developed that have proved to assist National Treasury
staff members in automating daily tasks. The establishment of several websites for
components within the National Treasury has been completed with great success.

Up-times have been maximised through the use of effective anti-virus strategies, which
have prevailed through several virus attacks. System disaster recovery has also been put
to the test, resulting in minimal disruptions for the user base.

A new and improved service desk is being established that will improve response times
to IT enquiries. It is envisaged that the service desk will be expanded to include all
elements of corporate service functions.

Communications — The Communications unit provides a strong media liaison service to
the Ministry and the Department and manages the flow of information to both internal
and external stakeholders. In doing so, the unit aims to keep the public informed about
the work of the National Treasury by strategically managing the media profile of the
Ministry and the Department. The Communications unit structure has been rolled out,
with positions filled in resource and information management; project and events
management; and internal communications. Major media events include the National
Budget tabled in Parliament, the Medium-Term Budget Policy Statement, and the annual
meetings of the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and the World Bank. The unit
participates actively in various intergovernmental communications fora.
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Security and Facilities Management — During the 2003/04 financial year, the Security and
Facilities Management unit was faced with various challenges from both internal and
external working environments. All prescripts and standards set by national institutions
such as the National Intelligence Agency (NIA), the South African Police Service (SAPS)
and the South African National Archives, were enforced. Security systems
accommodating the security challenges of an open plan office environment and meeting
the security standards of the NIA and the SAPS were designed and implemented. An open
plan office environment yields a number of benefits, such as information flow
improvement, faster service delivery and teamwork, but it poses a range of security
challenges. From a security perspective, an open plan office environment is viewed as a
security breach. Among others, it increases vulnerability of property and information.

Some of the activities of the Security and Facilities Management unit included:

Installation of an electronic security system

During 2002 and 2003, an advanced electronic security system that consists of access
control, asset control and surveillance camera systems, was installed. This assisted in
monitoring and securing both buildings occupied by the National Treasury and their
surrounds.

Security clearances for employees within the National Treasury

Employees who should be vetted, as well as their level of security clearance, were
identified. These employees completed security clearance forms, which were
forwarded to the NIA. Considerable progress was made in complying with the
‘Minimum Information Security Standards Policy’.

Legal Services is tasked with the responsibility of providing a comprehensive and diverse
legal support service to the Minister, Deputy Minister and the National Treasury. These
services include the provision of legal support in respect of a wide range of corporate law
issues, drafting and amendments of legislation, as well as management of litigation
brought by and against the Minister. Some of the services included:

Providing legal advice on international bond issues, such as liaising with
international attorneys on the Security Exchange Commission (New York).

I Providing legal service on the RSA Retail Bond launched in 2004.

I Providing legal advice on money market issues (dematerialisation of money markets)
and primary dealer matters.
Providing legal advice on a number of agreements, including the agreement between
the Reserve Bank, the Corporation for Public Deposits (CPD), the provinces and the
National Treasury on opening an investment account with the CPD and the use of the
central banking system operated by the Reserve Bank. This primarily gives the
provinces an opportunity to invest with the CPD.
Providing legal advice and drafting the necessary Executive Acts of the President on
the assignment of the Transkei Development Reserve Fund Act (3 of 1964) to the
Province of the Eastern Cape under item 14 of Schedule 6 to the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa Act (108 of 1996).
Providing comments on a number of Bills introduced in Parliament.
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Successfully presenting to the National Council of Provinces (NCOP) the Financial
and Fiscal Commission Amendment Act (25 of 2003) that clarifies the role of the
Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC) when functions or powers are transferred or
assigned between spheres of government.

The past year saw the litigation section extremely active in a variety of cases. All the
court challenges handled by the component were defended successfully or settled out
of court in the best interest of the Government. The most notable were:

»  Ecaar and Another / President of the Republic of South Africa and Another

»  Primavera Construction / Government of the Republic of South Africa

Human Resources Management — An important element of the National Treasury
organisational environment was the appointment of a new Director-General and three
new Deputy Directors-General. The new Director-General has an opportunity to build on
the foundation of a strong National Treasury team and to build a management team that
will take the Department into the next decade.

With the major restructuring of the National Treasury completed in 2003/04, Human
Resources continued to roll out the filling of the vacant posts throughout the organisation.

The National Treasury's Human Resources Management team values teamwork, sound
planning and enthusiasm and always strives to improve performance. Respect for and
investment in our staff is an important part of our values.

In 2003/04, considerable effort went into developing and implementing improved human
resources processes, procedures and systems. Key among these was the implementation
of new performance management and personal development systems, ensuring that all
employees have performance agreements and that further training and development are
provided at all levels. The recruitment, selection and placement function made sure that
critical core skills for the National Treasury were attracted to the Department.

The financial year 2003/04 was also marked by the implementation of the ‘Education,
Training and Development Strategy’ to enhance employees' skills at all levels. That
included the implementation of mandatory programmes, including leadership;
management and supervisory development programmes; and a capacity-building
internship programme.

Over the next five years, the Human Resources Management unit intends developing and
implementing a customer charter aimed at improving the unit's performance and service
delivery by further fine-tuning procedures, processes and systems. This will also include
benchmarking exercises to ensure that the human resources function keeps abreast with
the latest developments and international best practices in the human resources field.
Legislative compliance with the requirements of all relevant legislation continues to be
the main focus of this unit.
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PROGRAMME 2

ECONOMIC PLANNING AND BUDGET MANAGEMENT

Purpose: To provide for professional advice and support to the Minister of Finance on
economic and fiscal policy, international financial relations, financial regulation, tax
policy, intergovernmental financial relations, public finance development and the
management of the annual budget process.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to ensure sound economic, fiscal, financial
and tax policies; an equitable division of revenue between the national, provincial and
local spheres of government; and coherent and well-balanced departmental plans and
budgets.

These functions are organised into four separate subprogrammes:

Public Finance is responsible for economic and financial advice on social, economic,
administrative and protection services, and for the Treasury's relations with other
national departments. A Technical Assistance Unit, co-funded by the European
Union, supplements these activities through project management and capacity-
building support for reconstruction and development projects.

The Budget Office provides fiscal policy advice; oversees the national budget
process; coordinates international technical assistance and donor finance; supports
public-private partnerships (PPPs); and compiles the public finance statistics.

Intergovernmental Relations coordinates fiscal relations between national, provincial
and local government and promotes sound provincial and municipal financial
management.

Economic Policy is responsible for macroeconomic analysis and policy advice; the
management of international financial relations; tax policy analysis; and financial
sector policy advice. The division also coordinates its activities with the Reserve
Bank on the supervision and regulations of banking and exchange control, the
Financial Services Board (FSB) in relation to non-banking financial services, and the
Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC) in relation to anti-money-laundering measures
and combating the financing of terrorism.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Budget Office

Fiscal Policy plays a leading role in monitoring economic and fiscal trends and advising
the Minister of Finance on fiscal policy options and the budget framework.

Much of the unit's work is focused on the annual 'Budget Review', the 'Medium-Term
Budget Policy Statement' and inputs to the deliberations of the Ministers' Committee on
the Budget. In 2003/04, the section's staff complement was seven, including units
responsible for infrastructure finance, public service personnel finance and fiscal
analysis.
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Policy advice and analysis over the past year focused on the following:

Public service remuneration issues, including options for extending medical scheme
membership, pay progression and personnel mobility;
Capital spending plans of government departments, provinces and public entities;
and improved budgeting and planning processes for infrastructure investment and
maintenance;

I Fiscal sustainability, debt finance and budget deficit trends; and

I The contribution of fiscal policy and the budget to economic growth and
development.

The Fiscal Policy team is extensively involved in interdepartmental budgetary and policy
consultation, including support for the Department of Public Service and Administration
(DPSA) relating to public service wage bargaining issues, liaison with the Department of
Trade and Industry on critical infrastructure planning and budgeting, and participation in
the National Economic Development and Labour Council (NEDLAC) Public Finance
Chamber.

For the year ahead, infrastructure investment and improved coordination between
economic and fiscal policy reforms will remain priority focus areas.

The Medium-Term Expenditure Planning team comprised 11 staff members in 2003/04.
Much of the team's work is focused on the coordination of the budget process that
culminates in the Medium-Term Expenditure Committee's review of departmental budget
submissions and preparation of the annual 'Estimates of National Expenditure'.

Key activities over the past year included:

Support for national departments' refinement of “measurable objectives” to
accompany expenditure estimates for the main subdivisions of parliamentary
appropriations;

Further improvements in the ‘Treasury Guidelines’ to departments for preparing
budget submissions and published budget documents;

Participation in a workgroup on Performance Information, formed to prepare a
framework to guide performance reporting across Government, and including the
National Treasury, the Auditor-General and the DPSA;

Collaboration with the Presidency and other central administration departments in
developing an approach to medium-term strategic planning, and improved
monitoring and evaluation of public service delivery; and

Compilation of policy options and spending reviews to assist the Ministers'
Committee on the Budget in its assessment of medium-term expenditure priorities.

South Africa's approach to expenditure planning and budget coordination has attracted
considerable international interest. In 2003/04, consultations on budget reform issues
were held with visitors from Zimbabwe, Pakistan and the Republic of China, and the
Expenditure Planning team participated in a conference in Mozambique on the Medium-
Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF). A conference on budget reforms and expenditure
planning will be held in 2004 with a view to sharing experience with other African
countries and international experts, and exploring opportunities for further collaboration.
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The International Development Cooperation (IDC) unit, is responsible for the
establishment of an effective and efficient policy framework and management system to
deal with Official Development Assistance (ODA) to South Africa. Its work is focused
primarily on ensuring ODA, which totals around R2 billion per annum.

IDC has embarked on an extensive ODA management improvement programme,
comprising the following core initiatives:

The development of a policy framework and procedural guidelines for the
management of ODA to South Africa. The guidelines have been approved by
Cabinet and form the basis for ODA management in South Africa.

Enhanced ODA coordination, both at macro and implementing-agency level.
Networks of coordination, driven by South African institutions responsible, are being
established.

ODA management capacity building, consisting of both formal training at
implementing-agency level, and strategic engagement around ODA management issues
with core stakeholder groupings (e.g. national and provincial ODA coordinators;
development counsellors; and Chief Financial Officers). All such capacity-building
and strategic engagement processes have been established successfully.

Enhanced ODA information management through the establishment of a central
ODA management information system — the Development Cooperation Information
System (DCIS). This is a key initiative in support of enhanced South African ODA
ownership, accountability and transparency. The DCIS is now operational and can
be accessed via the National Treasury website, or directly at www.dcis.gov.za.
Further systems development is ongoing.

Enhanced regional/trilateral cooperation. Numerous regional cooperation initiatives,
built on South African development cooperation successes, have been launched.

Contributing to ODA reform in line with internationally agreed policy principles and
strategies, such as the harmonisation and alignment of aid, recipient empowerment
and institutional reform. This has been a central element in IDC's engagement with
its development cooperation partners during the past year.

The Public Finance Statistics team had a staff complement of 11 at the end of 2003/04.
The work of the team focuses mainly on the production of appropriately classified fiscal
data for the publications of Treasury in support of the PFMA and for submission to the
International Monetary Fund (IMF) in terms of international agreements.

The development of the ‘New Economic Reporting Format and Standard Chart of
Accounts’ was completed during 2003/04 and a detailed classification guide was
developed to assist departments in the interpretation of the new classification format. All
national and provincial departments used this this for the preparation of the 2004 Budget,
and the Chart of Accounts, supporting the new budget format, was activated on 1 April
2004. The new format will improve the process of data extraction and the quality of data
available for analysis purposes, and will enhance accountability and consistency in the
financial data produced by departments. It is fully compliant with the Government
Finance Statistics standards set by the IMF.
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The budget accounts currently cover the national and provincial spheres and some public
entities of national departments. The aim is to eventually include data on all the extra
budgetary activities of Government into the budget documentation, thereby improving
transparency and ensuring publication of a full set of accounts for general Government.
In the 2004 Budget, a total of 52 entities were included, representing an 18 per cent
coverage of the accounts of public entities, compared with a target of 10 per cent for
2003/04.

The work of the Public Finance Statistics team is organised into three areas:

National statistics introduced the new economic reporting format, has been a key
focus area during 2003/04. Training was provided to about 1 400 national and
provincial officials and a website was implemented to provide assistance and respond
to classification queries. A classification committee has been established. Progress
has also been made with classification and reporting on departmental revenue.

Provincial statistics maintained a database of provincial finance statistics, providing
source information for the 'Intergovernmental Fiscal Review' and budget-related
publications. Liaison with provincial treasuries and the training of departmental
officials on the new reporting format contributed to its successful implementation in
provincial budgets for 2004/05. A budget analysis tool has been developed to assist
in evaluating and benchmarking provincial department budgets and accounts.

General government statistics made further progress in extending budget coverage
to include public entities and prepare for consolidated general government accounts.
Work over the past year focused on the registration and classification of entities and
support for a joint review of the governance and accounting arrangements of national
non-business entities. An analysis of transfers to public entities has been completed
and social security fund data has been reviewed and converted to cash accounts for
the 2004 'Budget Review'. Following data quality assurance reviews, 52 entities
(including 25 sector education and training authorities) were included in the 2004
'Estimates of National Expenditure’'.

The Public Finance Statistics team is an active participant in the current review of the
governance of public entities, and liaises closely with the South African Reserve Bank
(SARB), Statistics SA, the Auditor-General, the Accountant-General, provincial
treasuries and other branches of the National Treasury on the quality, integrity and
availability of public finance statistics.

The Public-Private Partnership (PPP) unit supports national and provincial
infrastructure and service delivery projects involving long-term commitments and
substantial risk sharing with private parties. The unit oversees compliance with relevant
Treasury Regulations and provides critical technical support to departments that
undertake PPP ventures. This initiative has benefited from USAID and UK Department
for International Development technical support, and from a training and capacity-
building partnership with the National Business Initiative. The PPP unit comprised 14
staff members in March 2004.

A highlight of the past year was the finalisation of the Head Office accommodation
project for the Department of Trade and Industry — a 25-year agreement with the
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Rainprop Consortium that brings the full family of institutions that report to the Minister
of Trade and Industry into an integrated campus with a complete range of associated
services.

Other projects completed, or near completion, included:

I The Chapman's Peak Drive toll road;

I The State Vaccine Institute equity partnership for the Department of Health;

I Information systems for the Department of Labour;

I The Humansdorp District Hospital upgrading and co-location;

I Afive-year fleet management contract for the Eastern Cape Department of Transport;

I The Universitas and Pelonomi Hospitals co-location for the Free State Department
of Health;

I The Cradle of Humankind Interpretation Centre Complex;

I A five-year fleet management contract for the Northern Cape Department of
Transport;

I Head office accommodation for the Department of Education;

I Social grants payments for the Free State province;

I Pharmaceutical management and distribution for the Eastern Cape Health
Department;

I Fleet management services for the Free State province; and

I The Hermanus and Swellendam Hospital co-location projects.

A feasibility study is under way for the Dube Trade Port (airport relocation) in KwaZulu-
Natal. Extensive further work has been done on the design, feasibility and affordability
of the Gauteng rapid rail link project.

The PPP unit combines legal, financial, economic and technical skills in offering a
professional, multidisciplinary service to departments to procure sustainable partnerships
that are affordable to Government, provide value-for-money to the public and are
attractive to the private sector. Responsibilities and activities span policy and regulatory
advice, training and technical assistance. A comprehensive 'PPP Guideline Manual' has
been developed to assist departments throughout the PPP project life-cycle, and
‘Standardised PPP Provisions' were published for use in projects in March 2004,
providing draft text and proposals on a wide range of technical, legal, financial and
administrative aspects of PPP design and documentation.

The PPP unit has introduced a Project Development Facility, providing limited financial
assistance for project preparation costs of approved projects.

As of December 2004 the unit will also assist municipalities that undertake PPPs. Further
efforts will also be devoted to the quality and accessibility of PPP documentation and
guidelines in the years ahead.

Public Finance

The Economic Services team supports the planning and budget management of the
Departments of Agriculture; Land Affairs; Environmental Affairs and Tourism;
Communications; Housing; Minerals and Energy; Transport; Trade and Industry; and

]

(SRPRIXVEVEY)

Annual Report 2003/2004



rrrerieremt

‘N

Water Affairs and Forestry. The team comprises 15 staff members, including an advisor
seconded from the UK Treasury and an Overseas Development Institute fellow.

During the 2003/04 year, policy analysis and advice focused on the following:

The

Spatial policies: Government's housing, transport and infrastructure planning
responsibilities need to be better coordinated. The idea is to improve the conditions
of human settlements across the country by ensuring good linkages between human
settlements and areas of economic activities as a means of creating viable
communities. A social housing policy is now in place. Several PPP housing projects
are also under way. The reconfiguration of the subsidised bus system (through the
revision of escalation factors in bus contracts) resulted in material savings for the
fiscus and opportunities of expansion for subsidised bus services to previously
unserved areas. The Treasury also co-financed a study on Township Housing
Markets, aimed at identifying barriers to realising the full value and potential of
housing assets for township residents.

Restructuring of the Post Bank: With assistance from the Legal unit and the
Financial Regulations unit, progress has been made in drafting a memorandum of
understanding between the Minister of Communications and Minister of Finance for
restructuring the Post Office, putting the Post Bank on a sound financial footing and
establishing appropriate governance arrangements.

Policy evaluation framework: Guidelines and a methodology for analysing and
evaluating policies have been prepared with a view to improving policy review and
planning processes, and supporting the policy-related work of national and
provincial treasuries.

Agricultural Insurance scheme: Comprehensive commentary has been provided to
the Department of Agriculture on a proposed insurance scheme for the agricultural
sector.

Land reform: Recognising the critical importance of land reform and associated
support for emerging farmers, the Treasury commissioned the Human Sciences
Research Council (HSRC) to do an evaluation of the Land Reform for Agricultural
Development Programme (LRAD). Options for improving the implementation of
the Programme and ensuring the sustainability of land reform, taking into account
budgetary and other resource constraints, are under discussion with the Departments
of Agriculture and Land Affairs. Drawing in part on this work, a conditional grant
to underwrite post-settlement support of emerging farmers by provincial agriculture
departments was introduced in the 2004 Budget. Consultation with World Bank
experts also proved helpful, drawing attention, in particular, to the need to remove
barriers to the subdivision of agricultural land and to address distorting features of
the property tax environment.

Economic Services team represents the Treasury at a wide range of interdepartmental

committees and other fora — including the Board of the SA Rail Commuter Corporation,

the

Critical Infrastructure Adjudication Board, the Taxi Recapitalisation Steering

Committee, the Commuter Rail Restructuring Task Team, the Olifants River Dam Project

T? TS TXTT’X}”&Z‘ Steering Committee, the Strategic Industrial Programme Adjudication Board, the Servcon

National Treasury
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Housing Solutions Board, the Affordable Housing Working Group of the Finance Charter,
the National Electricity Advisory Committee, the National Freight Logistics Working
Group, the Agriculture Food Security and Nutrition Task Team and the steering
committees on energy subsidies and on renewable energy of the Department of Minerals
and Energy.

The review of budget proposals and formulation of advice to the Medium-Term
Expenditure Committee and the Ministers' Committee on the Budget remain important
aspects of the team's work. For the 2004/05 year, priority initiatives included the
development of guidelines on budget proposal evaluation and the introduction of a
methodology for "regulatory impact assessments", aimed at reducing the compliance and
administrative burden on small businesses associated with legislation and regulations.

Administrative Services consists of three units that are responsible for central government
departments (including Home Affairs and Foreign Affairs), financial and administrative
departments (including National Treasury and Statistics SA) and the Departments of
Public Works; Provincial and Local Government; and the South African Management
Development Institute (SAMDI). The post of Administrative Services head is vacant and
12 positions are filled, including two intern budget analysts appointed in 2004.

Areas in which the team played a significant role during 2003/04, were:

Foreign Affairs — Feasibility studies to determine financing options for the
acquisition of properties abroad; financing arrangements for the Pan African
Parliament; financing of the NEPAD Secretariat;

Government Communications and Information System (GCIS) — Support for the
establishment of Multi-Purpose Community Centres;

Home Affairs — Working Group to review and oversee implementation of the HANIS
project; review of immigration law and regulations; support for departmental
turnaround strategy;

Provincial and Local Government — Financing protocol for the Urban Renewal and
Integrated Rural Sustainable Development Programme; consolidation of municipal
grants; development of a disaster management and financing protocol;

Public Service and Administration — Review of State Information Technology
Agency (SITA) tariffs; financing of Eastern Cape intervention;

Public Works — Review of accountability and budgeting arrangements for national
and provincial property and related expenditure;

Statistics SA — Technical support relating to the revision of baseline allocations to
accommaodate a sample census in 2006; and

National Treasury — Development of a database of budget and expenditure figures on
the civil and military pensions and medical contributions.

The team has focused its efforts over the past year on improving the monitoring and
reporting on expenditure trends, and supporting the introduction of the new Chart of
Accounts. Assistance has also been provided to departments with trading accounts, or to
those intending to introduce trading accounts as part of their financial management
systems.

7]
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The Administrative Services team is represented on the Immigration Advisory Board; the
Disaster Management Committee; the Urban Renewal and Integrated Sustainable
Development Programme; and various interdepartmental task teams.

The Justice and Protection Services team comprises five units responsible for Justice and
Constitutional Development; Correctional Services; Safety and Security; Defence; the
Independent Complaints Directorate; Secret Services Departments, and the Integrated
Justice Cluster. The team is also responsible for three constitutional institutions (SA
Human Rights Commission, Commission on Gender Equality, Public Protector) and three
public entities (Legal Aid Board, Special Investigating Unit and Armscor). In March
2004, the team comprised 14 staff members, with three budget analyst posts vacant.

The team has been instrumental in guiding and providing technical assistance in key
projects of departments that needed assistance. These included:

I Support for the development of measurable objectives for several departments;

I Planning of a human resource audit across the Integrated Justice Sector;

I A Performance Review of the Criminal Justice System;

I Support for the SAPS' strategy of enhancing crime prevention through visible
policing;
Various initiatives to improve court efficiency, including the building of family
courts and child justice centres and the appointment of maintenance officers and
investigators;
Review and adjustments to the costs estimates of the strategic armaments
procurement programme of the Department of Defence;
The strengthening of the investigating capability of the Independent Complaints
Directorate;
The transfer of the Automated Fingerprint Identification System (AFIS) to a private
party;
The transfer of excess Defence Force personnel to the SAPS Protection and Security
Services Division;
The implementation of the Regulation of Interception of Communication and
Provision of Communication-Related Information;
The development of a policy document on the allocation of funds from the Criminal
Assets Recovery Account;
The development of a plan for the Department of Correctional Services to enable
Medcor to meet the requirements of the Registrar of Medical Schemes by 2006/07;
and
The planning and financing of Correctional Services capital projects, and assessment
of PPP prisons.

The team is represented on the 1JS Development Board, overseeing the activities of the
Integrated Justice Sector (1JS) Programme Office, and coordinates activities of the 1JS
Budget Review team. The team is also represented on departmental budget review
committees where valuable information on budget matters and financial management is
shared. A valuable 1JS seminar was held, providing an opportunity for the exchange of
ideas between researchers and departmental planners. The team led a JCPS cluster
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initiative to build a model to predict detainee numbers and identify practical steps to
reduce overcrowding and IJS blockages. The team also represented the Treasury on a
task team to report on the restructuring of the Office of the Secretary for Defence.

The team held a strategic planning workshop in March 2004. For risk management
purposes, staff rotation was adopted as a strategy to ensure undisturbed support in the
absence of a team member. Several projects were also identified and allocated to project
managers. The team intends to expand its involvement in certain areas to ensure effective
implementation of the PFMA, including devolution of financial responsibility to non-
financial managers and the implementation of the new Standard Chart of Accounts.

The Social Services team comprises four divisions (Education, Arts, Culture, Science and
Technology and Sport; Health; Welfare and Social Security; and Labour) and a senior
management position for intersectoral matters. At the end of 2003/04, 10 posts were
filled. The team also had the support of a US Treasury Resident Advisor and her
secretariat.

A key output area is to ensure appropriate sectoral financing, primarily through the
central government budget, but also through other appropriate mechanisms (such as
dedicated taxes in the case of the Unemployment Insurance Fund, PPPs and the
generation of own, direct revenue.) The activities of the unit support both national and
provincial budget processes.

Key activities during the past year included:

I Support in developing measurable objectives;

I Submissions on social services sectoral priorities;

I Drafting of social service chapters for Treasury reports and policy documents; and

I Intergovernmental fora for education, health and social development, jointly
managed with the Intergovernmental Relations section.

Substantial initiatives during the course of the year included the following:

Education: The Treasury participated extensively in processes around the
implementation and evaluation of the norms and standards for school funding, and
the revision of financing arrangements for higher education. Other activities included
the review of earmarked allocations for restructuring and for the National Student
Financial Aid Scheme; support through the 4x4 process for increased allocation to
school-level, non-personnel recurrent expenditure, which increased strongly in the
2003/04 budgets and beyond; negotiation with education departments relating to
appropriate targets for non-personnel, non-capital spending, partly through Heads of
Education Department Committee (HEDCOM) standing committees; and support
for the transfer of the school nutrition programme to the Department of Education.

Health: The report of the Joint Health and Treasury Task Team charged with
examining treatment options to supplement comprehensive care for HIV and Aids in
the public health sector was completed, leading to the Operational Plan for
Comprehensive HIV and Aids Care, Management and Treatment for South Africa.
Work continued on capital funding in the health sector and funding of hospital
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revitalisation. Proposals around a scarce skills and rural allowance strategy for health
were completed and negotiated extensively with the health sector. There was initial
engagement with the review of tertiary services funding, including assessment of
budget proposals in that regard. Extensive work was done on the financing of
primary care (including environmental health services). Several briefings and
analyses of social health insurance proposals were developed and the unit supported
the work of the international review panel in that regard, as well as processes around
the development of proposals for a medical scheme for civil servants.

Social Development: Modelling of the costs of social grants has again supported
provincial planning and budgeting for grant allocations and increases, and costing of
the extension of the child support grant (building on prior work on demographic and
socio-economic determinants). There were detailed interactions with provinces on
beneficiary trends and financial implications. The unit has also been extensively
involved in the preparation for the establishment of the National Social Development
Agency and various legislative and regulatory aspects of the social security
environment, as well as social welfare services draft legislation.

Labour: Enhancement of management and oversight of Sector Education and
Training Authorities (SETAS) was a priority activity over the past year. The Treasury
also participated in the development of the Child Labour Action Plan and the review
of the National Skills Strategy and contributed to the promotion of Growth and
Development Strategy commitments.

Sport and Recreation: Substantial time was allocated to finalising guarantees and
other Treasury inputs required for the South African bid to host the World Cup in
2010.

Poverty relief allocations: An exhaustive review of the poverty relief allocation was
completed with the purpose of assessing the impact of projects and links to core
departmental functions. That led to the phasing out of the special allocation, with
resources either added to department baselines or included in the municipal
infrastructure grant.

The head of the unit participates in the activities of the FOSAD Social Cluster on behalf
of the Director-General of the National Treasury. The team has also been active in
supporting provincial strategic planning for the social services and standardising budget
structures, and is represented on the boards of the Durban Institute of Technology and of
the National Student Financial Aid Scheme.

A useful strategic planning workshop took place in March 2004, using facilitation support
and incorporating a limited client survey. A range of key projects, largely focused on
Government's critical poverty reduction challenge and the need to improve the quality of
spending in the social services, has been identified for the year ahead.

The Technical Assistance team programme is a joint South Africa/European Union (EU)-
funded initiative, providing project management support to government departments,
agencies or donor-financed programmes, with a particular focus on enhancing social
development and poverty reduction. The Technical Assistance unit has a core staff of
eight, and makes extensive use of technical advisors on a contract basis to support
specific projects.
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The unit's work during the year under review included:

1 Assistance to the Department of Education with the transfer of the primary school
nutrition programme from provincial health departments;

1 Assistance to the Department of Education on the school-building programme
supported by the European Union;

1 Support for the transfer of medico-legal services (mortuaries) from the SAPS to
provincial health departments;

1 Design of an Infrastructure Delivery Management System to strengthen the planning,
tendering, contracting and management of infrastructure investment and
maintenance projects, particularly in provincial public works and related
departments;

1 Assistance to the Department of Health in managing a Southern African
Development Community (SADC) grant-making programme in support of HIVV/Aids
funded by the EU;

I Project management support for urban renewal initiatives overseen by the
Department of Provincial and Local Government and various municipalities.

1 Project management support for provincial health departments, especially in the
Northern Cape;

1 Implementation of a municipal economic development strategy focused on economic
linkages (value-added in tourism or agriculture, for example) reflected in local
Integrated Development Plans;

1 Enhancement of project management capacity and enterprise development in the
GCIS;

1 Consolidation and reform of the governance of public entities;

1 Assistance to Parliament with the design of a capacity-building programme;

1 Assistance with tendering processes and project coordination for the implementation
of the DNA Laboratory of the SAPS; and

1 Capacity building for the Social Housing Foundation.

A new work plan of the Technical Assistance Team Programme (TAT I1), organised into
three focus clusters: social development; crime prevention and justice; and economic
development, has been agreed with the EU for the period beginning June 2004.

Intergovernmental Relations

The Intergovernmental Relations division is responsible for overseeing the development
of the intergovernmental fiscal system and for coordinating fiscal relations between the
national, provincial and local spheres of government. Intergovernmental Relations plays
a key role in managing the intergovernmental fiscal framework; analysing and ensuring
oversight of provincial and local government budgets and intergovernmental grants; and
implementing financial management reforms at the provincial and local level, including
the implementation of the PFMA and MFMA in provinces and municipalities,
respectively. The division comprises three chief directorates: intergovernmental policy
and planning, provincial budget analysis and local government.

The 2004 Budget reflects the continuing evolution of our intergovernmental system. The
division is responsible for preparing the annual Division of Revenue Act, including the
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detailed grant frameworks and three-year allocations for each provincial and local
government grant, by province and municipality.

The 2004 Division of Revenue Act assigns over 60 per cent of non-interest allocations on
the main Budget and takes the form of transfers to provincial and local governments,
placing them at the forefront of social and basic service delivery. The allocations and
transfers to provinces for 2003/04 amounted to R181 billion, and R14,2 billion for local
government. The introduction of new frameworks for the allocation of grants to provinces
and local government in the 2003/04 Budget provided sharper definitions of the purpose
and intended outputs for each grant. That enhanced transparency and it is expected to lead
to further improvements in service delivery.

With regard to the provincial sphere, the division worked closely with provincial
treasuries, which resulted in stable provincial finances, with budget and monthly
reporting systems now deeply rooted. Budget reforms continued, with the development
of uniform sector budgets and strategic plan formats, allowing for more comparability
between provinces and provincial departments in particular. Other improvements
included the development of performance indicators for each sector, and the more
uniform annual reports for each sector. Much of the division's time is taken up in
developing good, constructive working relationships with the nine provincial treasuries
and national departments through the Budget Council, joint MinMECs and many
technical committees, such as the Technical Committee for Finance and the sectoral
technical committees ("4x4s" and "10x10s"). The sectors covered include education,
health, social development, housing, roads, transport and agriculture.

The biggest challenge now facing Government is to extend the reforms already instituted
within provinces to the local sphere. The late passage of the MFMA on 26 November
2003 and the phased implementation from 1 July 2004 will require added focus.

The division has also provided targeted support to municipalities to improve their
financial management capacities and to strengthen the link between policy, planning and
budgets. The quality of provincial budget documents continued to improve with
standardisation of budget formats for each provincial sector. With regard to local
government, the placement of 33 international advisors and over 160 finance-
management graduates from previously disadvantaged communities as interns laid the
basis for future improvements in financial management. The division expanded its
coverage from 37 municipalities in 2002 to 63 municipalities in 2003.

The division is also responsible for monitoring all provincial and local government
budgets, and compiled a database of all such budget information.

The Intergovernmental Relations division is also responsible for publishing the annual
'Intergovernmental Fiscal Review'. However, due to the 2004 elections, it was decided
that the 2004 review would only be published after the elections. The reason for that
decision was to allow for the inclusion of significant changes that might have an effect
on provincial budgets after the elections. The 'Intergovernmental Fiscal Review' provides
a consolidated review of how the nine provinces and 284 municipalities fund the delivery
of social and basic services to communities. The wealth of information it provides is
aimed at promoting better accountability by providing valuable information to the public,
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elected officials, public servants and policy researchers to improve the quality and
delivery of public services.

The division is further responsible for administering Programme 6 — Provincial and Local
Government Transfers. It also monitored provincial compliance with the provisions of the
PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act that relate to fiscal transfers, specifically to
conditional grants administered by the National Treasury.

The division is also responsible for ensuring that sectoral policies affecting provincial and
local spheres of government are affordable and within the boundaries of the fiscal
framework for those two spheres.

Over the next three years, the Intergovernmental team will be undertaking a major review
of the fiscal framework for provincial and local spheres, including a review of the
equitable share formulae and other grants, and sub-national taxation and borrowing
powers. Such a framework will take into account the impact of the shift in the social grant
function, as well as the restructuring of the electricity-distribution industry.

Economic Policy and International Financial Relations

The Economic Policy and International Financial division provides professional advice
and support to the Minister of Finance on a wide range of economic issues spanning
growth; employment; international trade and financial relations; financial market
development and regulation; tax efficiency and equity; and provides a macroeconomic
framework to underpin the Budget.

The Macroeconomic Policy unit continually monitors, models and provides policy input
on the general health of the economy. With the macroeconomic fundamentals in place,
the unit has focused its attention on studying the microeconomic constraints that hamper
growth and identifying solutions to the problem. The unit has, therefore, been extensively
involved in the Economic and Employment Cluster, working with other government
departments for a more integrated approach to economic growth. In particular, the unit
has endeavoured to strengthen the micro-macro links of the South African economy,
ensuring that the stability that has been achieved over the years is not compromised.

In this regard, a number of activities have been undertaken, including the reviewing of
utility prices and attaining a better understanding of price-setting mechanisms in the
microeconomy. The unit led an interdepartmental team to investigate the efficiency of
utilities and their pricing behaviour. Likewise, it participates in an interdepartmental task
team responsible for publishing an administered price index. As a result of this process,
Statistics SA will, for the first time, publish an administered price index before the end of
2004.

The unit was responsible for coordinating the Growth and Development Summit (GDS),
which took place in June 2003. The Summit resulted in closer cooperation between
government, labour and business in taking forward social agreements. The unit
continues to have engagements with NEDLAC constituencies and is facilitating the
implementation of the various elements agreed to during the GDS and the Financial
Sector Summit.
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One of the issues discussed at the Summit was the improvement of the investment climate
while making room for poverty alleviation. To that end, the unit has had extensive
engagements with business and industry regulators around the inflation target and
efficiency improvements.

The implementation and strengthening of the inflation targeting regime remains at the
heart of the unit's work. A major output of this work was the introduction of the
continuous target that was announced by the Minister of Finance in November 2003. The
signing of a Memorandum of Understanding between the National Treasury and the
Reserve Bank in March of 2004, including the establishment of a Macroeconomic
Standing Committee, has further strengthened cooperation in that area.

The unit is also responsible for delivering the macroeconomic framework that informs the
MFEF. The underlying macroeconomic forecasting model has been strengthened. The
modelling work has also been also expanded to examine the distributional effects of
various government policy interventions through the development of a CGE model.
Sectoral models are being developed to strengthen the unit's understanding of the
microeconomy.

Activities undertaken in the year under review, included the following:

1 A Savings Workshop to inform policy going forward:;

1 An audit of implementation of post-1994 labour legislation;

1 Areview of mark-ups in the South African manufacturing sector;

1 An update of internal macroeconomic work on HIV and Aids;

1 A re-estimation of the annual and quarterly econometric models to take account of
stationarity issues; and

1 Astudy on competition in the South African banking sector.

The Tax Policy unit is responsible for advising the Minister of Finance on tax policy
issues that arise at all three levels of government. In its policy advice function to
Government, the unit has to design tax instruments that achieve an optimal mix between
revenue-raising, economic and redistributive efficiency as well as social policy goals. All
of this has to be done in a manner that creates a basis for general political acceptability
of the selected tax instruments.

Moreover, intensive and close cooperation between the South African Revenue Service
(SARS) and the National Treasury has enabled the alignment of tax administration
concerns with tax policy preferences. The unit made major advances in engaging with
taxpayer associations, the corporate sector and the general taxpaying public in a
structured manner so that the tax policy choices made by Government are understood and
supported.

The 2003/04 financial year began with the announcement of an amnesty for undeclared
foreign assets, providing relief for the failure to disclose foreign assets/income in terms
of Exchange Control and tax. The amnesty window lasted from 1 June 2003 to
29 February 2004. The amnesty has been a success, with the Amnesty unit receiving over
42 000 applications. The amount of foreign assets disclosed should add substantially to
the income tax base, thereby providing further fiscal space for reform in terms of tax
relief and/or increased government expenditure.
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The latter half of the year saw the translation into tax law of a series of tax stimulus
measures announced in the 2004 Budget. The most notable of these measures was the tax
incentive for urban renewal, which will provide depreciation incentives for building or
renovating structures in designated urban areas. The goal is to stimulate private-sector
support that will complement other, ongoing government efforts. Other measures
included incentives for start-up operations, relief for the sale of business assets if sales
proceeds are reinvested and permanent retention of the accelerated depreciation for
manufacturing assets.

In 2003, the National Treasury released the first draft of the Mineral and Petroleum
Royalty Bill. This Bill is currently being revised to account for public comments,
including clarification of mineral values to be relied on for the royalty's base, as well as
relief for marginal mines. Other important policy matters that were addressed included
measures to avoid a double royalty implication for mines that have negotiated mining
rights from tribal communities. The General Tax Analysis Directorate developed an
elaborate econometric model testing for the distributional and economic impacts of the
proposed royalty dispensation during the course of 2003. These results are feeding into
the current revision of the royalty regime.

In terms of retirement fund tax reform, a discussion document is being prepared for
public comment, which should be released after certain key decisions are made in terms
of reforms to the current regulatory environment for the pension fund industry.

A number of other key activities were undertaken by the Tax unit in 2003/04, namely:

I Statistics of income for collection, revenue estimation and risk profiling purposes
have been developed;

I The tax expenditure budget statement, which was released for the first time in the
2003 Budget Review, has been further refined with a view to providing a better
understanding of the scope of indirect subsidies provided by Government to certain
sectors in the economy;

1 More refined revenue estimation models for the range of tax instruments currently
employed have been developed,

I Avreview of the VAT treatment of grants/transfer payments to Public Entities and
PPPs has been completed;

I Work on Environmental Fiscal Reform in South Africa. A draft report was circulated
to all relevant stakeholders and a successful two-day workshop where the report was
discussed was held in November 2003;

1 Participation in the development of an appropriately designed levy on plastic
shopping bags, implemented with effect from 1 June 2004;

1 Avery successful workshop on excise duties was held in April 2003;

1 Astudy of energy subsidies was undertaken to investigate, in particular, the impact
of the VAT zero-rating of illuminating paraffin. This study was completed in
December 2003 and one of the findings of the report was that the benefit of zero-
rating of illuminating paraffin was not passed on to consumers; and

I The unit continues to play a leading role in coordinating tax policy programmes and
capacity-building events at the regional level through the work of the SADC Tax
Subcommittee, which is chaired by South Africa. Capacity-building workshops were
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held in the areas of tax administration and tax policy; double taxation treaties; excise
taxation and tax incentives. The SADC tax database was transferred to the SADC
Secretariat in Botswana for maintenance and updating purposes.

The Financial Sector Policy unit is responsible for advising the Minister of Finance on
policies aimed at promoting the growth, development and stability of the financial sector.
This is achieved through interaction and dialogue between the National Treasury,
regulatory authorities, consumer groups and the industry at large. Much of its work is
focused on developing legislation and regulations that are necessary to implement the
policy approach adopted.

The unit has the following key strategic objectives:

1 To promote a more equitable and efficient financial sector;

I To embrace financial stability;

1 To increase the protection of investors and consumers;

I To ensure that South Africa both meets and influences the development of
international standards in the financial sector; and

1 To promote the growth of the sector actively.

The unit is responsible for liaison with the SARB on matters related to bank supervision,
financial stability, the national payment system and exchange controls; as well as with the
FSB, which supervises the non-banking financial services sector.

The Financial Sector Policy team represents the National Treasury at various committees,
including the Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation — a statutory body that
advises the Minister on the financial services industry and regulatory framework; the
Financial Markets Advisory Board — a statutory advisory board responsible for issues that
affect the financial markets; and the Standing Committee for the Revision of the Banks
Act (94 of 1990).

The unit also engages with regional organisations, such as the Common Monetary Area
(CMA) and the Committee of Insurance, Securities and Non-banking Financial
Authorities (CISNA), a subcommittee of the SADC. Furthermore, the unit seeks to
influence the international financial sector policy agenda through participation in and
contributions towards the work of international fora, such as the G20, the International
Organization of Securities Commissions (I0SCO), the Bank for International Settlements
(BIS) and the Financial Action Task Force (FATF).

In 2003, as part of its initiative to deal with money laundering, South Africa increased its
international cooperation through gaining membership to the Financial FATF, the
international anti-money-laundering policy-setting body. South Africa is the only African
country belonging to this 33-member organisation. The unit continues to work closely
with the FIC on policy issues relating to anti-money laundering and combating the
financing of terrorism.

A milestone in the transformation of the financial sector was reached in October 2003
with the launch of the ‘Financial Sector Charter’. The Charter is an industry-driven
initiative, but the unit has been actively involved in the implementation process. A key
policy aim is to ensure that the South African financial sector provides services that meet
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the needs of all South Africans, ranging from multi-national conglomerates to the
ordinary citizen. The unit commissioned research into third-tier banking and is
participating in the restructuring process of the Post Bank. It is currently in the process of
formulating legislation on cooperative banks and is working with the SARB on the
development of legislation for core and narrow banks.

Research is being conducted in various other areas. Efforts on drafting a policy and legal
position on a South African Deposit Insurance Scheme are currently under way, with the
aim of enacting legislation by 2006/07. A process has begun to review the Pension Funds
Act (24 of 1956), with the aim of producing a principles document for discussion later in
the year so that drafting can begin in 2005. The full implementation of the Financial
Advisory and Intermediary Services Bill will occur on 30 September 2004. The
Ministerial Panel for the Review of the Accounting Professions Bill completed its report
and presented it to the Minister in August 2003. The consultation process was completed
in December 2003, and the Bill is currently being drafted.

Lastly, the unit has participated actively in bilateral and multilateral negotiations
pertaining to trade in financial services. The unit is currently working with the
Department of Trade and Industry, and other stakeholders in researching and developing
a strategy to further the trade in financial services.

The International Economics unit has four core areas of responsibility, namely:

1 Deepening and extending economic linkages among African economies;
1 Strengthening South Africa's capital account;

1 Reforming the international financial architecture; and

1 Shaping the international development policy agenda.

Regional policy remains a key focus of the work of the unit. This includes work in the
SADC, the Southern African Customs Union (SACU) and the CMA. Among the projects
on regional integration, the past year saw an effort to operationalise a revised SACU
agreement, covering management and institutional issues, signed in 2003 following eight
years of negotiations.

The SADC adopted a development framework, the ‘Regional Indicative Strategic
Development Plan’ (RISDP), which sets out the strategic priorities of the SADC and
provides the framework for the integration of the economies, with the ultimate objective
of fostering sustainable development. The SADC Finance and Investment Sector is also
finalising the Finance and Investment Protocol. The policy objectives for the Protocol
include regional macroeconomic stability and convergence, encouraging savings and
stimulating investment flows in the region.

At continental level, the National Treasury was involved in technical support to the
creation of the African Peer Review Mechanism (APRM), which came into effect on
17 February 2004. That effort to improve policies and the investment climate in Africa
has been further supplemented in 2003 by National Treasury's advocacy of stronger
technical cooperation among African policy makers in the area of finance, economic
development and planning.

In March 2004, Treasury hosted a successful conference of African Finance Ministers to
develop a common position on issues of "Voice and Representation of African countries
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in the Bretton Woods Institutions'. The Johannesburg Communiqué has since informed
further discussion in the G24 on these issues.

The International Economics unit's trade work in 2003 included two reports: a study on
the impact of the African Growth and Opportunity on Agriculture in Africa and a study
of the SACU arrangement.

The unit continued its work on capital account policy with research on capital flows and
financial market integration. It also advised on exchange control policy and capital
account reform. A major focus has been on the transition from exchange controls to
prudential regulation of foreign investments of institutional investors. A new application
process, new application forms and quarterly reports applicable to each type of qualifying
institution were finalised and issued in 2003. Another major area of focus has been on
making South African financial markets more attractive and better equipped to meet the
capital-raising needs of the continent. The enabling of inward listings on the JSE
Securities Exchange SA will contribute to the realisation of that objective.

The reform of the international financial architecture continues to be an important area of
work for International Economics, with participation in the International Monetary and
Financial Committee (IMFC), the G20, and the G24. The Treasury has been active in
promoting reforms and policy initiatives that are favourable to South Africa, in particular,
and African countries in general. In particular, proposals have been made for greater debt
relief and an increased focus by the IMF on poverty reduction. With other emerging
market countries, the National Treasury pressed for the reform of the IMF's emergency
financing mechanisms to improve their suitability for the current global financial
environment.

The Treasury also organises the IMF's Article 1V and interim consultations. South Africa’s
Article IV report for 2003 confirmed the strength and management of the economy. In
addition, South Africa has completed 11 (more than any other country in the G20) of the
IMF's Reports on the Observance of Standards and Codes, which cover compliance with
best practice in financial sector policy and fiscal management.

Global development policy remained a priority for International Economics in 2003. The
unit provided policy support to the Minister of Finance as chair of the Development
Committee, a joint World Bank-IMF committee that provides guidance on development
issues. Policy advice focused on sustainable debt relief, enhanced aid flows and growth
enhancing strategies that reduce poverty. A framework for monitoring the implementation
of the Monterrey consensus and the Millennium Development Goals, was implemented.
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ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

Purpose: To provide for the prudent management of Government's financial assets and
liabilities.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to manage the Government's asset and
liability portfolio in a manner that ensures prudent cash management, asset restructuring

and financial management, and optimal management of the Government's domestic and
foreign debt portfolio. Programme activities are carried out through five subprogrammes:

1 Management manages the Office of the Head of the Division.

1 Liability Management provides for the Government's liquidity needs and ensures
prudent management of both domestic and foreign debt by issuing debt instruments
at the lowest possible cost, subject to acceptable levels of risk. It also contributes to
the development of domestic capital markets and provides for timeously servicing of
debt.

1 Financial Operations is responsible for the management of the Government's liquidity
requirements. It ensures that all Government's debt transactions are recorded timeously
and reported in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA). It
also ensures that all other reporting requirements of multilateral institutions are met. It,
furthermore, provides for divisional Information System requirements.

1 Strategy and Risk Management develops and maintains the government-wide risk
management framework and ensures that the strategies adopted by the Asset and
Liability Management division are in line with the agreed framework. These include
country, market, credit and budget risks.

1 Asset Management is committed to enhancing shareholder value through restructured
state-owned entities. It monitors and enforces compliance with corporate governance
for government bodies and public entities in accordance with the PFMA, and
coordinates borrowing activities of public entities in line with Treasury Regulations.
It also provides for the coordination of the issuance of guarantees.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Liability Management — The revised net borrowing requirement of R36,5 billion for
2003/04 was financed successfully. This was financed through the issuance of domestic
short-term loans (R6,7 billion), domestic long-term loans (R31,1 billion), foreign loans
(R1,0 billion) and changes in cash and other balances (R-2,3 billion).

It was projected that the equivalent of $1,0 billion would be financed in the foreign capital
markets. However, in May 2003, Government issued a 10-year global Euro bond
maturing in May 2013 to the equivalent of $1,4 billion. The Net Open Forward Position
(NOFP) had a positive balance of $6,4 billion at 31 March 2004 and future foreign loan
issues will focus on the financing of redeeming foreign loans and disbursements
pertaining to the arms procurement programme. To take advantage of favourable market
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conditions, the $1,5 billion syndicate loan due in July 2004 was prematurely repaid,
primarily using domestic funding.

In terms of the Gold and Foreign Exchange Contingency Reserve Account Defrayal Act,
Government needs to pay R28,0 billion to the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) by
2005/06 to defray realised losses on this account. A further R7 billion of losses were
defrayed in 2003/04 by issuing bonds to the SARB, bringing the total to R14 billion.

Preparatory work to introduce Retail Bonds was completed by the end of 2003/04 and
was successfully launched on 24 May 2004.

Interest to the amount of R46,1 billion was paid to the investors in Government's debt and
maturing debt of R39,9 billion was repaid. During 2003, South Africa's credit rating was
upgraded by Standard & Poor's, Fitch Ratings and Rating and Investment Information Inc
to BBB, BBB and BBB+, respectively. Moody's has placed South Africa under a positive
review.

Financial Operations implemented enhanced intergovernmental cash coordination
processes in two provinces. It is expected that the remaining seven provinces will
implement these processes during 2004/05. The re-engineering of existing cash
management processes has resulted in the exchequer balances on which no interest was
earned being lowered from R500 million to R100 million, resulting in additional interest
of R35 million being earned annually. On the systems development front, the business
processes review has been concluded and an information-management strategy, outlining
the next generation of applications, was approved by management. The implementation
of the Commonwealth Debt Recording and Management System (CS-DRMS) was
terminated because the system did not meet the technical requirements of a sophisticated
government debt market such as South Africa's. Regarding debt information reporting, all
debt transactions were recorded timeously and ongoing dissemination of information to
the market further enhanced transparency.

Strategy and Risk Management — In actively managing the Government's debt portfolio,
the National Treasury has the responsibility to identify, control and manage the risks to
which Government is exposed. A comprehensive risk management framework, which
provides for a set of benchmarks or reference criteria against which the structure and
evolution of the debt portfolio can be tested and understood, was developed. Initially, the
focus was on market risk and government-wide risk was not given a high priority. The
risk management model has since been broadened to encompass broader contingent
liability risk issues within the public sector. All possible government-wide risks have
been identified and will be incorporated in a comprehensive risk management framework.

Asset Management is responsible for the Registrar of Public Entities, which listed 15,
delisted 42 and effected name changes to eight public entities listed under the Schedules
of the PFMA.

In compliance with Sections 52 and 55(1) (d) of the Act, 90 per cent of all listed national
government business enterprises (Schedules 2 and 3B) and 93 per cent of all national
public entities (Schedules 2, 3A and 3B), submitted their corporate plans and annual
financial statements, respectively. The public entities that did not comply were reported
to the Office of the Auditor-General and to the Parliamentary Standing Committee on
Public Accounts (SCOPA).
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During the period under review, the Guarantee Certification Committee (GCC)
recommended the approval of guarantees (R7,0 billion); indemnities and securities
(RO,2 billion); and a borrowing limit (R0,2 billion) in respect of public entities.

The Treasury Regulations were amended to regulate the disclosure of emoluments to all
directors and executive management of public entities and their subsidiaries in their
annual financial statements. Since 2003, all public entities have complied with the
requirement, subjecting the emoluments of directors and executive management to public
scrutiny. This brought the reporting by public entities on par with JSE-listed companies,
as directed in terms of the King Il Report on Corporate Governance.

Asset Management continued to provide ongoing support for the restructuring of state-
owned enterprises (SOEs). However, because of the postponement of the sale of
SAFCOL and the delay in the concession of the Durban Container Port, only R8,0 million
of the budgeted R2,5 billion in proceeds from the restructuring of state-owned assets was
received. In addition, the National Treasury recognised that the alienation of Transnet's
assets might trigger Transnet's loan covenants. A review of Transnet's loan covenants
was, therefore, initiated.

The responsibility for the restructuring of SOE's lies mainly with the Department of
Public Enterprises and those departments responsible for the enterprises' policies.
Furthermore, the requirements to establish regulatory environments, to ensure that
prudent commercial norms are adhered to and that market conditions are conclusive,
affect the realisation of restructuring proceeds. The National Treasury, therefore,
regularly reviews and re-estimates proceeds from restructuring and, if necessary, adjusts
the Government's borrowing requirements.

Dividends amounting to R1,2 billion were paid into the National Revenue Fund during
2003/04. A further amount of R0,2 billion was also received in respect of profits from the
SARB.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND SYSTEMS

Purpose: To provide for the management and regulation of Government's supply-chain
processes, the implementation and maintenance of standardised financial systems and the
coordination of the implementation of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)
(PFMA) and related capacity-building initiatives.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to regulate and oversee public-sector
supply chain management (SCM) and standardise the financial systems of national and
provincial government, as well as to coordinate the implementation of the PFMA.

Managed by the Specialist Function division, programme activities are carried out under
the following subprogrammes:

1 Supply Chain Management develops policy that regulates the acquisition of goods
and services in the public sector; monitors policy outcomes; and facilitates and
manages transversal term contracts on behalf of Government.

1 PFMA Implementation is charged with coordinating the implementation of the
PFMA and related capacity-building initiatives.

I Financial Systems aims to provide an uninterrupted financial systems operation to
Government.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Supply Chain Management — Government initiated reforms to its procurement policies
and systems and this process continued during the period under review. Reforms focus on
the promotion of good governance and the introduction of a preference system to address
certain socio-economic objectives. These are embedded in Sections 76(4)(c) of the
PFMA and 112(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (56 of 2003) (MFMA) and
the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (5 of 2000) (PPPFA).

A framework for SCM, applicable to all national and provincial departments,
constitutional institutions, as well as Schedule 3A and 3C public entities, was
promulgated on 5 December 2003. Workshops to introduce SCM were held with all
national and provincial departments, constitutional entities and relevant public entities.

Implementation of the Supply Chain Management Framework promotes uniformity in the
different spheres of government in repealing tender-board legislation and gives effect to
the PFMA intent to devolve responsibility and accountability for supply chain-related
matters to accounting officers. At national level, the State Tender Board Regulations were
amended to allow accounting officers to procure goods and services in terms of the
PFMA. The repeal of the State Tender Board Act has been provided for in the PFMA
Amendment Bill. Provincial treasuries have initiated their own legislative processes for
the repeal of respective provincial tender board legislation.

The National Treasury has issued a number of practice notes in terms of the SCM
Framework to guide uniformity in practices and procedures across national and
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provincial government. Provincial treasuries may issue further practice notes in a
cascading fashion, guiding the more detailed, technical implementation of SCM practice.
The National Treasury also issued a 'Supply Chain Management Guide' for accounting
officers/authorities.

Implementation of SCM practice is being phased in over the Medium-Term Expenditure
Framework (MTEF) because of considerable divergence between current government
procurement and provisioning practice and new SCM policies, systems, procedures and
processes.

Departments are required to establish SCM units under the responsibility and
management of departmental chief financial officers, ensuring that clear lines of authority
and accountability, as well as performance criteria contribute towards minimising risk;
improving sourcing procedures and processes; and enhancing asset and inventory
management.

Accounting officers are responsible for ensuring that their SCM personnel are adequately
trained. The National Treasury facilitates this process by engaging several stakeholders,
including the South African Management Development Institute (SAMDI) and the
Institute for Public Finance and Auditing, to develop appropriate SCM training material.

The National Treasury Supply Chain Management Office is responsible for the
facilitation and management of transversal term contracts on behalf of Government. The
Office also ensures the alignment of Government SCM practice with the requirements of
the PEFMA.

The Supply Chain Management team has also begun to implement a high-level
management information system to enable Government to obtain information about total
procurement in Government and to monitor the extent to which procurement reform
objectives are achieved. Minimum reporting requirements have been prescribed for
accounting officers/authorities with a view to establish a reliable database over the next
three years. Over this MTEF period, the National Treasury, in collaboration with the
Department of Trade and Industry, is in the process of amending the preferential
procurement system, ensuring that it contributes more effectively towards meeting
Government's objectives for black economic empowerment.

The MFMA was to come into effect on 1 July 2004. The National Treasury is already
involved in consultation processes with municipalities and organised local government in
drafting a framework for implementation of SCM.

PFMA Implementation — This unit focused largely on coordinating finance-related
capacity building initiatives and providing Cabinet and Parliament's Standing Committee
on Public Accounts (SCOPA) with progress reports on the implementation of the PFMA.
In this regard, a compliance survey was conducted and reports were forwarded to Cabinet
and SCOPA during July 2003. These progress reports were based on a National Treasury
compiled document entitled ‘Normative Measures for Financial Management (Phase 1:
Perfecting the Basics)'. The document was compiled with the intention of providing a
benchmark to accounting officers to assist them in evaluating financial management
within their departments continuously and to report meaningfully thereon in their annual
reports. The 'Normative Measures' document also serves as a framework to assess both
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compliance and qualitative improvement associated with PFMA implementation in
departments, and constitutional institutions are making good progress towards PFMA
compliance. There has been a notable degree of improvement in financial management.

The PFMA Implementation unit has also initiated a process to develop a guideline
document that would assist Members of Parliament in strengthening their oversight
responsibilities through the evaluation of annual reports and financial statements. This
guideline will also prove invaluable in assisting Members of Parliament to provide
feedback to the executive on institutional performance.

During January 2004, the PFMA Implementation unit prepared a memorandum to inform
Cabinet on the audit outcomes of national and provincial entities in respect of their
2002/03 financial statements. In this regard, Cabinet resolved (among others) that
departments, trading entities and public entities that received qualified audit opinions and
emphasis of matter submit plans to the Minister of Finance with regard to corrective steps
to be taken. The National Treasury is in the process of interrogating these plans and will
engage with departments, where necessary.

The Validation Board, established to exercise qualitative control over finance-related
training material of external service providers, has made good progress. To date, the
Board has validated 67 courses stemming from applications submitted by 14 service
providers. All national departments and provincial treasuries are informed regularly of
courses that the Validation Board has accredited.

To further assist departments with financial management capacity-building initiatives, the
National Treasury entered into a Service Level Agreement with the Institute for Public
Finance and Auditing (IPFA) for the roll-out of a large-scale training programme of short
courses to government officials on various aspects related to financial management.
These courses have to be of an acceptable quality and in accordance with the National
Treasury's priorities. Presentation of these courses commenced during April 2003 and
lasted until the end of March 2004; the IPFA presented 55 courses to 953 trainees.

On 8 February 2004, the President announced in his address at the opening of Parliament
that Government had approved a Public Service Anti-Corruption Strategy. This Strategy
entails comprehensive and integrated action against corruption and contributes to
Government's wider national anti-corruption programme. The Strategy consists of nine
strategic considerations, which include:

1 Areview and consolidation of legislative frameworks;
1 Prohibition of corrupt individuals and businesses; and
I Improved management policies and practices.

The implementation of the Strategy is coordinated by a multidepartmental Anti-
Corruption Coordinating Committee (ACCC). The PFMA Implementation unit was
appointed to represent the National Treasury on the Committee. In this regard, the unit
also formed part of the South African delegation that participated in the process of
negotiating a United Nations Convention against Corruption in Vienna, Austria. Cabinet
has recently recommended ratification of the aforementioned Convention.
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Financial Systems — An Integrated Financial Management Systems project office was
established during 2003 to develop a Master Systems Plan (MSP) to guide the
replacement of the current outdated legacy systems in a phased manner. The MSP was
completed at the end of March 2004 and has been submitted for consideration through
decision-making processes.

The MSP deliverables focused on the following areas:

I The interpretation and documentation of Government's financial management user
requirements;

1 Recommendations on possible alternative technical options to meet Government's
future systems support requirements; and

1 The commercial and financial implications associated with the different options.

Parallel to the development of the MSP, efforts continued to streamline the interim
management of the existing transversal systems, namely BAS, FMS, Logis, Persal and
Vulindlela. These endeavours already made it possible to register substantial savings in
the costs of maintaining these systems.

During the period under review, the process to migrate all national departments and
provinces from FMS to BAS was completed. This paved the way for the final phasing out
of FMS to end the duplication of the systems under the management of the National
Treasury. Simultaneous to the implementation of BAS, the implementation of the new
standard chart of accounts (SCOA) was also completed.
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FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING

Purpose: To develop new and enhance existing accounting policies and practices to
ensure compliance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
(GRAP) to be issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), which will enable a
transition from the cash basis to an accrual basis of accounting. It also endeavours to
improve the timeliness, accuracy and efficiency of financial reporting; and to provide
mechanisms for improved financial accountability in the public sector.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to improve the quality of financial
accounting and reporting by ensuring that appropriate accounting policies and financial
practices are developed for improved disclosure.

The Office of the Accountant-General consists of the following subprogrammes:

1 Financial Reporting for National Accounts is responsible for the accounting of the
National Revenue and Reconstruction and Development Programme (RDP) Fund;
banking services for national Government; the development and implication of
accounting policies; and the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

1 Financial Management Improvement incorporates the improvement of financial
management and training, as well as internal audit services. It also provides
assistance to the Institute for Public Finance and Auditing (IPFA).

1 Service Charges provides for bank service charges for the deposit accounts of all
departments.

1 Audit provides for compensation for shortfalls of statutory bodies and municipalities
in certain instances in terms of the Auditor-General Act (12 of 1995).

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Financial Reporting for National Accounts — Over the past financial year, the office
assisted all national and provincial departments in completing their financial statements
and annual reports for the financial year ended 31 March. Two new appointments were
made to this subprogramme during the financial year.

A Consolidation Workgroup, comprising the National Treasury, the ASB and the Auditor-
General, was set up to discuss and resolve technical issues and challenges to the
consolidation of national departments, public entities and constitutional entities.
Meetings were held with the chief financial officers of national departments; provincial
departments; and national and provincial public entities to discuss the consolidation
process and impending challenges. A consolidation guide and model/template were
prepared and distributed to all relevant entities for completion.

Financial Management Improvement — This subprogramme was most affected by the lack
of capacity within the Office. However, in the latter half of the year, five new
appointments were made to enhance the capacity available within this subprogramme. It
was envisaged that the increased capacity would facilitate greater assistance and

58



PROGRAMME 5 rirarerTt
B

involvement with the provincial treasuries in the implementation and roll-out of financial
management improvement programmes and policies. However, these plans were severely
impacted by the changes in senior management of the Office and the timing of the
appointments.

During the year, the existing accounting policies were reviewed and enhancements
effected, which will to be disseminated for comment and issue during the following
financial year.

As at the end of March 2004, the first enhancements made to the accounting policies in
support of Standards of GRAP were finalised. These policies were based on the
International Federation of Accountants' (IFAC) International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS) and International Accounting Standards (IAS), as well as any
Exposure Drafts (ED) issued by the ASB.

During the year, the ASB issued the following EDs for comment:

I Presentation of financial statements;

I Cash flow statement;

1 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors;

1 Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements; and
1 Generally Recognised Municipal Accounting Practices.

Comments were drafted and timeously submitted as part of the National Treasury's
response to the ASB's standards development process.

Three permanent staff members were appointed after August 2003, which increased
capacity within the Internal Audit unit. The ‘Internal Audit Framework’ was finalised
during the year and forwarded to stakeholders for review. A review was also done of the
status of internal audit and the implementation of audit committees and internal audit
units across all national departments. The results of the review were timeously reported
to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA), as required in terms of the
Third SCOPA Report of 3 March 1999.

During the last quarter of the year, a process was undertaken to develop a Risk
Management Framework (RMF) that would be used as a basis for entity-wide risk
management across national and provincial departments, as contemplated in Section
38(1), and Treasury Regulation 3.2. The RMF has been circulated for comment to a wide
array of stakeholders across the public sector to ensure an all-encompassing process and
that consensus for implementation is achieved. The Framework has been finalised, and
will be reviewed and updated on an annual basis, thus ensuring that the it will, at all times,
reflect the current best practice.

The Office of the Accountant-General co-sponsored the Standard Charts of Account
(SCOA) project with the Budget Office to ensure that the SCOA supported both the ‘New
Economic Reporting Format’ and the current and future financial reporting requirements
of national and provincial departments. A collaborative road show between various
divisions in the National Treasury was undertaken during November 2003 to officially
introduce the reform to the national and provincial departments. In December 2003, the
Office of the Accountant-General assumed responsibility for version control and chart
maintenance.
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Transfer payments
Transfer payments were made to the following:

Accounting Standards Board — The ASB was established in terms of the PFMA to develop
GRAP standards for the purposes of implementing the said standards in the public sector
financial management environment. During the financial year, the ASB drafted its work
plan for the development of standards, which has been approved by the Minister of
Finance, and has developed and released three standards for the Minister's approval.
Commentary and discussion on the initial exposure drafts have been forwarded to the
ASB by stakeholders including the OAG, and incorporated into the final standards
awaiting the Minister's approval.

Office of the Auditor-General — Transfer payments are made to the Auditor-General to
defray audit expenses related to the audit of departmental books.

Name of Institution Amount ‘
Transferred

Accaunting Standards Board R 3842 000.00

Office of the Auditar-General R & 626 000.00

Written confirmation has been received by the OAG that the entities to whom transfers
have been made implemented effective, efficient and transparent financial management
and internal control systems, as required by the PFMA.
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PROVINCIAL AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS

Purpose: To manage the Provincial Infrastructure Grant and the Local Government
Financial Management and Restructuring Grants. These conditional grants are
appropriated on the National Treasury Vote.

Measurable objective: The Provincial Infrastructure Grant, which was introduced four
years ago, aims to boost provincial infrastructure investment and to serve as a catalyst for
introducing good practices in relation to the planning and monitoring of infrastructure
projects.

The Local Government Financial Management Grant aims to support the implementation
of financial management reforms aimed at enhancing transparency and accountability,
while the Local Government Restructuring Grant is used for restructuring initiatives in
large municipalities.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Provincial Infrastructure Grant was introduced in 2000/01 to enable provinces to
address infrastructure needs in the areas of roads, school buildings and health facilities,
and to support rural development. The key requirement of the Grant is that provincial
budgets should reflect growth in the budgets for and spending on infrastructure for the
targeted sectors. It is a general conditional grant to boost provincial capital budgets, and
hence its reporting requirements are not restricted to the Grant itself, but extended to the
entire capital budgets of provinces.

Total capital spending in provinces in 2003/04 amounted to an estimated R10,1 billion,
which was considerably more than the R2,5 billion Provincial Infrastructure Grant. This
represents an increase of about 28 per cent on the R7,9 billion provinces spent on capital
in 2002/03, and is more than double the R4 billion spent in 2000/01, indicating the
success of the Grant in continuing to gear up provincial capital spending. The sectors
targeted by the Grant account for about 80 per cent of provincial capital spending
(excluding housing).

While three provinces (Free State, Gauteng, Western Cape) received all their instalments
for the Grant as scheduled, some instalments were delayed to the other six provinces due
to non-compliance with the reporting conditions of the Grant. However, all provinces
finally complied fully, and received their total grants by the end of the financial year. The
amounts per province are outlined in the table below, and in Annexure 1B in the Notes to
the Financial Statements.
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Province Allecation
Transferred
Eastern Cape 457
Free Stale 163
Ciauteng 236
KwaZulu-Natal 500
Limpopo 341
Mpumalanga 216
Northern Cape 72
MNorth West 4
Tatal 2 543

The Local Government Financial Management Grant and the Local Government
Restructuring Grant are two separate grants, assisting municipalities in implementing
fiscal and financial management, and restructuring reforms. Since the inception of the
Financial Management Grant in 2000, there has been marked improvement in the
financial management practices among municipalities, particularly in the areas of
budgeting, reporting, accounting and in building financial management capacity.
Building on the success of a pilot phase, which was implemented in seven pilot
municipalities in 2000, the Grant was successfully extended to 63 municipalities by 2003,
exceeding the target of 37 municipalities. The 2003/04 financial year saw the coming into
effect of the Municipal Finance Management Act (56 of 2003) (MFMA) on 1 July 2004.

To facilitate skills development and to support fiscal and financial reforms, municipalities
have used the Grant to employ around 160 financial management interns. This will
continue to grow in the future as we see municipalities addressing their skills shortages.
Another key initiative is the completion and submission of a unit standards based
qualification for municipal financial management for registration with the South African
Qualifications Authority (SAQA), to underpin the implementation of skills development
in municipalities.

The Municipal Finance Management Technical Assistance Project (MFMTAP) also
provides direct fiscal and financial support to municipalities. The Project is the result of
an agreement between the South African Government and the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development. The agreement funds technical finance advisors from
around the world, who are posted at selected municipalities for a period of two years. The
advisors bring with them practical international experience with the objective of building
capacity in budgeting, financial management and project management skills within
municipalities. All techniques developed and lessons learned are made available to local
government via the Internet. The MFMTAP started in 2002 and nine advisors were placed
in municipalities by 2003. Moreover, the programme has served to solicit support from
other donor countries in the placement of two German-sponsored advisors and six UK-
funded advisors, all working on the municipal finance management programme. An
amount of R210 million was disbursed during the financial year under review.

The Local Government Restructuring Grant is intended to support restructuring and the
modernisation of large municipalities in their efforts to be more effective and efficient,
and to function in a fiscally sustainable manner. Previous successful applicants include
the Msunduzi, Mangaung and Cacadu municipalities, which are monitored for
compliance on a quarterly basis.
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Following successful discussions with eligible municipalities, 12 new applications were
received in 2003/04. These were from Buffalo City, Nelson Mandela Metro, Emfuleni
Municipality, Ekurhuleni Municipality, eThekwini Municipality, Polokwane
Municipality, Sol Plaatje Municipality, City of Cape Town, City of Tshwane, uMhlatuze
Municipality, Matjhabeng and Mogale City. A thorough review and assessment process
was undertaken, which resulted in two successful applications, namely those of Buffalo
City and Emfuleni. Each received a grant of R130 million over a four-year period. The
first tranche was transferred to them, amounting to R40 million each.

The other ten applications were not successful, but interim, one-year allocations were
made to the City of Cape Town, Ekurhuleni, eThekwini, Nelson Mandela and the City of
Tshwane, totalling R160 million. That was to support specific restructuring initiatives,
and to assist those municipalities in submitting more comprehensive restructuring
applications in the next financial year. Other applications like uMhlatuze, Sol Plaatje,
Polokwane and Matjhabeng received once-off allocations, totalling R45 million, to
augment a previous seed funding allocation, and to assist them in implementing their
restructuring applications.

To ensure measurable compliance with grant conditions, successful applicants have been
given four years instead of three to achieve benchmarks. This will allow more time for
compliance with the benchmarks and minimise delays and payments being held back.
The Restructuring Grant is anticipated to continue for a further four years and will be
subjected to a progress review in 2006/07.

R45 million was withheld from Mangaung Municipality for non-compliance with
conditions during the financial year. These funds will be transferred in the next financial
year, once conditions are met.

More information on the amounts received by each municipality are outlined in Annexure
1A in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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PROGRAMME 7

CIVIL AND MILITARY PENSIONS, CONTRIBUTIONS TO
FUNDS AND OTHER BENEFITS

Purpose: To provide for pension and post-retirement medical-benefit obligations to
former employees of state departments and bodies, and for disability benefits for former
members of the statutory and non-statutory forces.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to ensure the payment of benefits and
awards to beneficiaries of departments, state-aided bodies and other specified bodies in
terms of various statutes, collective-bargaining agreements and other commitments.

There are two subprogrammes:

1 Civil Pensions and Contributions to Medical Schemes provides for the payment of
benefits out of pension and other funds to the beneficiaries of various public-sector
bodies in terms of various statutes, collective-bargaining agreements and other
commitments. The subprogramme also provides for the payment of special pensions
to persons who have made sacrifices or served the public interest in the establishment
of a democratic constitutional order.

1 Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the payment of military pension
benefits and medical claims arising from treatment for disability, medical assistive
devices, and other related expenses, in keeping with statutory requirements and
commitments.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Through ongoing review, maintenance and enhancement in relation to administrative
systems, it became clear that applications for the payment and administration of civil and
military pensions and contributions to medical schemes needed to be re-engineered.
Business analysts have compiled draft functional specifications related to work-flow
processes in the administration of special pensions, military pensions and ad hoc medical
expense claims, and these are being reviewed.

Pensions Administration — the operational arm of the Government Employees Pension
Fund (GEPF) — administers a range of benefit and pension schemes for Government on
an agency basis. The GEPF is self-funded and produces its own strategic plan and annual
report.

Civil Pensions and Contributions to Funds ensures the timely payment of government
contributions to medical aid schemes in respect of civil pensioners, surviving spouses,
dependants and civil pensioners who were not members of medical schemes during their
period of service (by special concession). It also ensures payment to medical schemes in
respect of pensioners and widows of the former Development Boards and the National
Film Board.

Following an in-depth investigation, the method of payment of contributions to medical
schemes is being restructured, enhancing the reconciliation process to ensure timeous and
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correct payment. Pensions Administration also aims to implement a new medical-scheme
fee structure to ensure compliance with industry standards. Part of this process will
include the appointment of a health risk manager to manage the business relationship
between the participating entities. The team has implemented an appropriate risk model
to facilitate adequate actuarial modelling and costing of payments.

The programme is also responsible for the payment of compensation benefits to
government employees in respect of temporary, total or partial disablement, or as a result
of injuries sustained on duty and, in cases of death, to dependants of such beneficiaries in
accordance with the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (130 of
1993).

The payment of special pensions to persons who have made sacrifices or served the
public interest in the establishment of a democratic constitutional order also forms part of
the subprogramme. This includes members of any armed or military force not established
by or under any law, and which is under the authority and control of, or associated with,
and promotes the objectives of political organisations or dependants of such persons in
terms of the Special Pensions Act (69 of 1996).

The Act gives effect to Section 189 of the Interim Constitution regarding the prescription
of rules for determining persons who are entitled to receive special pensions and to
provide for the establishment of structures to implement the Act — that is, the Special
Pensions Board and the Special Pensions Review Board.

In addition to recent amendments, the special pensions process will be reviewed over the
next year. The review will examine the special pensions benefit structure and the required
legislative amendments to facilitate implementation.

Military Pensions and Other Benefits ensures the timeous payment of military pensions
to ex-soldiers who were involved in the pre-1914 wars, the First and Second World Wars,
the Korean War, post-1960 wars; national servicemen; South African Citizen Force
members who participated in the Border War; and members from the former non-
statutory forces or their dependants, in accordance with the Military Pensions Act (84 of
1976).

Other benefits expended include payments to ex-service personnel for medical claims for
disability, medical appliances and subsistence and travelling allowances in terms of the
Military Pensions Act, and payment of an administration grant to the South African
Legion to attend to the socio-economic needs of war veterans. The Legion's involvement
includes facilitating communication through the publication of policy changes, as well as
acting as a mediator between the Treasury and pensioners for purposes of addressing
queries and applications for pensions.
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PROGRAMME 8 -
FISCAL TRANSFERS
Purpose: To provide for funds to public authorities and other institutions in terms of
various legal provisions governing the financial relations between Government and the

particular authority or institution, including international development institutions of
which Government is a member.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to meet certain international and other
statutory financial obligations, to meet the costs of raising revenue for the purpose of the
state effectively and efficiently, and to finance intelligence gathering and other secret
services in the national interest.

Domestic transfers are made to:

1 The Development Fund of the Development Bank of Southern Africa for the micro-
credit initiative;

1 The South African Revenue Service (SARS), which is responsible for the collection
of revenue in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997);

I The Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC), a constitutional body charged with
making recommendations about the equitable division of revenue;

1 The Secret Services Account, used to finance the activities of the National
Intelligence Agency (NIA), the South African Secret Service and certain activities of
the Detective Service of the South African Police Services (SAPS); and

1 The Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC), which is charged with assisting in
combating money laundering and strengthening financial regulation capacity.

Foreign transfer payments, made in terms of Government's international obligations, are
made to:

I Lesotho and Namibia in terms of the Common Monetary Area (CMA) Agreement;

1 The World Bank Group;

1 The Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC) Initiative of the International Monetary
Fund (IMF);

1 The African Development Bank (ADB); and

1 The Commonwealth Fund for Technical Assistance.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Lesotho and Namibia — South Africa makes rand-denominated fiscal transfers to Lesotho
and Namibia under the CMA Agreement. The CMA is a decentralised monetary union in
which monetary policy is effectively set by South Africa, but where smaller members
have the right to issue their own currencies. There are no restrictions on transfers of funds
within the CMA, and while the smaller countries' currencies are convertible into rands at
a one-to-one rate, they are not legal tender in South Africa. As the dominant member,
South Africa has agreed to share seigniorage on the basis of an estimate of the rand
currency circulating in the other two member countries. The fiscal transfers to Lesotho
and Nambia over the 2004 Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) period are,
therefore, made in respect of the sharing of seigniorage collections.
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Development Bank of Southern Africa for the micro-credit initiative — The National
Treasury has been working closely with the Development Bank of Southern Africa
(DBSA) and the Department of Trade and Industry in the design of a pilot Apex Fund for
micro-credit. The Apex Fund will extend micro-credit via Micro-Finance Intermediaries
(MFIs) to poor and low-income households and ensure that they receive sufficient
guidance and support to use the loan to improve their livelihoods. This will be a pilot fund
that will run for four years. It will look into different lending methodologies and monitor
the impact of grants and loans. It also aims to build the capacity of MFIs and rural
microenterprises to enable them to reach the very poor with basic financial services, and
to empower them to use the funding to overcome their poverty. The Fund is also an
initiative by Government to introduce an enabling environment that will focus directly on
eradicating extreme poverty and enabling the poor to access basic financial services. The
National Treasury has set aside R160,0 million between 2003/04 and 2006/07 towards
this endeavour.

World Bank Group — The Minister of Finance represents South Africa on the Board of
Governors or political executive of the World Bank Group, as South Africa is a shareholder
or member country of the Group. Over the past two years, the Minister has served as the
chairman of the Development Committee. The Committee's mandate is to advise the World
Bank Group's Board of Governors and the International Monetary Fund (IMF) on critical
international development issues and on the financial resources required to promote
economic development in developing countries. Towards the end of 2003, the Minister was
requested to serve another two-year term as chairman. A further two-year term will enable
the Minister to consolidate progress made and to advance issues critical to African
development. In particular, these include enhancing the voice and representation of
developing countries in the decision-making processes of the Bank and the Fund, and on
the New Partnership for Africa’s Development (NEPAD) development agenda.

Highly Indebted Poor Country (HIPC) initiative — As part of its international
development commitments, South Africa contributes to the HIPC initiative. The initiative
provides debt relief to the poorest countries, which are only eligible for highly
concessional assistance from the World Bank and IMF. In turn, HIPC countries have to
ensure the sustained implementation of integrated poverty reduction and economic
reform programmes. Recent reviews of HIPC show that only eight countries have reached
the HIPC completion point, namely Benin, Bolivia, Burkina Faso, Mali, Mauritania,
Mozambique, Tanzania and Uganda. In nominal terms, debt relief provided to these eight
countries amounts to US$14,6 billion. A further 27 countries, or 71,1 per cent of the 38
countries that qualify for assistance under HIPC, are receiving partial debt relief,
depending on progress made in poverty reduction and the implementation of economic
reforms. Debt relief provided to these countries amounts to approximately US$36,4
billion in nominal terms. (The Democratic Republic of Congo became eligible for debt
relief in July 2003 and will receive debt relief to the approximate nominal amount of US$
10,3 billion.) Eleven countries (or 28,9 per cent) are not yet considered eligible for debt
relief as they have not implemented the appropriate reform programmes.

African Development Bank — South Africa is a shareholder of the African Development
Fund (ADF) of the African Development Bank (ADB). In 2004/05, South Africa will
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participate in the Tenth Replenishment of the ADF. In addition, Government monitors
progress in the ADB regarding the provision of loans to parastatals on the basis of the
strength of their balance sheets and without the backing of a sovereign guarantee.

Secret Services — The Secret Services have been established to gather, collate and analyse
domestic, foreign and crime intelligence in order to identify any threat or potential threat
to the security of South Africa or its people.

In 2002/03, the South African National Academy of Intelligence was established to
develop a corps of competent intelligence professionals. The successful implementation
of the Regulation of Interception of Communication and Provision of Communication-
related Information Act (70 of 2002) will be a priority of the NIA and the Intelligence
division of the SAPS in 2004/05.

The Secret Services will be strengthening their foreign representation by opening new
offices and increasing the number of members abroad. In 2003/04, the Secret Services
had a presence in 55 countries in and participated in peacekeeping and conflict resolution
initiatives.

One of the core functions of the Intelligence division of the SAPS is to investigate and
expose individuals who are involved in organised criminal activities by using undercover
methodology. The highlight of 2003/04 was the successful infiltration and arrest of the
perpetrators in the Boeremag right-wing extremist movement. This division also focuses
on criminal organisations involved in crimes relating to drugs; the trafficking of firearms
and vehicles; corruption; commercial crime; cyber crime and child abuse.

Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation — South Africa has been a regular
contributor to the Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation (CFTC) since 1994
through the Department of Foreign Affairs. The Fund's primary function is to serve as the
development finance arm of the Commonwealth. As of 2003/04, transfers to the Fund
will be made from the National Treasury's vote.

Transfer payments

LRSI RRLE:
BTN

Name of Institution

R'000

Lesatho and Namibia

Development Bank of Southern Africa
World Bank Group

Highly Indebted Poor Countries
African Development Bank

SA Revenue Services

Financial and Fiscal Commission
Secret Services

Finansial Intelligence Centre
Commonwealith Fund

292.835.00

44.700.00
§5.436.00
3.792.007.00
12.679.00
1,771,265.00
37.000.00
2.620.00

TOTAL

6,038,542.00
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NATIONAL TREASURY

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
for the year ended 31 March 2004

Report of the Audit Committee

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2004.

1.

General

The Audit Committee's (the Committee's) function is primarily to assist the
Accounting Officer in discharging his responsibilities relative to the Public
Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) as amended. The Audit Committee's
Terms of Reference set out specific responsibilities as delegated by the
Accounting Officer to the Committee. The Committee has been so constituted
as to ensure its independence with seven external members.

The Committee has met six times for the period under review:

Audit Committee Meetings 2004

Name of member Attended Apologies Total
Mr Ignatius Sehoole (Chairperson) B 1 6
Dr Len Konar 6 0 6
Mr Johnson N Njeke 4 2 6
Mr Jeff van Rooyen ® 1 6
Prof Carolina Koornhof* 0 1 1
Ms Joyce Matlala* 0 1 1
Ms Matsotso Vuso* 1 0 1

* Prof C Koornhof, Ms J Matlala and Ms M Vuso were appointed to the Audit Committee with effect from
30 January 2004

Audit Committee responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities
arising from section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13 and
27(1)(10). The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate
formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter, has regulated its affairs
in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as
contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that
assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently
managed. From the various reports of the internal auditors, the Audit Report on
the Annual Financial Statements, the matters of emphasis and management
letter of the Auditor-General, it was noted that no significant or material non
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compliance with prescribed policies and procedures have been reported. In line
with the PFMA and the King Il Report requirements, the Internal Audit
Function provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that
the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of
the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions
and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.

However, the Committee notes with concern that the deficiencies in the controls
over contributions to medical schemes, highlighted by the Auditor-General in
his audit report, have not been resolved. The Committee has taken cognisance
of management's commitment and actions to resolve and address the
weaknesses highlighted by the Auditor-General, and in this regard, reiterates its
commitment to assist the Accounting Officer and management in their
endeavours to improve internal controls.

4. Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:

I Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting
Officer the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual
report;

1 Reviewed the Auditor-General's management letter and management's
response thereto;

1 Reviewed the accounting policies and practices; and

1 Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on
the annual financial statements and is of the opinion that the audited annual
financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General.

Ignatius Sehoole
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 11 August 2004
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General review of the state of financial affairs

The National Treasury manages its service delivery and implements its broad
priorities through the activities of its eight programmes. Ongoing fiscal reform
is aimed at promoting sustainable growth and development, poverty reduction,
enhancing budgetary transparency and improving financial management. The
Department continues to develop systems to improve the monitoring and
reporting of public expenditure and enhancing transparency and accountability,
thus contributing to improved service delivery over the medium term.

\Vote structure

The National Treasury's operational budget of R714,3 million (2002/03: R634,8
million) consists of programmes one to five: Administration; Economic
Planning and Budget Management; Asset and Liability Management; Financial
Management and Systems; and Financial Accounting and Reporting. The
National Treasury's vote is dominated by the remaining programmes, which
account for transfers and committed payments to provinces, local government
and other institutions under programmes six to eight: Provincial and Local
Government Transfers; Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds
and Other Benefits; and Fiscal Transfers. These transfers and payments
amounted to R11,879 billion for the 2003/04 financial year (2002/03: R9,722
billion), or 94 per cent of the total budget.

In 2003/04, the National Treasury's adjusted appropriation increased in total by
7 per cent as a result of R419,3 million rolled over from 2002/03, mainly for the
transfers to Lesotho and Namibia and to local government for restructuring, and
an additional amount of R400 million for additional service benefits for retiring
members of Parliament and members of provincial legislatures.

A saving of R187,6 million (2002/03: R113,5 million) was recorded against the
operational budget. This is mainly due to a saving of R43 million on personnel
and R114,3 million on professional and special services

Programme structures

Administration provides strategic management and administrative support to
the National Treasury, giving political and managerial leadership to the work of
the National Treasury. In addition, the Corporate Services division contributes
to the administration and smooth running of the National Treasury, and seeks to
create a productive and creative working environment. The administration
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programme comprises the Minister, Deputy Minister, Management and
Corporate Services subprogrammes.

Expenditure for Administration totalled R90,4 million (2002/03: 106,9 million),
a decrease of 15,4 per cent. The decrease in expenditure is mainly attributable
to savings in respect of personnel and concomitant expenditure owing to the
delay in the filling of posts, and also the saving on professional and special
services and equipment, due to the extended period in the refurbishing of the
240 Vermeulen Street Building.

In 2003/04 R9 million was rolled over from 2002/03 to finalise the
refurbishment and renovation of 240 Vermeulen Street.

Administration makes provision for a legal budget of R4 million per year to
assist in the passage and implementation of significant pieces of legislation.

Economic Planning and Budget Management provides for professional
advice and support to the Minister of Finance on economic and fiscal policy,
international financial relations, financial regulation, tax policy,
intergovernmental relations, public finance development and management of
the annual budget process. These functions are organised into four separate sub-
programmes: Public Finance; Budget Coordination; Intergovernmental
Relations; and Economic Policy.

Expenditure for Economic Planning and Budget Management totalled R105,4
million (2002/03: R86,4 million), an increase of 22 per cent, mainly as a result
of strengthening capacity in the National Treasury's policy analysis and
advisory functions and for improved coordination with provinces,
municipalities, other national departments, government agencies and
international organisations. An additional contribution to the expenditure is the
operational costs of the Amnesty Unit, chaired by Advocate Madlanga,
established in June 2003.

This programme also made provision for the new Project Development Facility
Trading Account to contribute to the funding of advisory services on public-
private partnership projects.

Asset and Liability Management is responsible for the prudent management of
Government's financial assets and liabilities, including the domestic and foreign
debt portfolios. There are five subprogrammes: Management; Asset
Management; Liability Management; Financial Operations; and Strategy and
Risk Management.

Expenditure for Asset and Liability Management totalled R51,9 million
(2002/03: R20,1 million), an increase of 158 per cent. The growth in
expenditure is mainly owing to the increase in the compensation of employees
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because of the restructuring of the division, and also includes a payment for the
settlement of debt incurred by the former Bophuthatswana government. The
increase has facilitated the expansion of the subprogramme’s functions and
posts, the implementation of new risk management approaches, the focus on
corporate governance, and the development and implementation of an
integrated information system.

Financial Management and Systems is responsible for managing and
regulating Government's supply-chain processes, implementing and
maintaining standardised financial systems, and coordinating the
implementation of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) and related
capacity-building initiatives.  This programme consists of four sub-
programmes: Management; Supply Chain Management; PFMA
Implementation and Coordination; and Financial Systems.

Expenditure for Financial Management and Systems totalled R234,3 million
(2002/03: R258 million), a decrease of 9,2 per cent. The saving was mainly
owing to a directive by the Budget Council that the process for the
acquisitioning of new systems should be delayed. The delay was necessary to
allow time to complete a coherent systems renewal strategy and to determine
and document Government's user requirements. This process was completed at
the end of the 2003/04 financial year and the systems renewal proposals are
currently in the process of being submitted for consideration by the Budget
Council. The main expenditure items included in this programme were
personnel expenditure amounting to R20,2 million and professional and special
services amounting to R208,6 million. The increased costs for the Financial
Systems subprogramme is mainly owing to the ongoing roll-out of the Basic
Accounting System.

Financial Accounting and Reporting aims to develop new, and enhance
existing accounting policies and practices to ensure compliance with Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice standards, which would enable a transition
from the cash basis of accounting, improve the timeliness, accuracy and
efficiency of financial reporting, and provide mechanisms for improved
financial accountability in the public sector. The programme consists of six
subprogrammes: Financial Reporting for National Accounts; Financial
Management Improvement; Investment of Public Monies; Service Charges
(Commercial Banks); Audit Statutory Bodies; and Contingent Liabilities:
Reinsurance Liabilities.

Expenditure for Financial Accounting and Reporting totalled R44,7 million
(2002/03: R49,8 million), a decrease of 10,2 per cent. The saving is mainly
owing to the delay in the filling of posts and incurring less than anticipated
expenditure on professional and special services. The main expenditure items
included in this programme were personnel expenditure amounting to
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R3,9 million, professional and special services amounting to R16,5 million and
transfer payments amounting to R15 million.

Provincial and Local Government Transfers manages three conditional grants
to the provincial and local spheres of government: Provincial Infrastructure
Grant (Annexure 1B); Local Government Restructuring Grant (Annexure 1A);
and Local Government Financial Management Grant (Annexure 1A).

The capital transfers for provincial infrastructure have been in existence since
2000/01. The allocation for 2003/04 has increased from R1, 950 billion in
2002/03 to R2, 534 billion.

The Local Government Financial Management and Restructuring Grants were
introduced in 2000/01 to fund financial management reforms and restructuring
initiatives in municipalities. An amount of R704,8 million was transferred to
133 municipalities in 2003/04.

The Local Government Restructuring Grant is a demand-driven grant with
municipalities providing benchmarks and conditions against which they will be
measured. Disbursements are based on achieving outputs. Many first time
applications from eligible municipalities were of a poor quality and standard.
An extension of the deadline for submission to 31 July 2003 resulted in vastly
improved applications. After an intensive and lengthy evaluation and review
process, new multi-year agreements of R130 million were signed with Emfuleni
Municipality and Buffalo City Municipality, respectively, of which R40 million
each was transferred in 2003/04. In addition, a total of R45 million once-off
funding was approved and transferred to Matjhabeng, Sol Plaatje, Polokwane
and uMhlatuze municipalities, while interim funding of R160 million was
approved and transferred to all the metropolitan municipalities, excluding the
City of Johannesburg, which joined the programme in 2000/01.

The Local Government Financial Management Grant is provided to
municipalities to support broad financial reform in the local government sphere
as part of the implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act.

In 2000 a pilot project was started, to develop the principles in selected
municipalities. The number of participating municipalities grew from the initial
seven in 2000/01 to 133 in 2003/04. National roll-out began in 2003/04 and by
the end of 2004/05 all municipalities will be participating in the programme.
The programme provides for the gearing of international support and direct
allocations to municipalities.

This amounted to R50 million, R60 million, R154 million and R211 million in
2000/01, 2001/02, 2002/03 and 2003/04 respectively. During 2003,
international financial advisers were placed in selected municipalities to
support the implementation of the reforms. Furthermore, to facilitate skills
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development in financial management, municipalities have used the grant to
appoint more than 160 municipal finance management interns.

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits
provide for the payment of pension and other benefits in the public sector.

1 Civil Pensions and Contributions to Funds provides for the payment of
benefits out of pension and other funds to beneficiaries of various public
sector bodies in terms of different statutes, collective bargaining agree-
ments and other commitments.

1 Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the payment of military
pension benefits and medical claims arising from treatment for disability,
medical assistive-devices, and other related expenses, in keeping with
statutory commitments.

This programme, excluding fiscal transfers, carries the largest expenditure
burden on the National Treasury's \Vote, growing from R1,896 billion in
2002/03 to R2,288 bhillion in 2003/04. Special pensions payments increased
after 2001/02 as a result of the acceleration of the adjudication of applications
because of the appointment of a full-time Special Pensions Board and a Special
Pensions Review Board.

An additional R400 million was allocated to the Civil Pensions and
Contributions to Funds subprogramme during the 2003 Adjusted Estimates for
the additional service benefits for retiring members of Parliament and members
of provincial legislatures. The saving was mainly due to Pensions
Administration receiving fewer medical claims and processing less special
pension payments.

Fiscal Transfers makes funds available to public authorities and other
institutions in terms of various legal provisions governing the financial relations
between Government and the particular authority or institution, including
international development institutions of which Government is a member.

Domestic transfers under this programme were made to:

1 The Development Fund of the Development Bank of Southern Africa for the
micro-credit initiative;

I The South African Revenue Service, which is responsible for collection of
revenue in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997);

1 The Financial and Fiscal Commission, a constitutional body charged with
making recommendations about the equitable division of revenue;

I The Secret Services Account, used to finance the activities of the National

Intelligence Agency, the South African Secret Service, and certain activities

of the Detective Service of the South African Police Service; and

The Financial Intelligence Centre, which is charged with assisting in
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combatting money laundering and strengthening financial regulation
capacity.

Foreign transfer payments, made in terms of Government's international

obligations, were made to:

1 Lesotho and Namibia in terms of the Common Monetary Area Agreement;

1 The World Bank Group;

1 The Highly Indebted Poor Countries Initiative of the International Monetary
Fund;

1 The African Development Bank; and

1 Commonwealth Fund for Technical Assistance.

Fiscal transfers make up 49,9 per cent of the National Treasury's expenditure,
with the bulk of the transfers made to the South African Revenue Service and
the Secret Services. Expenditure increased from R5,174 billion in 2002/03 to
R6,040 billion in 2003/04 as a result of additional allocations to the Secret
Services and South African Revenue Service.

Revenue received included administrative fees arising from loans being
covered by guarantees and costs associated with Government's issuing of
guarantees, sales of departmental publications and commission on insurance
premiums deducted from employees' salaries. Departmental receipts also
included interest on Government deposits and dividends received from the
South African Reserve Bank and interest from tax and loans accounts from the
four major commercial banks.

The receipts from sale of capital assets include funds received from Secret
Services for the sale of land. Financial transactions include the repayment of
loans by the Auditor-General and recovery of departmental debt from previous
years. All revenue is transferred to the National Revenue Fund.

For the year under review, departmental receipts amounting to R2,131 billion
were received and R2, 138 billion transferred to the National Revenue Fund.

Services rendered by the National Treasury

The National Treasury is in essence a financial and administrative service
department, and as such does not render goods or services directly to the public.

Capacity constraints

Driven by the shortage of skills in the economic and financial fields in the
labour market, the focus for 2003/04 for the National Treasury was to develop
these skills internally. This was done through the National Treasury's
education, training and development strategy that focuses on enhancing

employees' skills at all levels. To this end, the National Treasury implemented ’th ’K’X‘ ’K!‘%‘T%’Zw&r
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an internship programme, which is aimed at developing the young labour force
with financial and economic skills. The interns will be equipped with the skills
that the National Treasury will need in the future.

During 2003/04, the focus was also on enhancing the human resources
processes, particularly the recruitment process, to attract employees with the
required competencies. The new performance management system was also
implemented during this period to further determine the key deliverables and
competencies for employees to deliver on the mandate of the National Treasury.
The focus is on creating a culture of high performance.

Utilisation of donor funds

Local and foreign aid assistance received in cash during the year amounted to
R7,1 million (2002/03: R6,8 million) relating to various projects. Expenditure
incurred amounted to R5,7 million (2002/03: R5,9 million). Assistance in kind
in 2003/04 amounted to an estimated R46,1 million (2002/03: R30,9 million).

Public entities

A number of entities report to the Minister of Finance through arms-length
governance arrangements. This allows reporting institutions the autonomy that
is required to meet their mandates, while their links to the Ministry ensure
strategic alignment with Government's policy goals. These entities are
responsible for preparing their own annual reports, which are tabled separately
in Parliament (Annexure 1C and 1D). These public entities are as follows:

South African Revenue Service

The South African Revenue Service, a Schedule 3 entity reporting to the
Minister of Finance. Within the context of Government's priorities, the South
African Revenue Service is mindful of its broader role and is fully committed
to ensuring adequate revenue collection to support these priorities.

The Development Bank of Southern Africa

The Development Bank of Southern Africa, a Schedule 2 major public entity, is
governed by the Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997). The
Development Bank of Southern Africa is a development finance institution
wholly owned by the South African Government. Its mandate is to promote
sustainable development through funding physical, social and economic
infrastructure.
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Financial Services Board

The Financial Services Board is a statutory body in terms of the Financial
Services Board Act (97 of 1990). It exercises control over the activities of non-
banking financial services and acts in an advisory capacity to the Minister of
Finance. The Board is financed by the financial services industry, with no
contribution from Government. The Board supervises those institutions and
services, in terms of 16 parliamentary Acts, which entrust regulatory functions
to the Registrar of Long- and Short-term Insurance, Friendly Societies, Pension
Funds, Collective Investment Schemes, Stock Exchanges and Financial
Markets and Financial Services Providers. Functions include regulatory control
over insider trading; trust property held by certain institutions; and central
security depositories responsible for the safe custody of securities. The Board
is also responsible for the financial supervision of the Road Accident Fund.

Public Investment Commissioners

The Public Investment Commissioners is a statutory body governed in terms of
the Public Investment Commissioners Act (45 of 1984). The Minister is
responsible for appointing the board, which oversees the activities of the
secretariat and its investment portfolio. The Public Investment Commissioners
is effectively self-funded. The Public Investment Commissioners invests and
manages surplus funds on behalf of various public-sector bodies.

Financial Intelligence Centre

The Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001) (FICA) provides for the
formation of the Financial Intelligence Centre, the aim of which is to track
irregular financial practices, especially the laundering of the proceeds of crime.

FICA and the regulations dealing with the duties of identification, record
keeping and implementing internal rules took effect on 30 June 2003. In
summary, this legislation places an obligation on financial and other institutions
to verify that they know who their clients are and to keep proper records of their
clients' identities. These provisions are aimed at, among others, establishing
control measures within these institutions to protect them from abuse by
criminals who wish to conceal or disguise their proceeds of crime. These
measures form part of a broader objective to combat money laundering and
large-scale criminality. The Financial Intelligence Centre is taking active steps
to create awareness and provide guidance to accountable institutions,
supervisory bodies and law-enforcement authorities.

Considerable progress continues to be made in implementing FICA, which
envisages the development of an anti-money laundering environment in South
Africa, largely in accordance with international standards set by the Financial
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Action Task Force. South Africa became a member of the Financial Action Task
Force in June 2003. South Africa is a member of the Eastern and Southern
Africa Anti-Money Laundering Group (ESAAMLG) and actively participates
in its programmes. In addition, the Financial Intelligence Centre became a
member of the Egmont Group of Financial Intelligence Units in July 2003 after
an assessment of the Financial Intelligence Centre was conducted.

South African Special Risks Insurance Association (SASRIA)

SASRIA Limited was established in terms of the Conversion of SASRIA Act
(134 of 1998) and is listed as a Schedule 3B public entity reporting to
Government. It is a short-term insurance company that provides cover for
damages caused by politically malicious acts, riots, strikes and public disorders.

Accounting Standards Board

The Accounting Standards Board was established in the latter part of 2002 and
is mainly responsible for the implementation of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice in Government. During 2003/04 progress was made in
developing a Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements. In addition, several draft standards were issued for public comment.

Trading Entity

Project Development Facility

The Project Development Facility (PDF) is a newly established trading entity
managed by the Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit of the National Treasury.

The PDF's role is to assist with the costs relating to transaction advisors under
the terms of the contract between a department or public entity bound by the
Public Finance Management Act and the transaction advisor. After the financial
close of the PPP procured by the institution using the services of the transaction
advisers, the disbursed funds are recovered from the successful private party
bidder.

The PDF policy board establishes the PDF priorities on an annual basis. The
PDF will fund a range of small, medium and large projects across all sectors,
although priority will be given to projects in the social sectors.

Other organisations to whom transfer payments have been
made

As mentioned previously, the National Treasury, through its Fiscal Transfers
programme, made funds available to public authorities and other institutions in
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terms of various legal provisions governing the financial relations between
Government and the particular authority or institution, including international
development institutions of which Government is a member (Annexure 1C and
1D).

Events after the reporting date

Payments to the value of R99 million (2002/03 R101,1 million) were processed
during April 2004, which relate to the 2003/04 financial year. These payments
are not included in the Annual Financial Statements for the 2003/04 financial
year, which are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting.

Progress with financial management improvement, includ-
ing corporate governance arrangements

The National Treasury has a fully functional Audit Committee (AC) and a Risk
Management Committee (RMC). Both Committees operate within approved
written terms of reference and meet regularly during the year. The membership
of the AC was increased from five to seven external members during the year.

Regular risk assessments are conducted in conjunction with the outsourced
internal audit function (IAF) in terms of the National Treasury's risk
management framework. Risks identified are documented and reported to the
Accounting Officer and are monitored by the RMC and AC. The IAF operates
in terms of an approved audit plan, and focuses on risks identified during the
risk assessment process. The IAF reports are submitted to the Accounting
Officer, the RMC and the AC, and recommendations made by the IAF are
monitored continuously to ensure that any identified control weaknesses are
addressed properly.

The National Treasury has developed a comprehensive financial manual to
address controls relating to financial matters.

Internal controls and asset management procedures have been implemented.
Control over assets has been addressed by developing an electronic asset
register and tracking system to enhance the control over all departmental assets.

Furthermore, as part of its ongoing commitment to improving the control
environment, during the latter part of the 2003/04 financial year, the
Department undertook a review of the general controls pertaining to its
information system environment. During this review, the Department found
that certain weaknesses existed concerning the information system
environment. Corrective steps have been taken to address these control
weaknesses.
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The National Treasury continuously reviews and enhances its progress to ensure
compliance with the Public Finance Management Act. Enhancements that were
undertaken during the period under review were as follows:

1 Review of the AC and the RMC terms of reference;

1 Implementation and communication of the risk management framework;

1 Review of the Fraud Prevention Plan;

1 Initiation of a review of the National Treasury's procurement processes and
related matters to be in line with the Framework for Supply Chain
Management and related regulations; and

I Review of the financial delegations in terms of Section 44 of the Public
Finance Management Act and amendment to support the National Treasury's
structures.

Planned activities for the 2004/05 period are as follows:

1 The development of a financial procedural manual;

I The enhancement of the Risk Management Framework and related matters;
and

I The implementation of a revised Supply Chain Management policy, which
is aligned with the Framework for Supply Chain Management.

Performance information

Divisional heads report to the Director-General on a regular basis on progress
made with regard to the programme delivery and measurable objectives as
contained in the National Treasury's strategic plan.
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AUDIT ASSIGNMENT

The financial statements as set out on pages 100 to 151, for the year ended 31
March 2004, have been audited in terms of section 188 of the Constitution of
the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996), read with sections 3
and 5 of the Auditor-General Act, 1995 (Act No. 12 of 1995). These financial
statements, the maintenance of effective control measures and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations are the responsibility of the accounting officer.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, based
on the audit.

NATURE AND SCOPE

The audit was conducted in accordance with Statements of South African
Auditing Standards. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit includes:

1 examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements,

1 assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and

1 evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Furthermore, an audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence
supporting compliance in all material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations which came to my attention and are applicable to financial matters.

I believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

AUDIT OPINION

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects,
the financial position of the National Treasury at 31 March 2004 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
prescribed accounting practice and in the manner required by the Public
Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999).

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying the audit opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the
following matter:
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4.1. Control over medical expenditure

In my previous report | identified various weaknesses in the controls
over "Contribution to medical schemes™ included in Note 10.1 to the
financial statements. Weaknesses in controls over this expenditure
still existed. In addition to service level agreements not entered into
with major service providers, approved policy and procedure manuals
were not in place and system information was not always supported
by appropriate documentation. The total expenditure relating to med-
ical expenditure amounted to R1 259 073 000. Alternative audit pro-
cedures were performed to verify the figures in the financial state-
ments.

FOLLOW UP OF SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts made seven recommendations in
their eighty-second report, 2003. These were all satisfactory resolved by the
department.

SPECIAL PENSIONS BOARD

In terms of section 7 of the Special Pensions Act, 1996 (Act No. 69 of 1996) the
Special Pensions Board (SPB) determines who qualifies for benefits and what
benefits they qualify for. However, in terms of section 9 of the said Act the
department is responsible for the payment of benefits to beneficiaries who
qualify in terms of the said Act. These payments amounted to R215 129 000
during the year under review (2003: R273 085 000).

The SPB is the accounting authority and is therefore audited separately from the
department. The validity of the said amounts will therefore be established
during the audit of the financial statements of the SPB and reported on
separately.

SECRET SERVICES

Included in Programme 8 of the department's vote is an amount of
R1 771 265 000 (2003: R1 328 668 000) which has been transferred to the
secret services account in terms of the Secret Services Act, 1978 (Act No. 56 of
1978). This amount has not been subject to this audit but separate reports on
the Security Services Special Account, established in terms of section 1 of the
Security Services Special Account Act, 1969 (Act No. 81 of 1969), as well as
the departmental Account for Secret Funds regarding money transferred to these
departments in terms of section 2 of the Secret Services Account Act, 1978, will

be tabled in Parliament in due course. | ,K/‘P m %l%‘\z‘@y(&r
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AND RELATED MATTERS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies,
which have been applied consistently in all material respects, unless otherwise indicated.
However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed
to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (as amended by Act 29
of 1999), the Treasury Regulations for departments and constitutional institutions issued
in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue (Act 7 of 2003).

1.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of
accounting, except where stated otherwise. The modified cash basis constitutes
the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items.
Under the cash basis of accounting transactions and other events are recognised
when cash is received or paid. Under the accrual basis of accounting
transactions and other events are recognised when incurred and not when cash
is received or paid.

Revenue

Voted funds are the amounts appropriated to a department in accordance with
the final budget known as the Adjusted Estimates of National Expenditure.
Unexpended voted funds are surrendered to the National Revenue Fund.

Interest and dividends received are recognised on receipt of the funds, and no
accrual is made for interest or dividends receivable from the last receipt date to
the end of the reporting period. They are recognised as revenue in the financial
statements of the Department and then transferred to the National Revenue
Fund.

Donor aid

Donor aid is recognised in the income statement in accordance with the cash
basis of accounting.

Current expenditure

Current expenditure is recognised in the income statement when the payment is
made.

Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
1 the overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; or
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1 expenditure that was not made in accordance with the purpose of a vote or,
in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the purpose of the
main division.

Unauthorised expenditure is treated as a current asset in the balance sheet until
such expenditure is recovered from a third party or funded from future voted
funds.

Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure,
incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of any
applicable legislation, including:

I The Public Finance Management Act; and

1 The State Tender Board Act, or any regulations made in terms of this Act.

Irregular expenditure is treated as expenditure in the income statement.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain
and which would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure must be recovered from a responsible
official (a debtor account should be raised), or from the vote if responsibility
cannot be determined. It is treated as a current asset in the balance sheet until
such expenditure is recovered from the responsible official or funded from
future voted funds.

Debts written off

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written off are
limited to the amount of surplus funds available to the Department. No
provision is made for irrecoverable amounts.

Capital expenditure

Expenditure for physical items on hand on 31 March 2004, to be consumed in
the following financial year, is written off in full when the items are paid and
accounted for as expenditure in the income statement.

Investments

Non-current investments are shown at cost and adjustments are made only
where, in the opinion of the accounting officer, the investment is impaired.
Where an investment has been impaired, it is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the impairment is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the income statement.
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Investments in controlled entities

Investments in controlled entities are those entities where the reporting entity

has the ability to exercise any of the following powers to govern the financial

and operating policies of the entity in order to obtain benefits from its activities:

1 To appoint or remove all, or the majority of, the members of that entity's
board of directors or equivalent governing body;

1 To appoint or remove the entity's chief executive officer;

I To cast all, or the majority of, the votes at meetings of that board of directors
or equivalent governing body; or

1 To control all, or the majority of, the voting rights at a general meeting of
that entity.

Investments in controlled entities are shown at cost.

Receivables

Receivables are not normally recognised under the cash basis of accounting.
However, receivables included in the balance sheet arise from cash payments
that are recoverable from another party.

Receivables for services delivered are not recognised in the balance sheet as a
current asset or as income in the income statement, as the financial statements
are prepared on a cash basis of accounting, but are disclosed separately as part
of the disclosure notes to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements.

Payables

Payables are not normally recognised under the cash basis of accounting.
However, payables included in the balance sheet arise from cash receipts that
are due to the National Revenue Fund or another party.

Provisions

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are not
normally recognised under the cash basis of accounting, but are disclosed
separately as part of the disclosure notes to enhance the usefulness of the
financial statements.

Lease commitments

Lease commitments for the period remaining from the reporting date until the
end of the lease contract are disclosed as part of the disclosure notes to the
financial statements. These commitments are not recognised in the balance
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sheet as a liability or as expenditure in the income statement as the financial
statements are prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

Accruals

This amount represents goods/services that have been delivered, but no invoice
has been received from the supplier at the reporting date, or an invoice has been
received but remains unpaid at the reporting date. These amounts are not
recognised in the balance sheet as a liability or as expenditure in the income
statement as the financial statements are prepared on a cash basis of accounting,
but are however disclosed as part of the disclosure notes.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed in the income statement
in the reporting period when the payment is made. Short-term employee
benefits, that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation, are deferred
until they can be reliably measured and then expensed. Details of these benefits
and the potential liabilities are disclosed as a disclosure note to the financial
statements and are not recognised in the income statement.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when the payment is
made.

Retirement benefits

The Department provides retirement benefits for its employees through a
defined benefit plan for government employees. These benefits are funded by
both employer and employee contributions. Employer contributions to the fund
are expensed when money is paid to the fund. No provision is made for
retirement benefits in the financial statements of the Department. Any potential
liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue
Fund and not in the financial statements of the employer department.

Medical benefits

The Department provides medical benefits for its employees. These benefits
are funded by employer and/or employee contributions. Employer
contributions to the fund are expensed when money is paid to the fund. No
provision is made for medical benefits in the financial statements of the
Department.
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Post-retirement medical benefits for retired members are expensed when the
payment is made to the fund.

Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve represents an amount equal to the value of the
investments and/or loans capitalised for the first time in the previous financial
year. On disposal, repayment or recovery, such amounts are transferable to the
National Revenue Fund.

Recoverable revenue

Recoverable revenue represents payments made and recognised in the income
statement as an expense in previous years, which have now become recoverable
from a debtor owing to non-performance in accordance with an agreement.
Repayments are transferred to the National Revenue Fund as and when the
repayment is received.

Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
changes in presentation in the current year. The comparative figures shown in
these financial statements are limited to the figures shown in the previous year's
audited financial statements and such other comparative figures that the
Department may reasonably have available for reporting
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2004

1. Detail of current and capital transfers as per Appropriation
Act (after Virement)

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 9 (Transfer Payments) and
Annexure 1A - 1D to the annual financial statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts
voted (after Virement)

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to
the annual financial statements.

3. Detail of special functions (theft and losses)

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in note 11.3 (Details
of Special Functions (theft and losses)) to the annual financial statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted
(after Virement)

4.1 Per programme:

Programme 1: Administration

The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services and Equipment, was due to the
extended period in the refurbishing of the 240 \ermeulen Street
Building and expenditure will continue to be incurred in the new
financial year. An amount of R5,9 million is expected to be rolled over
to fund the refurbishment of four additional floors in 240 Vermeulen
Street.

Programme 2: Economic Planning and Budget Management
The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in the use of
consultants in this programme.

Programme 3: Asset and Liability Management

The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in the use of
consultants in this programme and less expenditure on legal costs and
maintenance of systems than expected. An amount of R12,6 million is

’KN» ’K“S a ‘\fa“z‘fx ‘5‘/&3\ expected to be rolled over to review Treasury operations of state-
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2004
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owned entities as approved by the Minister (R10 million) and to

fund the finalisation of systems development (R2,6 million).

Programme 4: Financial Management and Systems

The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in
expenditure for maintenance of systems and the delay in
refurbishment of SITA due to a change in accommodation needs. An
amount of R19,9 million is expected to be rolled over for the

finalisation of the refurbishment of SITA.

Programme 5: Financial Accounting and Reporting

The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in

expenditure for advisory and facilitation services.

Programme 6: Provincial and Local Government Transfers

The variance of R45 million on the Local Government Restructuring
Grant is due to a delay in funds transferred to the Mangaung
Municipality that did not meet its 3rd quarter milestone for 2003/04.
This amount is expected to be rolled over to the 2004/05 financial

year.

Programme 7: Civil and Military Pensions

The saving is mainly due to Pensions Administration receiving fewer

medical aid claims and processing less special pension payments.

Programme 8: Fiscal Transfers

National Treasury decided not to purchase additional shares in the
African Development Bank in the current financial year, resulting in
a saving of R44 million. Further savings occurred due to smaller
transfers to Lesotho and Namibia for Common Monetary Area
payments (R12 million), and smaller payments to SA Contributions to
Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC) due to rand appreciation (R10

million).
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2004

4.2 Per standard item:

Personnel

The saving was mainly due to posts not being filled during the
financial year. The vacancy rate at 31 March 2004 was approximately

40%.

Administrative

The saving was mainly due to posts not being filled during the

financial year.

Inventories

The saving was mainly due to posts not being filled during the

financial year.

Equipment

The saving was mainly due to lower than anticipated expenditure on

equipment and the extended period of the refurbishment.

Professional and Special Services

The saving was mainly due to a directive by the Budget Council that
the process for the acquisitioning of new systems should be delayed.
This delay was necessary to allow time to complete a coherent
systems renewal strategy and to determine and document
Government's user requirements. This process was completed at the
end of the 2003/04 financial year and the systems renewal proposals
are currently in the process of being submitted for consideration by

the Budget Council.

Transfer payments

The saving is attributed to R45 million on the Local Government
Restructuring Grant due to the delay in funds transferred to the
Mangaung Municipality that did not meet its 3rd quarter milestone for
2003/04. National Treasury decided not to purchase additional shares
in the African Development Bank in the current financial year,
resulting in a saving of R44 million. Further savings occured due to
smaller transfers to Lesotho and Namibia for Common Monetary
Area payments (R12 million), and smaller payments to SA
Contributions to Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC) due to rand

appreciation (R10 million).

Miscellaneous

The saving is mainly due to Pensions Administration receiving fewer
medical aid claims and processing less special pension payments.
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INCOME STATEMENT (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE)
for the year ended 31 March 2004

REVEMNUE
Woted funds

Annual Appropngion
Apprapnation for unauthonsed expenditure

Other ravenue to be surrenderad to the reverus fund
Local and foreign aid assistance (inc uding RDP funds;

TOTAL REVENUE

EXFENDITURE
Current

FPersennel

Admin.straive

Inventones

Maghinery and equiprent

Professional and special services

Transfer paymenls

Mizcelancous

Special functions: authonsed (osses

Local and fereign aid assistance orciuding RO funds)
Uraulkonsed expenditure approved

TOTAL CLULRRENT EXPENDITURE

Capital

Machinery and Equipment

Land and baildings

Transzfer paymenis

Local and foreign wid assistance (inguding ADE funds)

TOTAL CAFITAL EXPENDITURE

TATAL EXFENDITURE

NET S5URPLUS FOR THE YEAR

RECONEZILIATION OF NET SURPLUS FCR THE YEAR
Vaoted Funds ta be surrerdered to the National Revenus Fund
Other Revenue to be surrendered to the National Revenuve Fund

Local and fore:gn sid azgistance ¢ nciudivg RDP lunds)

HET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Note

[ o+

W Dm0

L R ]

o]

A+B

15
16

119

2003/04 200203
Reo0 R'000
12,593,206 10,460,843
125973 206 10356 G54
- 104,189
2131 387 1,485,043
7,062 6,785
14,731,745 11,852,651
132000 107 276
20,858 27,768
2349 2,595
1,657 1,580
326,107 341,236
5828770 4810664
2,276,450 1 B75.341
1040 242
5,487 5,581
. 104,180
8,709,538 7,284,132
15,617 29,428
- 5,800
3,374,385 2.837.472
208 288
3.390.2M 2672787
12,099,759 9,956,919
2,631,986 1,995,732
498,743 508,794
2131 387 1.485.043
1,358 895
2 631,986 1,995.732
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)
at 31 March 2004

2003704 200203
ASSETS Note R R0 R-000
Current agsets Ao, 544 S58,.608
Unauthonsed and frutless and wastetul expenditure 12 167 167
Cask and cash equivalents i3 257814 833023
Receivables 14 43,558 22712
Lecal and foresgn aid assistance (rcluding ROP funds) receivable from
the RDP fundidonars 3 4 845
TOTAL ASSETS A 301,544 556, BOR
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities a01,529 556,773
Waoted funds te be surrendered ta the National Revenue Fund 15 244 240 505,734
Gther Revenue funds to be surrendered I the Naliznal Revenus Fund i6 22,229 28038
Revetue to be surrendered: Civil and Miltary Pensions iT 18 i2
Reverue to be surrendered: Special Fensions ia 32 2%
Civil and Military Pengions i% 10,371 3419
Speaal Fensicnsz 20 18,118 3522
Payables el 7508 10 365
Lecal and forcign aid assistance (ircluding RDP funds) repayable 1o the
ROF fundidaonars 3 1.010 406
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8 301,529 oS58, 773
HET ASSETS A-B 15 35
Represanted by: 15 35
Recoverable revenye 15 35
TOTAL 15 35

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE8
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

2003104 200203
Mate R'000 RO00
Racovaralile ravanug
Opening balarce 38 a7
Transler oy Revenue Fund 16 {24) 63
Debts raised 4 3
Closing balance 15 33
121 '
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2004

2003104 2002193
Note R'004 RQG0

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Met cash iow generated by cperating activities 22 2.765.638 4 G667, 339

Cash {utilised) ! generated to (increass) ! decrease working capital 23 {4,204} 2,953

Yoted funds and Revenue Funds surrenderad 24 (2.B47 988) {1,832.488)

Unauthorised expenditure approved 12 = 104,139

Lecal and foreign aid assistance (ineluding ROF funds) 3 1,396 895
Met cash flow available from operating activities 3114802 2,942 350
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,390,011} (2,872,498}

Capital expenditure (3,380,011} 12 BF2 498
Met cash flows fram oparating and investing activites {275,209} 270,392
Net [dacraagelincreasa in cazh and cash equivalants {275,205} 270,292
Cash and cash aquivalentz at beginning of period 533,023 262,631
Cash and eash equivatents at end of period 13 257.814 533,023

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1

1.2

for the year ended 31 March 2004

Annual Appropriation

Included are unds apprapriated in terrms of the Apprapriation Acl far National Depadments (Voted Funds):

Total Actual Taotal
o P Variance s
Pragrammes Appropriation Appropriation e Appropriation
200304 Recalved 200203
R'00G R'O0G R'000 R0
Adrministralon 111,880 111.889 1) 126.457
Economic planning and budget manage ment 125,263 123,262 mn 113,647
Asget angd liability management 63 831 58,831 - 32,268
Financial ranagement ans syslems 343850 273,249 65,0013 243572
Financial acgounting and reporting f3.323 3,323 - 116,807
Provingra! and [ocal govemmant ransters 3284318 3264318 - 2 480.00C
Ciwil and miiitary pens ons and cther benelits 2,445 56859 2,304 568 [ 143, 000 15915635
Fizcal lransfers B 143152 G103.152 {43 000; 0326264
TOTAL 12,581 296 12 338,29] 1255, 003 10,386 654
Pleaza refer to the Mates to the Aporopriation Statament for explanation of materia’ variznces and iollover regaasts.
2003/04 2002/03
R000 R'00C
Othar ravenod i be surrendared to the reveniug fund
Deascription
Chegues witten backistale cheques 180 135
Proceeds from sale of equipment P08 =
Proceeds from sale of land and suildings 1,528 .
Divicdends received (SARB} 1701664 i
Interesl received 1 835,805 1.450 547
Amnesty penalties 100,000 -
Fees for guaranteed governmen' [oans 12115 =
Revenug pravipus financial year 3457 2,278
Garage renl H 38
Commiszion on ingurance 25 24
Retovery of Igans, Alditor-General 3,000 5,000
Ciher miscellaneous reverue 1634 15,582
Tatal revenue collacted 2,131,387 1,485,041
Local and farsign aid assistance {Including RDP funds}
Assiglance received in cash QOpaning . Expandiiura Closing
Name of Donor and purpose Balance Current Capitzl Balance
Loczl
Fundz not uhlised pror year - Cepartmental Aids
Programme a1 - 25 - =N
Foreign
Intematipnal  Development  Co-goperation - Capadity
Bulding 10 - - - 1D
Technical Agsistanca Linit (ELTAT) 188 2,556 2.807 - -
Financial Management Imgroverment Frogramme {FMIP) =1l 2177 8532 47 a41
Intematipnal  Develgpment  Cogperation Support
Programme (EUIDC) 4E5 1.700 1.B51 162 152
Japan Devslopment Corporation Information  System
ICADCIS) - 75 3L.] - 7
Development Corporation Infonmal on Report (DCR ) - 114 114 - .
{3560) 7062 5457 08 1,006
200304 2002/03
R'000 R'000
Analys|s of balance
Amounts owing by the RDF fundidoncrs 4 1846)
Angunts ewing to Mg ROP fundidonoes 1010 495
1008 {A50)
IVAVRVAVAVAYS
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

200304 200203
R'OOC R'000
3.2 Assistance receivad in kind
Foraign aid assistanca
USAID - Technical azsistant - 18,066
SAID - Suppors the Governments eferts o formulate and coordinate grewth promoting
econaemic palicies 35413 .
Germar: South African Develupmedt Ceaperation - Tecarical assiglanl - 8427
Departmen’ for International Development {OF 15} . 4 408
Departmen:  for  Intgrmabonal  Developmernt - Impioved  implementation of  econsrc
managemeni for peverty elimination 3833
European Urion - Intcinaticnal fechnical assistant 1.6%3
INDF Sustzinable Human Development - Tecqrical assistance 1o 1D 1.151 -
Total foreign ald assistance received In kind 45,095 20,901
4 Fersonnel
41 Currant axpanditure
Basic salary ¢oss &4 141 68,260
FPensicn contributions 11,682 G674
hedical aid centiibulons 4112 3.797
Cither salary related costs 13 065 25 545
Total persannel costs 132,000 107,276
Average number of employess 484 480
5 Invaniarias
51 Inventories purchased during the year
Gowernment printing 1039 3049
Mewssapers. magazines & manuals 533 578
Fublicalions/printing: non government printers 1.254 2285
Stationery 1.712 1.784
Camputer matareal 1263 1.815
Training material i 27
Claaning detergerts & material 180 13
Cperating material 135 a2
Qther 2322 &
Total cost of inventories B,348 0,695
é Machinery and equipment
Current {Rentals, maintenance and sund-y} 1.657 1.580
Capilal g1 15617 25,426
Total machinery and equipment 17,274 21,006
&1 Capital machinery and aquipment analysed as follows:
Computer equiprmenl 4 854 8744
Furriture and otfice equipnent oL 13373
Qther machinary and equipment 4537 5.056
Transport 468 373
Security equipment 2122 .
Computer soFware T13 1.6880
15617 29,426
T Land and bulldings
Capial expenditure 7.1 - 5.EG00
Total land and buildings = 5,600
74 Capital land and building expenditura analysaed as follows:
Maon-res denbial buldings - 5 500
5,600

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE8
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

2003504 202403
ROO00 R'00G
] Professional and speclal gervices
51 Current expenditure
Audrors remunarabion h.EZ6 5,049
Regulanty 4527 36
Ferformarce SBd 2
Other audits. 1415 1131
Consu tants and advisory semvizes 81 14° 25035
Commissians and committecs 395 192
Comiputer Senices a7 723 208479
Oiher 140.22" S8.421
Total professicnal and special services 326,107 341,236
a Transfer payments
Condil onal grar tranz’ers Anngxure 1A & 18 3230318 2258230
Transfers ta public enbibes and i1situtions Armexure 10 3 845 540 3.54% 044
Oiher lransters Armexure 10 2.218.201 1.641.822
Total transfer payments 9,303,165 T.448,136
Analyzis of transfer payments
Capta 3,374,385 2637 472
Curren: 5,828,770 4,610 654
0 303,165 TA48.136
10 Miscellansous
101 Current expendlture
G fts. denatiars and sponserships 0z 24 -
Coeninbutian to medical schemes 1.259.073 1227712
Compensatior: Injury ar duty 182,235 178232
Pension payments: Specal Pensions 215129 273085
Pension paymenis: Civil and Military Pensians 602 385 185673
Sonvicen znargos 7 Ead 5634
Total miscellamecus expendture 2,476,450 1875311
102 Glifts, donations and sponsorships pald in cash by the Cepartment
Nature of glhs, donatlons and spansorships
Current
Corparate qifls 24 -
24 -
11 Spechal functions: Authorised losses
Oriher maternal lossas wr lan off in ingeme statemeant 111 2121 T7d
Debts writen off 112 Sa ¢8
1,050 802
111 Other material Ioszes written off in income statement
Mature of loases
Yehicle accidenis et} 2
Cash 1 -
Miscellareous 975 TiZ
996 TT4
112 Cebts written off
Mature of debis writtan off
Salary overpayments 18 22
State quarattees 23 1
Bursary datit - 1
her 13 4
5d 28
11.3 DOetalls of special functlions (theft and lossas)
Per proegramme
Adrrinistralion 487 a
Econame Planniig and Budget Managerart & =
Asset and Liabilily Management 3
Financial Management, Systems a3 Financ al Reporting for Matioral Accourts 1 E
Civil and mi itary pens ons and cther benelits 254 Fir
1,050 802

(VRPRVAVEVEY)
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

Unauthorised and fruitiess and wasteful expenditure disallowed

Lnauthansed sxpendiure

Reconclliation of unautherised expendlture balance

Openirg ba'ance
Appreved by Pas iament
Closing balance

Unauthorised expenditure
Incident

Consultants

Printing and administrative costs

Cash and cash equivalants
Paymaster General Account
.ash an hand

Recelvables - current
Amazunts owing &y other departments
Staff debtors

121

Disciplinary steps taken / criminal proceedings

Mane
Mane

Cutstanding debl: Civil and military pensions

Ciher debtars

Amaunts receivade: Civ | and military pensions

Amounts receivadle: Special pensions

Disallowances: Civil and military pensions

Disallowances: Special pensicns
Advances

Annexure &
14.3

14.4

14 =
14 2

Amaunts of B1.3 million (2003 . R2 3 millicn) included abeve may not be recowerabde, buk has not been written off in the income slatement.

Age analysis

Less than one year
O [0 TWo YEars
Bore than two years

Staff debtors
Depadmental debt
Ciher debt

Other debtors

Claims recoverable:

Telkom

General

Govammeant Employses Persion Fund

General accounts:

Slate guarantess

Thelt and lasses

ACE recalls PERSAL
Bititary pension paymenls
Disallewances

Ciher

Advances

Mature of advances

Travel and subsstence advances
Advance: Eastern Cape - GG Transpen
Advances: Special zencions
Advances. Civl and military persians

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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2003/04 2002103
R'000 R'000

167 167

167 167

167 104,356

(104.188)

167 167

59 68

98 38

167 167

257,807 533.016

7 7

257 B14 533,023

8,978 1.533

434 555

955 957

5,900 4,868

7.893 -

13,581 -

3,580 4,313

247 2,857

457 1,587

43,555 22,772

2003104 20021053

R'000 R'Q00

33.937 6467

4843 7,068

4775 9,235

43,559 22772

299 535

35 21

434 555

35 513

- 111

z 135

33 2668

5065 4,356

2.7ar 3,038

413 366

. an

1,794 1,588

21 318

- 25

5,100 4569

200 153

28 22

- 94

220 718

457 1,587
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2004

Yoled Tunds to be surrendered to the National Revenue Fund
Opening balance

Trangfar fram inco ne statement

Voted funes nat requested

Faid dur ng the year

Closing balance

Cher revanue funds 1o e surrendered 1o the Mational Revenue Fund
Qpening balance

Transfar frem income statement for revenue to be surrendered

Faid dur ng the year

Closing balance

Revenue funds to be surrendered: Civll and milltary panslons
Qpening balance

Transfar frem income statement for revenue to be surrendered
Faid dur ng the year

Closing balance

Revenue funds e be surrenderad: Special penslons
Cpaiing balance

Transfer frem income statement for revenue to be surrendered
Closing balanee

Civil and military pensions
Amounts owing to the Government Employees Pension Fund

Special penslohs
Amounts owing Lo the Gowvernment Employees Pension Fund

Fayables - current

Amounts owing ta other departmenls Annexute 7
Advances received 2'1
Cther payalkiles 22

Advances recelved

Matianal and provincial deparfiments: Implementation and suppot - FMS
Natianal and provincial depariments: Implemantation and suppat - BAS
Mational and provincial depanments: Implementation and suppot - LOGIS

Cher payables

Incame 1ax deduction payablc

Pensicn contribution zayable

VAT fareign assislarce

FPensians Admnisiration

Recaverahle revenue Ciwil and military penson
Reoceivable interest

Qthar

Mt cash tHow generated by oparating astivithes
Met surplus as per Ircome Stalement

Adjasted for tems separately d solosed
Transfer of land and buildings

Furchase of equipment

Transfer paymeants (capital experditure]

Lazal ard foreign aid assistanze

Wated fusts not reguested ! not recaived

Met cash flow generated by operating activities

Cash {ulillsed) f generated to {increase) / decrease warklng capital
Increase in receivablas — current

[Decreascifincrease in sayablos - current

Decrease i recoverable revanue

Increase / (Decrease} in other current liabilties

£

2003104 2002/03
R'000 R'000

5089 724 IEG 374

499,243 509,794

(255 003 -

{505,754} (368.274)

244,240 505,794

29,036 8,107

Z 131 367 1.485 043

(21381940 {1.454,114}

27279 29,036

12 96

7 12

. 196

18 12

29 -

3 29

az 29

10.3/1 3419

16,114 3623

- £

4958 6418

2,551 3,939

7.509 10,365

. 285

4674 5,563

x84 -

4,958 5418

55 7T

3 -

164 204

- 878

2.268 2.567

25 114

32 8

2,551 3,939

T E31 985 1995732

3 385 663 2ET1603

- 5500

15,617 29,426

3 374,304 2537472

(1,356 {395)

1253, 003} -

5,765,638 4,657,335

120 787 i1.278)

(2, 856) 3017

(203 [32)

19.459 1,252

(4,204} 2,959

(VRPRVAVEVEY)
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

2003/04 200203
R'000 R'00D
24 Voted funds and revenue funds surrendered
Woted funds sunendarad 50%, 794 368,374
Rewvanue funds surrendered Z 133,154 1464114
2,647 950 1,832 488

(YRS RVAVEVEYS »
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DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2004

These smounis are nol recognised in the Angnoia slalements, snd are disclosed 1o enhance the Jseulness of the
linancial stzlements and o cgmply with (ke statulory requirements of the Publc Finance MManagemenl Act, (1
of 1995) {5 amended by Act 28 af 18949) Ihe Treasury Requlsiens for depadments and constioticnal mstitabisns
izsied i terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue el fcl 7 of 2003,

25

251

26

7

T

28

200304 2002403
R0DO R'DO0

Conbingant fiabifities
Liable to MNatura Mote
Matar vehilz guaraniess Employees Annexyre 3 423 1.027
Hausing lean guaraniess Employess Annexure 3 1,062 483
Deparmental claims 10,188 17.874
Cowl and mililary pensions 251 - 27785

11,663 47,669

Contingent habilfes exst relating to pregramme 7 that canngt be measured with sufficient rehaki ity Trese
irclude ahhgabcns relahng 1o:

Special Pansions and Military Pansions: Cases reected by the Special Pensions Baard @ ihe Medical
Board have a right ol spzeal. Theee & uncedamly regarding fhe number of applicarts wha wil appea
desisions made dunng Lhe Inarcal year and wrether the appaals will be successiul.

Injury on dury: Payincnls are made cased oa decisions made by the Compensation Comimissoner. A
contngent latlty exists for clams submited 10 e Compansation Comanssicner belore year-aad that are
under rétvienw. The Compansaticn Comrigsioner is unatcle o provide a reliable astimate of 1nésa cases.
Madical claims and contributions: Faymerts lo medwal aid schemes are based on claims subm tted by the
scheres. There s uncera nty 1egarding clainys that hava not been submitted by tha medical aid.

200304 2002103
Rb0 R'DDO
Commitments
Cument exgenditure
Appreved and contraclediorderad 1.070 & 208
1.070 2,206
Capital ax pandilune
Approved and contraclederderned 2445 2. 386
2,446 2,386
Tolal commitments 3,516 4,532
Accruals
Par standard ilam
Administrabiee 524 481
Invenleres 92 457
Equicment 0 278
Professional and special services 3600 5225
Transfer paymeants . 5633
Miscellanzcws e, 7T BF1°1
949,013 101.115
Miscallanegus
Servige charges 53 -
Medical glarms 50,580 B 11
Campensation. by an Outy 4,282 2 73R
Military Pensions 63 2262
Speeial Pensions 38111 .
ket bensfits 110 -
494, 747 BY,111
Listed by programme |aval
Administration 1.729 508
Ecanomic planning and budget management 550 1.293
Agzel and habihily managaiment o 1281
Financial imaragemant and systers TOo SEE
Finanmal accounting and repoting L] 5.755
Zwl ang mililary gensions and other benefils 25 8O0 g7.1°1
99,13 101,115
Pravisions
Spoecial peasions 281 Ta, 702 -
Medical claims 282 95,274
Military penswns 2583 583
Injery cnoduky 254 5. BOD s
136 37D -
129
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DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

200304 2002403
[Ragilili] R’ 00
28,1  Spacial pensions
pemng balance = =
Increase in provision rmade during the periad Td.703
Closing balanca 74,703
28.2 Medical claims
pening balance - -
Ingrease in provision made during the periad 55.274
Closing balance 55,274
283 Mhlary penslons
Opening balance - -
Ingrease in provision made during the periad 582
Closing balapce 593
8.4 Injury on duty
QOpenng balance -
Inercase in provision made during the period 5800 -
Clogng batanca 5,800 -

285 Comparalive figures far provisions have not been provided, as these ohligalions could not be measured with
sufficient reliatilily. These obligations wers disclosed wnder cantingent liablities in the prior year.

200304 200203
RYGa R’ D00
29 Employae banefila
Leaye entillemeant 15137 14,581
Thirtcenth chcaue 3,040 2.583
Performanes acnus 5,565 B.005
24,742 23,173
30 Operating leases Property Equipment Totzl Total
20003104 Pl k]
ROG R'DOQ
Mal later than 1 year - 255 365 1.738
Later than 1 year and naf later than 3 years ° 243 o hs] 4.010
Later than 3 yaars - - - 4. 552
TeHal presen value of lease liabilitiss = £38 il 10,598
31 Irregular pxpenditura
Qpening balance 176 176
Expanditure awa bng condanemernl TG 176
Analysis
Freor years 1765 176
e 176
32 Koy managermgnl porsonngl
32,1  Remungration
HNumber of
Daacripticn individuala
RAirister 1 TaT 81
Deputy Minister 1 552 510
Diracter-Genaral {*) 1 50T 48
Deputy directorsgeneral (') 9 3,507 1,382
Tedal 5,413 5 332

32.2 Othar remuneration and compensaltion provided to key managemant and close membars of the family
uf key manggemsant persanne

Oihar remunareticn

Number of 200304 20003
Dezcriplion individualz R"DOO R' GO0
Miraster 1 41 111
Deputy Minisler 1 i} B3
Chrectar-General (7] 1 153 147
Cleputy dwrcotors-gancral (7 9 31 472
Tolal 550 TB3

= The Cirector-Gere-al (s M Ramse) resgned with offest rom 1 Hovember 2003, The new Dirceter-General
(h L Kganyagn) was appoiited wilth effect from 1 February 2004

** Mar.ous depuly dirgctors- Jeneral resigned and new appointmerts were made dusning the pencd under revsew.

(YRS RVAVEVEYS

National Treasury s



eyt

MI5'3E B1S'8E DIS"EE - 005s's BT sayediauny 3des WsysE3 Jjmoionsg
FLs=g S AR} Cn ) HAC " - "L SLpRdTILT B LIS (] BOIME YELN
wUEE e 1) ss [ " - MIEE Aredizary ausg oGwe) Jo
KIS s aL i T} Goct - L - SR
S5E SR DL (HE-g - - L1 B[AELRR UOLENy
2L Sl (R NS (HEeg - ML - 2PN
HTL SRl [rL [HEEN - 252 5z B S
eI el 13 [t oG L - 5L oot Ly
HEIN Sl L HE [ERKNE - IS T 1L
ool Lol Le il [l e HiE ebrsy
HkE 8 S22l O35 HA " - ) coadpare] Beqes e
ki LL3Ddl [CE 1N [EHCRE - LHEIN - EqiuaL. sy, BOrad)
ks SR TAL DL HAH - - " SNEDEAIUN ARSI IKEH 5140
oo0E Sl [0z | EHLKEA - - W& FEEIED
e Rt 13 Core (B N - HEE AT cegng
oo T aL [ s GG 2 N - IS AyEC Engy 12E0 & olEung
eI SR [t Lot - SN - ILe, L2y
K51 Sl e+ LSl - - Lo AMECEIIrpY ITnE0 92N P
sapEdiiungy +d e WDIse7
1ueaf uaeusbe u e | e gy jUELMEBASE 2007
W04 D0, H 0.4 (0. i1 ] OO N 10,4 0ok A
{EITET TR} o
F|qe|l EA pauBsUel) | JajEUEL] 3| EEAYY BEEALIGS]
wauny | (euded __mc_# v you Winouny | |enysy oy | SEMONSH | iy *w.”_ﬁm_m..w_n SALTITIDINMN G SHIISHTH L INTHD THNOILIONGD

IENLIHINT %3

HOLLYSHOTTY LHYED

00 HIEYA LE LY ST SLIHNIANIHY AT TYNOLLYNH A8 SALLTTAI2INNA L SHIASHYHL LHYED TYROILIONGD 40 LHINILYLS

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}
SINdWNF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVANNY dHL OL SJdNX3IANNY

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

¥ IHMEINNY

(VRPRVAVEVEY)

Annual Report 2003/2004

o



AL LS LR LE:

oo’k s = SO0 HE o0 5 [TeE] ODER sjedITIunNgy MEIS 2204 [[E0L NG
COL - 5 L = L ot = asy ne Apjedieunpy RIS BURSUBSPLE y e |
gl e ool = DO L Lo - Lo L - oSS
L w0 Dok L H G ANEdIZIUn OS] ZIE1S B34 Liaulah)
CEHY L R ) Y L noot DGl BUBZEN
CEH | S D0l = 0L ooe - 05 K5 yewby
CERY T Ok = o0 L T = G L €EN
GO L N = oL el = 1) (154 Spred:sungy PLgsa] eagapy
ORI L ) = oL Lol = 045G s B5EL SO
CEHIE 3 ol 00T LN E - 00 & UL S
CHIE | = 00T ST = g (Lol Cuegeufiepy
R} S5 0k = DO oot - onE L euefLafSER
HIE S0 Dk = THE DS T - - T E.rebuepy
e s N - e e - O & Bun_ 2 4-e-ir gy
(el E el = OSL 51 - S L fyimd LT s Becndaiasla
2l Dol 0L Lot - 00s L Bucuedey
L bl - O0H L o] - XK K5 EusgEIIg
sagied1ziungy sgelg asuy
oo iK1 H oomH 8004 CH 000H oond OOH
(=Rl ETRATET o
| qRIEA SLEa JBEel Bl A|ge _m.ﬂ h.u.m_hl.e
waingy | jendes __“_u_.g_ ¥ Wnrt _mw.:oE“.. _w_wau{._. _n__.m__u .Fd SI3AD 1154 mzmﬁm”_mv.,__ hﬂﬁ%ﬁn SALLTFAIIINMN 01 SHIISHTHL LHTHD TEHOLLIANDD
TN LIANTAXT NOLL 20T LN S

FOOE HOHYW LE LY S SLINIWLEYDID THNOLLYN AQ SILLIYLI SINAW 0L SHIJSNYHEL LMNVHD TVHOILIANOD 40 LNIWILTLE

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}
SINdWNEF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVNANNY dHL OL SJIdNX3IANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

LIEENEEL

132

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



eyt

- OGP RTTE es L IR segedrungy Buzneg |no gng
=0 00 T oI eL 05z UBuOISEN
0001 Ot L 5e oSt SUEY iSEN
=0 ¢l CO0'E e - 00 BLziens |
=203 1 AT L oa') e g e 2 ungy FLEsig Susy peg
526 001 T £z - D E U SuSIuEy
=0T CEEE CERE LEEE oS s Hebop
=0 00 0L o 05 055 BB~y
50 0L 0081 el oS 05 Bunyeizgy
=0 o0l 000'L o oL 0%z Ige33]
320 OOk o Ose ot o wEuny
gl OOE'E b8 - DT Eircsaaueysr
Sl 00T CoE DO 2 3 rws
=0 00 o0s'E oI5E 05 E U3 rryg
sayediaun iy Busgnesy
Wo.H to0d o004 W00 000.3 too 000
pauajsuel] -

AFGE(IEA paussupd) | Jeysurl] | E|QEpERY BELINST
1B/ de —_H_u_# ¥ Jrou wnowy | (emoy oy | SO sugsnipy hﬂ%“_uwu SIINTHAISINNK DL SHASSHYHI [NTHS TWHOLIGNGS

TUNUNILXD NOILY 20TV LN¥H S

FOOE HOHYW LE 1Y S SIHIWIHYATI] TYHOLLYH A8 SALNYAITHNNAN O L EHI4SNYEHL INYHD ToHOILITHOD 40 INAW31 YIS

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}
SINdWNF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVANNY dHL OL SJdNX3IANNY

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

T IENKINNY

(VRPRVAVEVEY)

T

Annual Report 2003/2004



DO 1E - OElE WS - Bl GEZ B ol e IHUNA [E1RR-NINZEMY HEKR A0S
Eaey! R - 0L oEL - - g AMIEEIIL W 1 15D PUBIN.NE
B0 £LT DG = 0 b oL - o005 005 A Ediz1any S0 NGy n
L S I - OErL LHIL - THIL - iLjed sy
0oL e o0 - L L - e (i ZRLET
eyl S| = 0 THL = UL - gLy
BT T D - 0ZE ST - - 006 {ABR SPUEUCIH! ATTEIT
Gl RIS - 00| sl - L - T
B0 £LD D - 0 b L - oI - EELp EUEEE T
- - - = - = 2D [ I naz|panBusdpyn
oL e 2L - oL L - oL - LAy
Rl S = 00| THEL - L - Funf)
G b L G - Y} S - 55 o5 i
GOl RLT D - 00E 1 oEL - - 0L SfrsEIna
BONE 6T O = 0oE el - - o0 £ 2L SN
B ok = i L = s - EZTIarEEs|
L e oL - i L THIL - L - PESSHN
ool Sl 04 - o0l oL - oL - wzor
O R - 00 H 2oL - o0 0os A edistagy 23 115K SEWE)
Feg R - 00T HEL - e 0oE isEe STIsKH
B0 £ - 0y el - - 0o I UM LAY |
YL B - THEY L SHEL - s {1F4 11ammnpuy
4L G G - KT L DL - oL - BAniEN2pUIPHS
BT KT 0 - 0097 T - - 0o 7 U LS APET LA L UL
oL A - 001 oL - 5L (i 151 rbeTy
saedeunp [EjERen Nzesy
oo t4a.d G o0 0. To0.A [T FTRY
palsaysUel | o
B|qEIEAy |podeysuesp [ ssgsuel] | B|ge)eay apwnsy
wauny - jeudes o, |jowponowsy | jemey oy | SO cunsnipy —“::%M_w“_n SALTYAIHNNN O $HAISHTHL LHTHD TYROLLANGS
A4N LIONASNT HOLLYCTTY INYHE

AL LS LR LE:

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}

POOE HOEYW LE LY S SLNIWLHYdId TYHOLLYH AQ S3LLAYIZINAN GL SHIISHYEL LNYHD TYHHLKONOD 40 LINIMILYLE

Tk JHNAIANNT

SINIWTLVLS TVIONVNIA TVNNNY dHL Ol SFAdNXIANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

134

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



eyt

[N - o0sT12 00512 - oL HIE'FL saty|ed) 31unpy a3ulword sdodwi (el gng
[y 050 : TRV L FA 5 08 Agarungy s B as
0L HITE = 00l B = e 257 AL EAIZr Y 23 I SGIas,
oEe T w000 = 0o E (e = ; LT LR R
0oL 0000 - 06 L o5l - - 251 Iqwzeqeu ]
000 G = DEL GO0 = oS s FIERLACE 5015 AR A
DS E 050k = 003 T LOSE = - os's SuRwE|Ed
0001 00l = DELL ool = ol o5z euawAE(ESOY
00T IO = o Z CooE - 0T ORELYER
GoT SR = DECL Lo = oI sleRyIE]
0oL Dol - oea L oonl - o [EDsUEIga
(it HIL = DG L COEl - - o5 UsSLEZ| i8ERR)
G0 T 50 601 - 0o E BEE - - £HrE & 169 2:ury F2Lis 0 woesden
(Co ! 0L - oo L G2l - e - sfpussngysng
Gl 50 Jb = 00T L Sl = L = el2g-Eg
0 L 550 L . 0L G oo e BMIIE Bl -E7]
sauedI gy 2380 J edodun
DinH T DL H R ond 000 M 0.4
PRLEUR | —
S| B IEA BUEF 1a]sSUEd AE|leA |)BEmns
e _n"u_..._m ¥ wmu.:a&w _m___ﬂu.q- —n__s_b._. ¥ |sian0 ow m_zmﬁm:.w_____q uwﬂﬂm_.m_a...,_"_n SIILIYAIHHNN OL SHIISHYH L INYHD THNC LN
JHNLIONTIXI HOILYOETTY LNWHS

HKIZ HFHYW LE LY 5% SIMAWL A9d30 TYNOLLYN A8 SIS IDIN TN 0L SH34SHYHL THYHD TYRQLLIONGD 40 TNIW3 1Y

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}
SINdWNF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVANNY dHL OL SJdNX3IANNY

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

¥ IHMEINNY

(VRPRVAVEVEY)

Annual Report 2003/2004

y



AL LS LR LE:

Ho'sE B H0'sE THUFES = DELR oSt Fl 31 |ediaunpy eBueEndyy : |2Hon kg
L =0 DL YL [ - [N - 1Pl
0L 0T DL oL Coesl - TR
Xl 0 L 0L LA oo ;=rd MEnty BREY ]
ZEL Tk L (! (s - SLEE
JEL 0TI 0L ool - Co L 1ZELYpY
a0l % 0L L L [HiG 00s i3 [eduiungy s elEfuein
et} =0 DL SO L Gl 1 - 0se sz B D EERE
O L OO L (el (el - QPO
3L e HIL o4l CoE'L @ 00571 [Baws) anang) B HIsEe
IHE T2 0k O00'E COoE g 00 LR T
TEOE = HIL L Col - UEi 0sE ERy ]
00T 0L OVHIE (o - DT 145 ) UEATE:
IR o L 0T Gl - 571 Bpuey 5 o
ST St ik IS E COSZ IS & ILEYe| B
T3EE 0 HIL e ST = o0s T SNESEDIUN PLSI0 LETIEYT
L 2 (8 0L Col col = SELLAS]
sampedizunyy eBueewndy
10 [T oo 00,4 oot H 00,4 aonH o0
PRLUALSUET | -~
S|qELIEA BLaIsLIE] pLET=1 ] o A BleLngs
wsang | eudes __.._ma_..._‘. ¥ ﬁE Eﬂesw ._mmzqu __"__Mﬁ ¥ |sia90 1w B:mﬁua.w__uﬂ hﬂﬁwm..wn SILITHALINDA OL SHFISHTHL INTHS TYHOLIaHDD
JHNLIAN 34X NOHLT2TTY LN WHE

SINIWTLVLS TVIONVNIA TVNNNY dHL Ol SFAdNXIANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

FOOZ HOHWH LE LY 5% SINIMLEYHIA TYHNOLLYH L8 SILFAIDIMNTN OL SHIASHYEL INTHD TYHOILHNGD 40 LHIWILYES

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

¥l JHMXINNY

136

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



eyt

ME's MS'EL [ R 'S 00001 san|edenungy sdes wayuoy :[eper qng
AL Tl oL na 1 = = TR L e
WE o Gl 000'E CoxE 00T allizeld 125
it 8 G20 Tal 5L 5L - CosL Snped MUy PLGE [ Rpeeig
o0°L S |1 0oL CooL YL = I
oL il Dk 0oL 01 - 0| K21 EdITIr py SESE] B EIR
DL w3 L 5L (Hg ENL = 0L BLIEn
ook L0 o) D331 GOl g 05 SIBH BB
Q200 L LD odb DoCL (e - DO} FYESEIUNRY |FRSI0 COJEY
L L S L THE 1 = = L ipetajeiy-eeey
g Ll Sk L (Her! SETL - eLebunbss-eg
3L L sl 0L HE1 = 0L E FPECIAIUS 4 12 151] PIER SE0ueld
WL e 0L (e IETL = ualzyng
sadiaMny 3ed wi3yRoy
00, d D0 0.4 000, = [TTE] T &00.4 000
PALR SR | e

A ELEn peuBjsuTl| | JAsERL] a|qe|IEAY SjEwIE]
weung | (Rt _ma_‘g_ v Jou Jnouy | penysy oy | TEMONOR [ e hﬁﬂm_u_.wn S/ LW NN OL SHIJSHYH L INYHD TYROHLINDSD

FENUONTIAZ ROILEHTTY LHYHS

FOOE HOE YR LE LY S SINIWLAYd30 TYNQILYH AR SAILITTEAIDINON 0L SHIASNYEL LTHYED TYHOILIONQD 40 LHIWI1YLS

R rerr———

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}
SINdWNF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVANNY dHL OL SJdNX3IANNY

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

W1 IHNXINNY

(VRPRVAVEVEY)

Annual Report 2003/2004

T



AL LS LR LE:

a0 L = '3l M 41 = ] CHl | B SHTH|RAIIUNW 1534, oK (B8] GRS
S S L = Ol Lo = CHEl = FSTuRRE
S L = Lo i} E) = (i S1Edarpy Els ] WeLireg
SR L0 Gl = CHE Lo 2 = 00 © B vL2sny
ST D00 = CO%E (e - 05T L0 EA
EL AL - AN} Lo = o031 o PHER
L SIS0l e oYL (el - noe 2|0y S3s0p
L O - RN L Cocl = ool = 5|4 S5E13EP
= @ = = = = WGEE ! DOS T EussLeR
L D0 g YL Lo - S S Bums ey
L =000 - 0| CooL - Dol - SUEWES | -BaT]
= = = = = = WG] (L dcesp=y
201 S0 G0 = KL Coc | = oeL e BHOLEEIN
oL S 3L = M) ! = Col g A edraungy s (2l
SR o L = L e = 1 #1 i Ungy ELGEI B0 g
20001 AL = S0l ool = b, 3] 1,54 faed 2 Buls 0 wnu g seuelig
SaL edIHNE 1534 YHON
000 0090, H oo o L H [T oo DO
PRMBLSURI | -
3[qE| BN PELIAYSUELY | JELEAEr] Aligepeay LY
waung | ey _ﬂn_.\. Y |ou wnowy | |erysy oy | SRR L sinsnipy Mﬂ_“ﬂ_,,“.m..w_n SALITYAIHNN O SH34SHVHL [NEHS T¥NOLLONDD
FUNLIANIAKT HOHLY 20T AN D

POOE HOEYW HE 1Y 8 SLMIWLEYA30 TFROLLYE L8 S3ILITYAI 2NN QL SHZSSHYEL LNWHD TWHOILIQNCD 40 LINIWILYLE

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}
SINdWNEF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVNANNY dHL OL SJIdNX3IANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

Vi UMMM

138

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



PrerrTm

- - - 15 L6°0a) SLECA [w=aak tuesb wrawabeuew perzueuy JE0L
- - - 5 1EEl SLEE e &g 1216 2
Iyregq] Jwerh Juawsienew eroueny
1£2'0LE MEE'0LE DE'0LE 5 0TB'ES 0oL LS L el Juanselen gou | BrIn e Y UENER AT |2D0] (B
- - . [ 006 STAIFSIY [EUTHEN PaiEIO||EUM
ML D' LE S LE - Ll 0ErlE say|edipiungy sdey Liagsapy, (e gng
WL LT Lo - S5L 152 G.3qusTisy
ol LIl gL - = 1 LAl A EdeIL " J20ES O 1SR 154N
ook LIl coa b - Yl - JOSIHS ESAE1L ]
eIl WL [HHCHS - - LA FLEBRE» S
B | o1sl gL - - =L UM REIs
il DL oo - pe 1,5 1, B deg EUUERES
ool oL goC L - o5 5 1=z Aeg Slaguagksd
HE=l sl e L . Wb DURNEIaNT
e sl ¥aL - - 2L Ledizuryy s sciaan
W oL T et - 5L 152 WY S0
WL L TN [BaN - o5 ] fBg 1530
Wl L Y - Q3L - Bl ey ey
oL o0 LGS - Gl - Giagadue
sl 1= CEE L - - =g Uiy
oS oe| LR - - | =z
ool sl oL - - | L
B U nia'e LT - - T UlRIRE=er]
PR oIs'e [EHOER - = e upn | =de]
wol OO L oo L - A ! - sey|rEy zden
oAk L Lo L - B 1, = da|En epeeig
e iy} L HoL - e e FEIEE L AR FRag
woE DHVE HLn A - - EYE Aecriungy RIS SRR
L oL oL - nEL - selbeg
il L [ - GIL I3 Honesg
soediD unpy Sdes LIBISARY
{0 D, 0. LR o ifef] OG0 100, 0,0 1R |
[RETTENELEIT -
B OE[IEA 1 nEn] ELIE] Pl =1 ] | el IBA BLELLINS
wanng | jendes Hn“a_.# * H: HEEM _m“_._.uq._. _n”uu_n f V| siang now B:ism_..w__uﬁ FM.”_PMWMD SALTYAIDINGN OL SHIASHTHL INVHD TYNOLLIONDD
FENLENI dX3 HOLLYHFINY LN ¥d S

POOE HOMYH LE 1Y ST S1IHIWIHYAS0 TYNOWYH AH ST ZINON L SHI SN EL LTHYES TeNQIUONGD 40 THIWIIYLS

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}
SINdWNF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVANNY dHL OL SJdNX3IANNY

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

W IHMINNY

(VRPRVAVEVEY)

Annual Report 2003/2004

139



oonol OO0 DI Wn'al o'k S seqledriauny 3den LIyueN (B0l qns
CE3 0L RES R | = COL SO0 oL BEEd [05
Ssapedioung =deq wayuoy
G000k - [y a'a L HIn'aL - SR UNW 23U ATY ododWn B0 Qnsg
G 0L LTl L Al SHaal BRG]0
saiy]ediaiu gy 22uAcrd sdodwig
DD DE | S ODIDEL MH'0SL OO0 O o0'ng DO'ar sHHEdEILNE |EFEN-NINZEMY (| E]0] NS
[HERTEE Lo | - DL Zadal A3aat " SIMLBIYINYN
(HLA Y ki ] W Ca OO WD - kil 12PL Py
[HEER LIl (L 26 Pty o - IdIkyau) a
S3MedIoIuny [E1eN-NNTEMH
oD e S [y M08 ODO'SE L M0'ss = sangediaung buagneg :|eo) ang
[HLRI, L | - (L LA ool " Pty " ua, ryuwy
(HLAN I L3 ool (I, L TOOGE DEAGE L2 ringg
Gk O oAl (L, Lol OO0 - A0 SHPEHLS ]
LR [ L || OO0 TS CO0E [kl OO0 G R Eincsadieycr
sapiped12un y Buajnes
Qo5 'S OGS (HD " CHa L HWo'sL [ seiljethiaungy sl sery || 0L GNg
[ LGl = [ 51 5L = BuzqeL e
e T 000 S 00 T ToOGE 00 i - [0S Bur EEUE
Sar|ediol unpy 21E15 3914
OCHY B = 000764 WI0'66 ey 0’0 ooa'a - saiediany ade- WaESeT B0 ans
L O = [CaEE S 0E = S0 08 = BEEUER] LS
LEFRE DO ET COHEE DO EL = LA A edizl M §20.E1] GEEIED
G ¥ T RN - PEHIN - S0 0,EYNG
sapiedisiun py 2des uislses
Juedd Bunmangsas juaunuzasi jeso
[ ] [T kM OO H 0. iR CHWEH [
PALE SR ) o
F|Qe|LEAy | PRLIGEUEL] | raUSUEl] | BlOEEeAl 5y
Wy e jor,  |inopsnowsg | ey oy | HMONNE | cnentpy hw_.,_,_.wﬂ_ﬂ_ﬁ_a STILNYAIDIHAN O SHIASHYH L INVHE TYHOLLIONGSD
AN IHNIL 3 HOILLE 20T LHYHD

rrrerieremt

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}

FOOE HOHYA I LW SY SLNIWLEYdID TeNOILLYN AR STLMTYEIHNAA CL SHIFSHTHL LHNeHS TFHOILIANOD 30 INIWAL YIS

¥l IHMHLINNY

SINIWTLVLS TVIONVNIA TVNNNY dHL Ol SFAdNXIANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

140

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



eyt

paLIa|SUEL 10U MU ROLIE 4o Uageuepdsa 10) Juausae}s uoeisdoiddy agy o] sajoy a4} 0) 1ajal asedd

[T [ DLa'tOr  DERR.  ODFREZT  1SED'il SIE'SEg (L2l0 N
0" FEt [ NI #5F DM GRS O PTE = 00’5 Jueh Buungansas JUILmMLBAGS [eoaf :jepo )
e = TOHFOZE! | OO0'0ET Saa13say [EUMIEN PalE30|[EL[]
0'0s D00 OO HI0'0E = saniiedimuny aden uiaisam, 5o gns
C30E L5l 0o0CE [Pt G0 - uka) sded
saqediaunyy adeq wagsagy
.= B, H 0= [T Tt H OO0 B0 000
P B S LR | 1o
aqeeny  |pomaysuel) | mgsuen)] | @geqeay apewlsy
wsung | Eidey josw  |1ouunouwy | |ensoy oy | SEMONE | eunsnipy hmﬂﬂw..wn 531 LITdITANNA Q1 SHIISHYHL INVHS TYHCILION DD
IHNUONTINTE ROILY2OTT% LHYHD

FOOE HIHWW LE LY 5% SLNIMLAYE30 TYNOILYN A STILIWAISINGA 0L SHIAEHYEL LNYES TYHOILIANDD 40 LNINILYLE

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}

¥ JHNAINNY

SINIWNTLVLS TVIONVNIA TVNANNY dHL Ol SFAdNXIANNY

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

A
ez 3
<
-
o
o
il
b 2l
o
e <
=

&



rrrerieremt

EODE EY endEhEy L OS]

S0 Ti gl JT103S 255 05w 0SS0k 11 IBas [P BLY SL) 10 SIESLEL, Sl LD W SIS X090 2 [GLLED SILS DJE S1A3- |21 200 530 0u1 gL ST XAy L T0 138 58 LAads UGB [ETEe ag] L)

IBZITHT  ERFEISTE SREFST = BHRES'E BRFEESE - E SRR'FST 1EX |
FESRE 00" I H)' L S [TeeEinFA WY 2 - - ' 00 UOQEH|IqEY R PO
- ucﬂ_ﬂ SUMNPM]sel Ul _m._u....__.-.ﬁ:- ol qng
R} CiOTE oL B o505 a8 - [ HAEE - - e ebLejzurc py
%5 FE ECFELL IR GoT, TG - SOAE M 3T - - 0o 5T e rs Ty
LT EGL FZLEE HCEa s COT L L = O .8 W, = = 0ooLE HES 23 4
e 5= A1 ET LEEE SO = OO ED i P - - Lo eT =1E7) LacsE]
LHHIEY|IGELES
b.n_.n_—“_..u._._mhm BHrPALSELUN [Bl3dlA0d 4
IGE' LT DR RET T - OaF'REEE BARREET - = ERk'FEE WElE nkaRaseLuy [euaald e 4ns
R ZIEERL CELSFL 0%, §F. Bl = SELGEl L 3k = = 05, GFi sden L aasy
B SRLTICE L N BLFTIZ o]} = Eib 7T iFFLE = = Bk FZ EEL Y
ol PES L £7 78 EE L el = PEE 2L FET 2 = = BEE EL BT LSty
=348 e LG - sl TR S0 L - =g | o0 6L = - Do AL ECLzjzurcpy
EETE e = LU e ZEEOZk L - TESIEY DESTIEF - - ILE 0T sdad
LEEE BT .EF ey IR Rl - Z0E 5 LTI - - TOE OO IZIER- M2y
EET ) GZTLE0E R EET I36 0RE el = e ST o= EET - - IOHCEE CLamer)
Y ol ETEGL TEE Pl =20 Rl = eEL Tl HE Bl = = =g e 2L
B OR ERDTLES EL9EET CiFTTR - IGL - ELSTET Ti9ERF - - i3 ETF =1ED LasE]
TN]-4] 1] HIMANMOSE LUl [BIHI A0 H
— "n,.-“Mn.M Em_n_.mﬁn_ O, 00,4 e — oo [T o [CTET] [T n.“_uﬁ_.mm
pRUISSUEN | ) SEmesy | PAUAJSUERLL | sEpSuRI] | d|qE{BAY B LS
S uwm:“w:.qﬁ u,mEv““..Hﬂmu RLTLFN L | |Emden e TR | [Bares . EAZIRY ) insalpy Eﬂ,_.__.__hw..,w___“_"_n sjueE [Euoypaoe
1N3dS ERTG I ] HOILY STV LMD

FOOZ HIHW LE LY 5% SINIMLEYLSS3T TFNDILYN A8 STIHATEG 0L SIMYHSD TYMHLONGD 300 ININILYLS

I JHNEIHNY

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}
SINdWNEF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVNANNY dHL OL SJIdNX3IANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

142

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



PO E 4 e e

HFE'RER'E

SELGYE 5t SreSYdT  LSAEREE zZkL 45 FrI L IE¥a )
e r=Fs =0 - = Tee 7l it pLE3E SRIBEURIS FL L1153y
BLETL - =0 £i9 1 BSEEL = CHEE LOSSAILOT [E3S § GuE [ERJEL 4
L5 LERbE § L SEO AL KL RS D LE o weath =L ERJe 4
EEP.CTE OPITIE LR LLTTELT SDUEELE LE0TELC SIS FEY LBy 4TS
gLl - T £l G-l £5l - ! w13 B WEl) Sue SCREIrag e
OO 00 | pausgsues) | GO0 o P00 ou0.d kY ]
HoeNERgE | pauaysuer)  saysuer) | spgemeay ajew sz (o0
waung | jewden e || nrrm e g | SRONOH | entr | sioneudnsddy SHIISHYEL SAILIANE
FHNLONIIES HOILY DO TY H34SHYHL

SINIWNTLVLS TVIONVNIA TVNANNY dHL Ol SFAdNXIANNY

PO HIHYN LIS L S SLHIWLYGdI0 IWHOLLYN AE EHQILNLLLSHI QY SILLLLNI 20780 0L Fd3 SN L 0 INGWILTLS

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

Dk JENXIHNY

Annual Report 2003/2004

(VRPRVAVEVEY)

143



EG0'SEL L BOL'EGF BEZ AL VEELE'E  OFFSTE'T M'ESL |2 EQLt LL2'EEE'E |Ew |

TITISE' T LDl LHOOR BIEEELE TAG'STR'lL ODD'd (B CAR'ICE L Shasuel) |23 YE19L QNG
THIEAT L CAELCF L - SEZLe T SETLLEL - £FEE = =T AL EIOES
£6 - ST - =] £6 - - ] 1= == g Lo
DRSS - LTS - [LETR"} LU= ] ] = = UAr ddd “HHesES cuBulapEea] SEG.g
- - - - - - - ETESE | Bl i) I35 LAZUT RS LEL WY
- - - - - - - ST 1 e uSLES s ARG Y LES| 1
- - - - - - - iz T [ W R T - 1]
. - - I - . - - 1 Fipmu moerd esensas )
Fal - R H Y - >l Fel - Fil - PSS TRD LUESSE Y TR0 LBLE 4
X - e - Qo T - T - =SSP »IEL 4
= = = LEa0 = L3 R = = L) 3w ESA LHEMSD 1S JLEY UBWIGoEE]
- - - - - - - faEe ZZE Igdd SRR
PEIE 2305y ICL P14 TS AZ 4 ) LG =SLLST)

L - =T BG GZ CELL . TN E - ET0E 083 52156 SEUELT 10T
SJALEUE] | [T

S1A'SFE ek'se z51°18 GLESTK S [ SEEF iy Sis|sue ) euajenk=qul gelal gng
- - =50 I - - - - I ssrggdroin s.eg poass
PLi T : pEE EvE PTLE LETE : =t CAL'T *E ] —m0Bu ST
LEH o - =& -8 [ D A =5 - - L2155 IO s2iunas ood
Folgata, £ 45, 3L U IELDD UED i LIRS

- SEraE 2259 LELFF By L ET . - - L95ETL SSIES
12 ESEYnIng LG susLdapEea] LeEs g

TeE I52 - - cELLL SER 75T TEEFIE 00wl - 55151 B0 IUZH PB SIS
ptfid= A " B L LEC Cé3 2 oo " L - uaz.ads

ey ED LR I LTS LIS O]
ol - TR - Lol ool - FLA - R | L )
S SUE | [EUOLEWRL]

Ll ] CO0H e A Ol o (L LR 10 Lo LOIH QoL
mqeEpeay | PALSISURL] | FRISURIL | RIQE[IBAY MEWRET =)
sding (endes, JL. LTS FIU UnoLy |y yEIo | HSLD IS sjususnlpy |susneudmddyg SIRSUBEHA0
FdLKNId¥3 MO0 HIJSMYHL

FHIE HIEWW LE LY S SENIWAY w30 TYHOILEN AE SHIAJSHYEL HIHLO 40 LNIWILTLE

OF FHNXANNY

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}
SINdWNEF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVNANNY dHL OL SJIdNX3IANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

rrrerieremt

144

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



PrerrTm

Feebo - e R e |
SO BN SSEL IS GG 0 PUSDE Al J) SR Ll STpRUS] A0 JONET SHE waasy Rsg Losung 2csdg
=Lk - S HGYS:
N LT EISeCiea S0 S 2B S ST SN0 LGBy SlE 5 )
ST ETERIS SRAL S PEL1SY S 018 Shsu eosds smiefal se LSrpa wsipons Sys o Ersds e LINGS
=] =gl iy I s ]
WEEIFOS FHEL LT FEAF SALTAD TR DD ARG O FLR LN T Y SAL2IEY LEELY LG
L ek 7 - N TR B E e T ]
SEpew K, e gEcdsC agrg ) LoecEizdien
= o saogedygo aue spyfiv =m0 siEsse wmepas
1T BSMRLG A5 L3 F.CIIZE [LE SDUY S DUCOG SEIpc]
LIBpED Fue arcdey 2 po iLSlldISATT &5 0 JBLag L3 SIHIS SELLUET)
WEAFRSLS  FEEL T Sv 1o o0 5] A FiEY 1T pRAR0E AT LIBUSS B UELESL)] L3 SIgng
peuEk ) - SHUErE
BE= S TRE < Ty [ FLE sjJepraee 20w o Eun el S |5 wegantes sip TUETE £ 0] [T
SR ISR USRI AT 0 10 .0 FUE SICISNE FUS SILEXINCSSE S B JoIRs By CLE SLIELINDES Tlgg
peL bl - Jana ~UEi @ SJILL T 530 MIaE =UaLg b3y FLE 330 LS
SEEL SN £551 5 JFL 10 1B SUBIY oy BUP A SIBE L od LGRS Y 3L 380y IE HIE. o 1] FIEC] “zifag
peL ek - LUAALE] PEEE 0 SUEL
Bl FdE S50 AT ERLEWY A Lissoud =F pue s agyssa
W B PPAEE O8FL IS SR 1SY BSJELL KINENER21 SNE] L% SCUEICAKE BSIMIEC TR TLEOH 5233 Y |EISUEL 4
FeL ek - E=Rbisc]
Sa.apursy Seuon jo FLBclssr 31 SUE SROMES
wE S FEE0S OOET IS 500y FYYEr 1 SERe0cud JE IS USHIBD S 03F SF LIISSRE S 23480 soashipa; Ezue 4
paL ek - L BEEE 2 e Saland
318 CNCSJoEEL oo s edsLen ssau B Lus o
S| B JBEJIICR N usueds 3430 3 uSLesa B LELIES
ZEPFEAIS 25€1 3 0 ¥y -020S 500 &5 | So o Bopeny A3 0JE e OB CEu0..Taq Sosueg Lande =
pELEnbo - ‘ponse.d
W T RIS 585 5 | 17y BLanarse paslBoan 8 s s |7 SRERJES 20T FRRCg SPEDJRIS Sl nsTe
L g | LOEmaE | Pl EZEHIZ | WIIERE .
hufiah _ [yauew |5
smEs oa.s 4 oul pElsy pua ueraga SR 53
WOLA Jo aunge u Al
i .veak] adky anpaysg el 1 IENG SalOua | H Aoy o ey
Py A Buews spunowy | of Bume spunouy Wi 4d 5.fuz

FOOZ HOHYW LZ L' B S3LLLING 03T H0EINGD §3H1D A0 INSN3LVIE

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}
SINdWNF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVANNY dHL OL SJdNX3IANNY

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

& JUNXINNY

A
ez 3
<
e :
- Q
e
o
il
b 2l
o
e <
=

L0

S



rrrerieremt

- - L= o}
P<L ENDUT - -SLEEY B
A SR LLEZD DS NpE S 30 pELEA) SREl S FLE
L IESIIp] B BspE | e pue SIS P o BELigRa
LSHELL faE I zEeCm (1915 J 8 SIL 06 SJT ]ERLSLAUTRAN
gqE ) segafel AR oL SUT1EMLELRUTISI EE{ITRT ]
DAE N LESL O RS P EXEIL 10 SRARE DJE SIZLESISa g LI R -t | |
anaitn S 00 FIVEHKE T (R PIVEHKE Jyiep LT
H“H“” L H LEE .EMH Wna_ﬂﬂﬂ.-_umﬂ 19 JUEAA] Y SE53UI5MW] SHQAUS O ANEN Anug je swey
ypny | 9 Bumo sunsly | o Bureo sy ¥Wad 5503

FE HOHYIW LE LY S¥ S3LLILNT 03TT0HENOT HIHLG 40 ININ3LVLS

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayl 1o}
SINdWNEF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVNANNY dHL OL SJIdNX3IANNY

o ETTTT T rerr————

8 410N AdNSVIYdL TVNOILVN

T THMIHNY

146

National Treasury

(YRS RVAVEVEYS



eyt

CITE e =35 Lia'E FELT |EHr ]
LS HZ 3z L] EZ L Ll gl
2 - 1 - [ ) sz el Zasnay ALEF 2N SAN
e - [ = (o ars sses. el Sa sy LB FUEDRIS
T = T il LE ¥ sanlE. 2k S smoy YLEZ SEICCd
=k = il = ce 7L eg30B,.21E G sy B B A
377 o =18 iLl 377 SEEE. 28 1 20y PSLIL 7 5. BIEEN]
T =) AT EqT 387 szsuz.enb Gy w89 BLCHEY IS 4
Ll ZC Iz il 3.l s3ziue.21E Sy wSEY
EC¥ 3 [E0°F FELL 1= qog
EFF - A5 i FELL ECHENG |- [ R BT HL==|g
[LevEY] [T DO0H [EV R HIkE [LEvEY] [T
o . FHIZHENE tesh A ,
pied EwIE|D FIRZEDNLE »e 5B Bulpueisgna UG FRERLEET SRR EOOZGLD  guUnowe jeydes | J3adsa Ul aapuEIENS) UOLYSUN pEUBIETIE)
- : Zaueleq R FN-CIERLT:S ] Buump panss Q3ue|ey paauesent
_un.n.mwx Buisa| o pasqt _Em_.._n_ ‘PIed | pIEEHSE  S33IIMEIENE Bivmuad g 1eunBug
: S=SqUBIBNIS

FITINTHED HLSIME]

FHIZ HOHYA LD LY SY O3ITEE] STIINTHEIED THIHYNIS A0 ININFLYLS

002 U2JeN TE papus Jeak ayy 1o}
SINdWNF1VLS TVIONVNIH TVANNY dHL OL SJdNX3IANNY

R rerr———

8 410N AJdNSVI4dL TVNOILVN

E JHNXIANNY

(VRPRVAVEVEY)

Annual Report 2003/2004

147



LR LB LE LR LE:
W
NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

ANMEZLURE 4
PHYSICAL ASSET MOVEMENT SCHEDULE (Mot including inventories)

PHYSICAL ASSETS ACQUIRED DURING  Opening Additions Dispogals Transfers Tranafers Closing
FINANCIAL YEAR 2003/04 Balance b In Out Balance

RGO} R'O0G RO0G R'00C R'O00 R'000

MACHINERY AND EQUIFMENT 35.915 14,904 - - - 50,619
Compouter aquipmeant 14 554 44854 - - - 19.408
Furniture and office equipment 15219 73N - - - 22 580
Cther machunery ard equipment 110 2201 . - - T.a21
Transport asseds 1.032 468 - - - 1,500

Total 35915 14,904 - - - £0.819

PHYSICAL ASSETS ACQUIRED DURING  Opaning Addits oi | Transfers Transfers Closing

FINANGIAL YEAR 2002/03 Ealance MEWS - CIRGIEE In Qut Balance

R'0O08 R'Gont R'GOG R'00G R'0Q0 R'000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 8,368 27,548 - - - 35,915
Computer eqUipment 5510 B.744 - - - 14 554
Furniure and office equipmenl 1.846 13,373 . - - 15214
Cither machinery ard aguipment B 5056 = = - 5110
Transport assets 535 373 - - - 1.03

Total §.369 27, 548 - - - 505

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE8
ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

ANNEXURE 5
INTANGIBLE ASSET MOVEMENT SCHEDQLLE |Not including inventories)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ACQUIRED Opening Additions Disnosals Transfers Transfers Closing
DURING FINANCIAL YEAR 2003/04 Balance & In Dut Balance

RO0G RO0G R'QO¢ R'G0C R'00C RO0G

Computer softwyare 2684 715 - - - 3,577
2,664 713 5 5 5 3,377

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ACQUIRED Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Transfers Clozing
DURING FINANCIAL YEAR 200203 Balance L In Dut Balance

RO0G RO0g R00 R'0OOQ R'0OD R'0QG

Computet softarans 784 1.880 = = = 2.664
T84 1.580 - - - 2,664

(VRPRVAVEVEY)
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

ANNEXURE &
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL RECEIVABLES - CURRENT

Confirmed balance outstanding | Unconfirmed balance outstanding

Cepartment
1/037/2004 31/03/2003 31/03/2004 MI0X2003
R'000 R'OCD R'G0D R'0OO
Dapartmant of Finange - Eastern Cape - - 2744 2134
Crepartment of Finance - Free State - - & .
Department of Finance - Gautens - - 289 288
Drepartment of Finance - Kwazulu Nata: - - 2415 TEG
Crepartment of Finance - Limpaso . . 1.354 1.138
Dopartment of Finanes - Mpumalarga - - 183 1643
Lepartment of Finance - Northem Cape . . 1.002 40z
Department of Finance - Westem Cape = = 827 34
Drepartrent of Home Alfairs - - - 38
Cepartment of Haalth . . 12 -
Department of National We fare - - 5 1
Government Printing Works - 145
F nancial [ntelligence Cenlie - - am L]
Matiotal Intelligence Agency . - 2 -
Public Invastment Commissicrer - . 158 -
Crhor - - 1 =
Tetal - - B.978 7,533
IVAVRVAVEVEY)
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE8
ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2004

ANNEXURE T
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL PAYABLES - CURRENT

o " " Confirmed balance Unconfirmed balance
aparimen outstanding outstanding
/032004 | 31/03/2003 | 3150312004 | 31/03/2003
R'0O00 Ro0 R0 00 Zgili}
South Afncan Revenue Serace - . - a
Tatal = = = 8
151 '
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

W

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF

(VEVRIRVEVEY]

National Treasury

THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY
for the year ended 31 March 2004

AUDIT ASSIGNMENT

The financial statements as set out on pages 158 to 165, for the period ended 31
March 2004, have been audited in terms of section 188 of the Constitution of
the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996), read with sections 3
and 5 of the Auditor-General Act, 1995 (Act No. 12 of 1995). These financial
statements, the maintenance of effective control measures and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations are the responsibility of the accounting officer.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, based
on the audit.

NATURE AND SCOPE

2.1 Audit of financial statements

The audit was conducted in accordance with Statements of South
African Auditing Standards. Those standards require that I plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

1 examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements,

1 assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, and

1 evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Furthermore, an audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of
evidence supporting compliance in all material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations which came to my attention and are
applicable to financial matters.

| believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

AUDIT OPINION

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Project Development Facility at 31 March 2004 and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in
accordance with Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and in
the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1
of 1999).
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

W

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY
for the year ended 31 March 2004

4. APPRECIATION

The assistance rendered by the staff of the Project Development Facility during
the audit is sincerely appreciated.

S Labuschagne
for Auditor-General

Pretoria
30 July 2004

(SRPRIXVEVEY)
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

BALANCE SHEET
at 31 March 2004

Notes R

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 & 000 000

Trade and other receivables 4 72 000

Total assets 6 072 000

RESERVE AND LIABILITIES

Reserve

Unutilised surplus 5 5 886 750

Current liabilities

Trade and cther payables 7 185 250

Total reserve and liabilities 6 072 000
SEPRVIVIVEY]
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

T R =

INCOME STATEMENT
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

Notes R
REVENUE 8 & 000 000
Operating expenditure {185 250}
Operating surplus 8 5814 750
Net finance income 4 72000
Surplus for the period 5 886 750

(VRPRVAVEVEY)
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

Unutilised
surplus
R
Surplus for the period 5 886 750
Balance at 31 March 2004 5 886 750

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

W

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Net cash inflow from operating
activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Notes

9.1

161

6 000G 000

6 000 000

6 000 000

6 000 Q00

(VRPRVAVEVEY)
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

1. Accounting policy

The annual financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, and conform, in all
material respects, to South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.
No modifications were made for measurement of financial instruments to fair value.

The principal accounting policies adopted and applied are set out below.

1.1 Revenue recognition
1.1.1 Government grants for the financing of operating expenditure are those
received from National Treasury, are accounted for as income on the accru-
al basis and are not repayable.
1.1.2 Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis and is therefore recognised
as it accrues.
1.2 Financial instruments
Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and cashbook bal-
ances, trade creditors and interest receivable. These instruments are generally car-
ried at their estimated fair value. The particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual notes associated with each item, as set out below.
1.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which is the fair value. For the pur-
poses of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits
held with banks.
14 Comparative figures
As this is the first year of operations, there are no comparative figures.
2. Public sector practices and policies
2.1 Inter-relationship with other government entities

(YRS RVAVEVEYS

National Treasury

The public entity operates as a trading entity of the National Treasury, within the
South African Government environment. In line with prevailing government prac-
tices the entity is not obliged to pay for certain expenditure such as office space and
utilisation of moveable assets.
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

T R =

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

2.2 Public Finance Management Act reporting requirements

Section 40(3)(b)
No material losses occurred during the current financial year due to criminal conduct
nor any unauthorised expenditure, irregular expenditure, fruitless expenditure or

wviiantAfial AvinAanAH A

R
Cash and cash sgquivalonts
Bank talances — current accounis 6 000 000
& (D0 000
Trade and other receivables
Accrued mnferest 72 000
72000
Unutilised surplus
Opening unulilised surplus / (deficit)
Surplus Iod the yeaar 5 BBE 750
Urutilised surplus at 31 March 2004 & BRE 750

Contingent liabilities

The unutilised surplus of R 5 886 750 is retained for the funding of Transaction Advisor costs
associated with establishment of selected PPP projects approved for funding during the
course of the Project Development Facility's normal course of operations. Funding is
disbursed upon the successful achievement of predefined milestones and Treasury
Approvals. The following PPP projects have been identified for funding:

R
Naorthern Cape Office Complex 717 000
Free State New Build Hospitals 1861912
Vukuzakhe Plant Depot 1081 011
Eastern Cape Pharmaceuticals 3 146 696
Settlers and Port Alfred Hospitals 496 060
Waestern Cape Rehabilitation Centre 2 925 000

Commitments arising from future funding of the above identified projects will be financed from
the current unutilised surplus of R 5 886 750 as well as future government grants.

(VRPRVAVEVEY)
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

7. Trade and other payables

Trade accounts payable 185 250
185 250
8. Operating surplus is arrived at after
taking the following into account:
Revenue from:
- Government grant received 5 000 000
& (000 000
Fees for financial management sernvices:
- Private institutions 185 250
185 250
9. Notes to the cash flow statement
9.1 Reconciliation of surplus for the year
to cash generated from operating
activities
Surplus for the year 5 B86 750
Adjustments for:
- Interest received 72 000
Operating surplus before warking capital changes 5814 750
Woarking capital changes: 185 250
- Increase in trade and other payables and provisions 185 250
Cash generated from operations 6 000 000

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

N’_—‘

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

R
Commitments
Operating commitments
Payable within the next 12 menths:
- Contractual commitments 444 600
FPayable thereafter:
- Contractual commitments 444 500

Taxation

No provision is made for taxation, as the Project Development Facility is exempt from taxation
in terms of Section 10(1)(a) of the Income Tax Act, 1962.

(VRPRVAVEVEY)
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT STATISTICAL REPORT

1. SERVICE DELIVERY

Service delivery environment

The National Treasury service delivery environment is contextualised by its aim
to promote economic development, good governance, social progress and to
raise the living standards of South Africa's people. Its policy priorities are
implemented through the Department's eight programmes. Financial and fiscal
reform remains a key outcome of National Treasury activity, with the objective
being to achieve sustainable growth and development; job creation; and poverty
eradication. Ongoing improvements in our budgetary system continue to
enhance transparency and accountability. Reforms in government procurement
and the introduction of a broad-based supply chain policy framework served to
enhance efficiency and meet the Government's black economic empowerment
objectives.

We continue to improve financial management, examples of which are reform
in the formats for financial reporting for national and provincial government,
and to move to a full accrual basis of accounting based on the standards set by
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB).

Macroeconomic policies

Government's macroeconomic policies aim to meet the challenges of South
Africa's social and economic development in the context of an increasingly
interdependent global environment. This includes deepening South Africa’s
financial markets, gradually liberalising exchange controls, improving financial
sector oversight and regulation, enhancing consumer protection and combating
money-laundering and terrorism financing. The National Treasury is actively
engaged in the development of the Southern African region through cooperation
with neighbouring South African Development Communities (SADC) countries
on issues such as taxation, promoting investment and economic integration
within the region.

Intergovernmental fiscal relations

The building of solid intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations system is
important for service delivery and efficiency in government spending. A major
area of progress and development is the National Treasury's relationship with
other spheres of government. New frameworks for the allocation of grants to
provinces and local government provide sharper definitions of the purpose and
intended outputs for each grant. This enhances transparency and is expected to
lead to further improvements in service delivery. The ongoing evolution of the
system of intergovernmental fiscal relations will be achieved at provincial and
local levels by rationalising grants to ensure that there are fewer, but better
administered, grants. With the turnaround in provincial infrastructure

(VEVRIRVEVEY]
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investment, the main focus over the medium term will be to use infrastructure
delivery to accomplish other government objectives. More specifically, the
priority will be to facilitate employment through labour-based and labour-
intensive projects. In addition, future initiatives will focus on institutionalising
good practices in relation to infrastructure planning, supply chain management
(procurement) and delivery.

At local government level, the priority will be to reinforce budget reform and
financial management. Building on the solid legal foundation that will have
been laid by the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), targeted
support will be provided to municipalities to improve their financial
management capacity and to strengthen the link between policy, planning and
budgets. These reforms have been piloted in selected municipalities and are
being rolled out countrywide over the medium term. This will ensure even
greater transparency in resource allocation and reporting, and will, over time,
further enhance accountability and service delivery.

Implementing the PFMA

The successful implementation of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)
since 2000 lays a solid foundation for the roll-out of the MFMA in 2004. The
MFMA, which seeks to introduce similar financial management reforms at
local government level, will be launched in all provinces in 2004. Both the
PFMA and the MFMA are key elements in transforming public sector financial
management and are important National Treasury objectives.

Over the next few years, the Treasury will be commissioning high-quality short
courses for all government officials to build the necessary capacity to
implement the Acts effectively. It is rolling out financial management systems,
which will ensure not only the transparency of expenditure, but also the
effective and efficient use of scarce resources to achieve social transformation.
These systems for enhancing the integrity and effectiveness of supply-chain and
expenditure management are part of PFMA implementation and have been
among National Treasury's most important reforms.

Appropriate tax policies

Reviewing the taxation of retirement savings, introducing a mining royalty tax,
considering tax measures to support investment and enhancing revenue-
estimation capacity form part of the development of appropriate tax policies for
the country.

The South African Revenue Service (SARS), a public entity reporting to the
Minister of Finance, has consistently exceeded its revenue targets and has been
highly efficient and effective in its revenue collection. It has introduced
electronic filing and payments, implemented a capital gains tax, changed
taxation from source-based to residence-based, and also developed a risk
management approach to compliance, with emphasis on measuring the tax gap
and identifying high-yield strategies.
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National Treasury

Managing public sector debt

Another priority for National Treasury is the prudent management of
Government's financial assets and liabilities, including the domestic and foreign
debt portfolios. Since 1999, the debt management strategy has evolved from
strategic debt management, where the primary focus was on access to capital
markets and the maintenance of a balanced maturity profile. The focus has
shifted to active debt management, where Government's borrowing requirement
is financed at the lowest possible cost within acceptable levels of risk. Strategies
are in place to meet Government's borrowing requirement over the medium
term. In addition, the Treasury is also improving its cash management
processes, enabling it to use surplus cash from the provinces. This strategy has
a positive impact on Government's cost of financing.
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EXPENDITURE

Personnel costs by programme, 2003/04

Programme

Administration

Economic
Plasning and
Budget
Management

Assel and
Liability
Management

Procurement
Managamernlk,
Financial
Systems and
PFMA

Financial
Arcounting
and Reporting

FProvincial and
Local
Government
Transfers

Civil and
Military
Pensians,
Contribulions
to Funids and
Other

Figcal
Tranzfers

Special
Funections

Total

Total
Expenditure
(R"Q00)

85,521

106 431

51,864

234 312

44,717

3,238.318

2,287.898

6,038,542

1,050

12,094,053

Pearsonal
Expenditure
{R'000}

35,678

58,249

13,824

20,192

3.947

132,000

Training
Expenditure

1,251

2,145

556

274

295

4,521

169

Professional
and Special
Services
{R'0D0)

28,741

21,815

24179

208,388

16,464

16,320

226107

LRSI RRLE:
BTN

Personal
Costas a %
of Total
Expenditure

40

85

27

Average Personnel
Cest per Empleyee
(R'O00)

205

254

268
240

197
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Personnel costs by salary bands, 2003/04

Salary Bands Personal % of Total Average Perscnnel HWumber of Employees
Expenditure Personnel Cost Cost per Employee
(R*000) (R'00%)
Lower skilled 260 0.20 43 g
{Levels 1-2}
Skilled 2985 226 &9 43
{Lavels 3-5)
Highly skilled 15474 11,72 120 129
praduction
{Levels 6-8}
Highly skilled 42,699 32.35 221 185
supervision
{Levels 8-12)
Senior and top 58 644 44 43 489 125
management

{Levels 13-18)

Taotal 120,062 90.96 0 488

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical aid by programme, 2003/04

Programme Salaries Overtime Home Owners Medical Aid
Allowance

% af % of % of % of
Amount Personnel Amount Personneal Amount Personnel Amount Personnel
(R'0O00) Costs of (RO  Costs of {R'G00)  Costs of (RO00) Costs of

Programme Frogramme Programmae Pragramme

Administration 21028 58.8 63 0.18 453 1.3 1.201 34

Economic
Planning and
Bugdget
Management

37,907 65.1 26 004 502 0.8 1632 28

Assel and
Liability 8256 66.4 a 0.00 148 1.1 453 33
Management

Procurement

Managernent,

Financial 13,734 68.0 0 0 351 1.7 732 36
Systems and

PFIA

Financial
Accounting 2458 62.3 { 0 g 0.2 93 2.4
and Reporting

FProvincial and
Local
Government
Transfers

Civil and
Military
Fensions,
Contributions
to Funds and
Other

Fiscal
Transfers 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0

Total 84,281 0 89 a 1,473 0 4,111 0

(VREROXVEVEY)
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Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical aid by salary bands, 2003/04

Frogramme Salaries
Amount
{R'000}

L killed

CWYET S 227

{Levels 1-2)

Skilleg

{Levels 3-5) 2,020

Highly skilled

praduction 10,900

(Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled

SUpEervisicn 32,037

{Levels 3-12)

Senior and fop

management 31,488

{Levels 13-16)

Total 76,672

% of
Personnel
Costs of
Programme
87
68
70
74
54
0

Overtime
Amount

(R*000)

10

56

22

89

&% of
FPersonne|
Costs of
Programme
]
]
b]
0]
]
0

Home Owners

Allowance

Amount
(R'O00)

16

g9

435

765

168

1,473

% of
Personnel
Costs of
Programme
3}
3
3
2
[
0

Medical Aid
% of
Amount Personng)
{(R'000} Costs of
Programme
26 4
169 B
858 6
1,456 3
14589 3
4 018 4]

The ampunts stated in the abgve table exciude salanes and benefils of the Minister, Deguty Minister and emplaoyees in agdiion Lo the estabhshment
The ancunts statad in the abave tables also axclude the severance package payments.

S8 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2004

Frogramme

Frogramme 1
Frogramme 2
Frogramme 3
Frogramme 4

Frogramme 5

Tatal

(YRS RVAVEVEYS

National Treasury

Number of Posts Number of Posts
filled
193 145
3z 194
80 S0
201 7a
64 20
859 488
172

Vacancy Rate %

Number of Posts filled

Additional to the
Establishment

25
40
38
61
69

43

33
35

78
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4 )
Filled positions as a percentage of total (488)
Programme 5
Programme 4 4% Programme 1
16¢ 308
Programme 3 ||
107
3
Programme 2
40%
- J

Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2004

Salary Band Number of Number of Vacancy Rate %  Number of Posts
Fosts Posts filled filled Additional to
the Establishment

Lower skilled
{Levels 1-2) U £ ik -
Skilled

74 43 42 11
(Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production 239 126 46 4d
(Levels G-B)
Highly skilled supervision
{Levels 9-12} 353 185 48 10
Senior managerment
(Levels 13-18) 186 125 33 12
Total 859 488 43 79

4 .- . I
Positions filled per salary band
Lowei Skilled SIuHF::i
Senior Management (Leveis 1-2) OIS )
(Levels 13-16) 1% o
26%
Highly Skillsed
Production
Highly Skilied (eEls 649
Supervision
(Levels 8-12)
\_

173
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4. JOB EVALUATION

Job evaluation, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Salary Band Number  Number % of Posts  Posts Upgraded Posts Downgraded
of Posis of Jobs Evaluated
Evaluated by Salary Number % of Number % of Posts
Bands Posts Evaluated
Evaluated

Lower skilled
{Levels 1-2) L 0 ¢ 0 0 0 g
Skilled
{Levels 35) T4 17 23 ¥ 4] b L
Highly skilled production

2 2 11 !
(Levels B-8) o s E . v
Highly skilled supervision

353 77 22 4 5 0 L1
{Levels 9-12)
Senior Management
Service Band A e 15 M 2 g 0 .
Senior Managemant
Service Band B &= L . Y g e g
Senior Management
Service Band C @ ! 1 2 . v g
Senior Management
Service Band D L ! 100 ¢ 0 0 0
Total 3459 180 21 12 16 ] LI

Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being
upgraded, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Beneficiaries African Asian Colgured  White Total

Female 1 0 1 1 3
Male 0 0 a 0 0
Total 1 0 1 1 3

Employees whose salary levels exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April
2003 to 31 March 2004 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Occupation NMumberof  Job Remuneration Reason for Daviation

Employees  Ewvaluation Level

Level

Chief Director 1 14 15  Retention
Deputy Director 14 11 12 Retentionfabsorption
Assistant Director > 9 10 Retentior/Absarption
Personal Assistant 1 7 2 RetentiorfAbsorption
Admin Officer 1 & 9 Retentionf/Absorption
Clerk 1 4 & Absorption

Total number of employees whose salaries excesded the level determined by job evaluation
in 2003104

(YRS RVAVEVEYS

National Treasury
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Profile of employees whose salary levels exceeded the grade determined by job
evaluation, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Femala 5 0 0 g 1
Male e 2 2 3 10
Total g 2 2 9 21

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Salary Band Number of Appointments  Terminations Turnover Rate
Employees per and Transfers and Transfers
Band as on into the out of the
1 April 2003 Department Department
Lower shilled G ] 3 -3
{Levals 1-2)
Skilled 43 16 & 8
{Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled preduction 129 24 28 -4
{Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision 185 30 29 1
{Levels 3-12)
Senior Management Service 84 19 13 6
Band A
Senior Management Service 23 3 3 0
Band B
Senior Management Service ¥ 1 3 -2
Band
Senior Management Service 1 g 1 -1
Band D
Total 488 93 88 b5

(VREROXVEVEY)
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Reasons for staff leaving the Department

(YRS RVAVEVEYS

National Treasury

Termination Type Number % aof Tatal
Death 1 1
Resignation 20 23
Expiry of contract 5 5]
Dismissal — operational changes O o
Disrmissal — misconduct 2 2
Dismissal - inefficiency 8] G
Discharged due to ill-health 1 1
Retirement 35 40
Transfers to other Public Service Departments 24 27
Cther O [
Total &8 100
Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 18
4 N
Percentage turnover rates
Ueath Resignation
] ) 1% 239
Iransters Lo other &Jd /v
Public Service
Departments Expiry of contract
27% 6%
/’:snnssal -
misconduct
\“*\ 2%
3
Retirement Discharged due to il
40% health
1%
\_ J
176



Promotions by salary band

i rteme
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Salary Band Employees  Promotions to  Salary Bands Pregressions to  Motch Progressions
1 April 2003  another Salary  Promoticns as a % another Netch as a % of Employees
Level of Employees by within a Salary hy Salary Band
Salary Level
Lower skilled
iLevels 1-2) 6 0 Y 3 el
Skilled
(Levels 3.5) 43 17 44 5 12
Highly skilled
production 129 29 29 36 28
iLevels 8-8)
Highly skilled
sSUpervision 185 19 21 25 14
{Levels 9-12)
Senicr
management 125 14 16 54 44
{Levels 13-18)
Total 488 T4 24 123 25
4 N\
Percentage of promotions per salary band
Senior managemenl
{Levels 13-16) {Levels 3-5)
Highly skilied
supervision {Levels
9.12) Highly skilled
24Y, production {Levels 6
8)
6%
- J

177
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6. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the
following occupational categories at 31 March 2004

Occupational Male Female Total
Categories

African Coloured Asian White African Ceoloured  Asian White
Leqgislators. seniar
officials and managers 30 12 15 L 10 2 3 13 127
Professionals 24 2 4 24 27 3 ] 27 111
Jeerileere and 21 3 3 15 18 2 3 34 99
associate professionals
Clerks g 5 0 4 42 9 1 34 103
Service and sales
workers g 1 0 o & 0 0 [ 16
Skilled agriculture and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
fishery workers
Cralt and related tfrades a 0 o o 0 0 0 0 0
workers
Flant and machine
cperatars and 5] 0 0 0 ¥ 1] b ¥ 6
assemblers
Elementary occupations 13 1 0 H 14 0 a 0 28
Total 111 24 22 80 117 16 Fi 113 490

* Mote: This total includes the Minister and Qeputy Minister.

4 N

Race distribution

White

"\ Black
Lo

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the
following occupational bands at 31 March 2004

Occupational Bands Male Female

African  Coloured Asian  White African Coloured Asian White Tolal

Top Management & 1 1 2 0 1 0 0 8
Senior Management 26 10 14 35 10 1 3 18 117
Professionally qualfied

et oy 24 2 6 27 a 0o 27 1
management

Skilled technical and
academically qualified
workers, junior
management,
supenvisors, foreman and
superintendents

29 5 1 16 41 4 2 50 148

Semi-skilled and
discreticnary decision 21 4 a 3 33 & 2 17 86
making

Lnskilled and defined
decision making

Total 110 23 22 &0 117 16 7 113 488

* Mote: This total cxcludes the Minister and Deputy Miniater

4 )

Gender distribution

Male

Female

L9y
V2 Y

(VREROXVEVEY)
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Recruitment for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Qccupational Male Female
Bands

African Coloured  Asian White African Coloured  Asian White Total
Top Management 1 4] 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Senior Management 0 0] 0 2 0 0 0] 1
Professionally
qualfied and
experienced & 1 5 2 2 0 1 3
specialists and mid-
management

Shilled technical and
academically
qualified workers,
junier managernent,
supervisars, fareman
and superintendents

10 1 3 2 & 1 o 4

Semi-skilled and
discreticnary 5 a 1] 0 13 1 4] 5
decision making

Unskilled and

defined decision 3] ] 0 0 7 1 ] 0
making

Total 29 2 a 6 31 3 1 13
Employees with

disabilities 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 o

4 )

Recruitment of race

White
20%

Coloured
5%

Asian
-
10% African

6 5 l!':'!IJ

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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Promotions for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Cegupational Male Female
Bands
African Coloured  Asian White African Cocloured  Asian White Total

Top Management 3 1 a a a 0 0 0 4
Senior Management 1 1 a a 0 0 0 1] 2

Professicnally

qualfied and

experienced 1 1 0 2z 2 1 0 1 8
specialists and mid-

ranagament

Skilled technical and
academically
qualified warkers,
junior management,
supernvisars, forerman
and supenntendents

Semi-skilled and
dizcretionary 3 1 0 (b 11 3 0 5 29
decision making

Unskilled and

defined decision & 1 ! ol 10 0 0 0 17
making

Total 22 5 0 7 20 6 0 10 79

Terminations for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Occupational Mala Female
Bands
African Coloured  Asian White African Coloured Asian White Total

Top Management 2 a 1 a n a 0 1 4
Senior Management 1 a a a 2 a ] 0 3

Professionally

qualified and

experienced 4 a 1 4 1 1 1 1 13
specialists and mid-

management

Skilled technical and
academically
qualified workers,
junior management,
supervisors, foreman
and superintendents

Semi-skilled and
discretionary 5} 2 0] 5 2 ] 4] 13 28
decision making

LInskilled and
defined decision 2 0 { ] g d ] 3 11
making

Total 21 3 2 17 13 1 2 27 &8

(VREROXVEVEY)
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Terminations

Top
Management
Unskilled and 5%

defined decision
making
13%

Senior Management

%%

Professionally
qualified and
experienced

specialists and mid-
management
Semi-skilled and 15%
discretionary
decision making

g Skilled technical and

qualined workers,
32%

Skills development for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Occupatianal
Categories

Legislators. senior
officials and
managers

Frofessionals

Technicians and
associate
professionals

Clerks

Service and sales
warkers

Skilled agriculture
and fishery workers

Crakt and related
trades workers

Plant and machine
operators and
assemblers

Elementary
occupations

Total

Male Female
African  Coloured  Asian White African Coloured  Asian
31 8 5 13 21 5
8 2 1 7 13 2
1" 3 a 3 23 3
11 4 0 5 39 2
¥ 0 ) ) 0 ¥
¥ vl { ) 0 0
G a a a a 0
o Q0 0 0 0 ¥
¥ 0 0 ) g 0
61 17 & 28 96 12

Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Disciplinary action

(YRS RVAVEVEYS

National Treasury

Male Female

African Coloured  Asian White African Coloured Asian

4 1 a 2 1 0

182

White

34

18

17

25

94

White

Total

118

51

61

&S

320

Total
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PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of Total Number of % of Total within ~ Cost [R'000) Average Cost per

Beneficiaries Employees in Group Employee

Group

African 74 227 33 1,378,708.65 18,621.20
Male 32 1o 30 795,382.45 24,856.01
Female 47 117 36 583,216.20 13.388 48
Asian 13 29 44 359,335.78 27.541.21
Male 10 22 45 302.285.60 30.228.56
Female 3 7 43 57.050.18 19,018.72
Coloured 21 39 54 46523518 £2,154.06
Male 10 23 43 250,271 .44 2502714
Female 11 16 89 21496374 19.542 .15
White a7 193 50 2,225,844 .49 22,988.09
Male d4 8¢ 56 1.247,937.43 28.362.21
Female 53 13 47 821,907.06 18.526 54
Total 203 488 42% 4,433.124.10 179,447.81

Performance Rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service,
1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Salary Bands Beneficiary Frofile Cost
Nummber of Number of % of Total Total Cost Average Total Cost as a
Beneficiaries Employees within Salary (R'000) Cost per % of the Total
Bands Employee Personnel
Expenditure
Lower skilled 7 6 116 39.935.70 5.705.10 0.03
{Levels 1-2}
Skilled
iLevels 3-5) 17 43 39 127.608.06 1.506 35 0.10
Highly skilled
production 62 129 48 763.957.89 12,321.80 0.58
iLevels &-8)
Highly skilled
SUPEryision 39 185 21 852.040.02 21847 .18 0.64

{Levels 9-12}
Total 125 363 34 1,783,541.67 14,268.33 1.25

(VREROXVEVEY)
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Performance-related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for Senior Management Service,
1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Salaty Beneaficiary Profile Total Cost Average Cost per Total Cost as a % of the
Band {R'000) Employee Total Fersennel
Expenditure

Numbar of Numbar of % of Total

Beneficiaries Employees within Band
Band & 47 94 S 1.349.206.70 28.706.53 1.02
Band B 28 23 122 1.059,646.13 37,844 50 8.80
Band C = K 7 240,720,680 4814592 0.18
Band [ 0 1 0] G 0 0
Taotal a0 125 64 2,649 582.43 33,119.78 2.0
8. FOREIGN WORKERS

Foreign workers by salary band, 1 April 2002 to 31 March 2003

Salary Band 1 April 2003 31 March 2004 Change
Mumber % of Total Number % of Total MNumber % Change

Lower skilled 0 1] a a a a
{Levels 1-2}

Skilled D 0 a 0} 0 0}
{Levels 3-5)

Highly skilled productien 2 25 1 14 1 100
{Levels 68-8}

Highly skilled supervision 3 375 3 43 a a
{Levels 8-12)

Senior management 3 7.5 3 43 0 ]
{Levels 13-16)

Total B 100 7 100 1 100

Foreign workers by major occupation, 1 April 2002 to 31 March 2003

Major Occupaticn 1 April 2602 31 March 2003 Change

Number % of Total Number % of Total Humber % Change
Chief Director 2 33 2 33 0 a
Director 1 17 1 17 0 a
Deputy Director g 50 3 50 ] a
Taotal G 100 G 100 V] a

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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LEAVE UTILISATION FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY 2003 TO 31 DECEMBER 2003

Sick leave, 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003

Salary Band Total Days % Days with  HNumber of % of Total Average Estimated Cost
Medical Employees  Employees  Days per (R'00D)
Certification using Sick using Sick Employee
Leave L eave
Lower skilled
{Levels 1-2) &4 8.6 H 2.1 10 g
Skilled
{Levels 3-5) 236 87.3 32 9.8 Fi 41
Highly skilled
production 532 773 82 252 & 176
{Levels 6-8)
Highly sklled
supervision &§78 73.2 136 41.7 & 574

(Levels 9-12)

Senicr managenernt
{Levels 13-16G)

Total 2,045 53.06 326 100 7 1,341

330 73.9 &9 21.2 3 541

Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003

Salary Band Total Days % Days with  Number of % of Total Average Estimated Cost
taken medical Employses Employees Days per {R'000)
Certification  uvsing using Employee

Disability Disability

Leave Leave
Lower skilled
{Levels 1-2) 17 100 3 7.8 & Z2
Skilled
{Levels 3-5) 73 100 4 10.5 18 14
Highly skilled production
{Levels 6-8) 395 99,7 17 447 23 155
Highly skilled
SUpErYISion 167 g7 6 12 s i4 110

{Levels 9-12)

Senicr management
{Levels 13-16)

Total £69 99.5 38 100 14 308

17 100 2 5.3 9 27

(VREROXVEVEY)
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Annual leave, 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003

Salary Bands

Lower skilled
{Levels 1-2)

Skilled
(Levels 3-5)

Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision
[Levels 9-12)

Senior managerment
(Levels 131G}

Total

Total Days taken

198

785

2,659

4,026

2,512

10,190

Average per Employee

- ™

Average vacation days taken per

employee
Levels 13-16 Levels 1-2
=20
Levels ‘9-1? Levels 6-8
19 - 7
Levels 6-8
=19

\_ J

Capped leave,

Salary Bands Tetal Days of Capped
Leave taken

Lower skilled 1
{Levels 1-2}
Skilled

23
{Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production 57
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision 141
{Levels 9-12)
Senigr management 19
{Levels 13-16)
Tatal 251

' 186

National Treasury

1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003

Average Number of

Days taken per
Employee

Average Capped Leave per

20

17

19

19

18

19

Employes as at 31 December

2003

1.8

0.8

0.8

0.2

44

13

35

3

43

i1

39
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Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Reason Total Amaunt {R'000) Number of Average Payment per
Employees Employee (R’000}

Leave payout for 2003/04 due to
non-utiisation of leave for the od 8 &
previous cycle

Capped leave payoul on

termination of service far 1,085 a 35
200304

Current leave payouts on

termination of service far 393 61 a2
2003/04

Total 1,552 100 0

10. HIV/AIDS AND HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES
Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Unitsicategeries of employees identified to be at high  Key steps taken to reduce the risk
risk of contracting HIV & related diseases {if any)

None

Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes

Question Yes No Details, if yes
1. Has the Department designated a member of the SMS X Director: Strategic Support and Transformation
to implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of {M. Tema)

Chapter 1 of the Public Serace Regulabions, 20017 1f so.
provide her/his narne and position.

2. Does the Department have 3 dedicated unit or has it X One employee
designated specific staff members to promete the health R140.239 83
and well-being of your employees? If so. indicate the

number of employees who are involved in this task and

the annual budget that is available for this purpose.

3 Haz the Department introduced an Employee X - Professional counseling
Aszistance or Health Promotion Programme for your _ Awareness
employees? If so, indicate the key elementsfservices of programmes

his, P _
this Frogramme - Workshop and training on wellness and

HIV/AIDS-related issues
- Sport activities
4. Has the Depariment established {a} committee(s) as X Corporatz Services
contemplaled in Part VI E.5 {e] of Chapter 1 of the Public Tshithiwa Mamaila
Service Regulalions. 20017 If so, please provide the

names of the members of the committee and the R_ebeuf:a Madiba
stakeholder{s) that they represent. Lindani Mbunyuza

Asset and Liability Management
Martha Ntho

Bridget Laka

Given Chadi

Susan Kumba

(VEVEVEVEY LY

s Annual Report 2003/2004



(YRS RVAVEVEYS

National Treasury

rrrerieremt
W

Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (continued)

Quastion

5. Has the Departmant reviewed its smployment policies
and practices to ensurg that these do not unfairly
diseriminate against employees on the basis of their HIY
status? If so, list the employment policies/practices so
reviewed.

§. Has the Department introduced measures to protect
HiV-positive employees or those perceived to be HIWV-
positive fram discrimination? |f sa, list the key elements of
these measures.

7. Does the Department encourage its employess to
undergo Voluntary Counseling and Testing? If so, list the
results that you have achiaved.

8. Has the Departmarnt developed meaasuresiindicators to

monitor & evaluate the impact of its health promation
programme? If so, list these measures/indigators.

188

Yes

No

Datails, if yes

Budget Office
Elizabeth Modikwe
Thabisile Sheazi

Ecanomic Policy and Int Fin Relations
Zanzle Dilika

Firancial Intelligence Centre
Lingdi Msane
Fikile Zitha

Intergovernmental Relations
Martornibi Mntushe
Piet Sebola

Ministry

Daorcas Sedumedi
Specialist Functions
Logan Mocdley

Innocentia Machaba
Nkhangweni Mananga

Public Servants Association
Hein Momberg

HIWVIAIDS policy exists in a draft format, It is at
the final stage of consultation with the unicns

Mon-discrimination and disciplinary measures
are entailed in the draft HV/AIDS policy

An Employee Assistance Frogramme is
available for counseling purposes. No
employees have disclosed their HIV status

Measurable chjects developed for 2004
amuyards
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LABOUR RELATIONS
Collective agreements, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Subject Matter Date
N{A

Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Qutcomes of Disciplinary Hearings Number % of Total
Correctional counselling 0 0
Werbal warning o 0
Wiritten warning 9] 0
Final written warning 0 0
Suspended without pay Q 0
Fine a 0
Demation 1 16
Dismissal 4 68
Not guilty 1 16
Case withdrawn ] ]
Total 6 100
If there were no disciplinary hearings, then use the following table
Disciplinary hearings — Z003/04 Hone
Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Number % of Total
Number of grievances resolved 2 2
Mumber of grievances not resolved a o
Total number of grievances lodged 2 2
Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Number % of Total
Mumber of disputes upheld a 0
Number of disputes dismissed 2 2
Total number of disputes lodged 2 2

Strike actions for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Total number of person working days |ost M/A
Tatal cost {R'000) of working days lost

Ampunt (R'000) recovered as a result of na work no pay
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12.

Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Mumber of pecple suspended

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days

Average number of days suspended

Cost {R°'000) of suspensions

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Training needs identified, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Geeupational Categorias

Legislators. senior officials and managers

Professionals

Technicians and associate professionals

Clerks

Service and sales workers

Skilled agricuiture and fishery workers

Craft and related trades workers

Plant and machine operators and assemblers

Elementary cccupations

Sublatal

Total

*This includes the Minister and Deputy Minister of Finance

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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Gender

Female

Male

Female

iale

Female

tale

Female

Male

Female

kala

Female

Male

Female

iale

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

kala

190

Number of
Employees
as at 31

March

2004

33

94

57

54

57

42

23]

253

237

490*

Nisy
25

Training Meeds identified at start of

Reporting Period

Learnerships

17

25

Skills Programmes &
other Short Courses

23
107
14
19
15
11
27

20

By

173

260



Training provided, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Qccupational
Categories

Legislators. senior
officials and
managers

Professionals

Technicians and
associate
professionals

Clerks

Service and sales
workers

Ekilled agriculture
and fishery workers

Craft and relatad
trades workers

Flant and machine
operatars and
assemblers

Elementary

occupations

Subtatal

Total

Gender

Female

hMale

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

IMala

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Mala

Female

Male

Famale

Male

Number of
Employees as
at 31 March
2004

e
94

57
54

a7
42

&6
17

14
14

253
237

490*

“This includes fhe Mimnster and Depusy Binister o' Finance

PO E 4 e e

W

Training Provided within the Reparting Fariod

Learnerships

191

16

24

Skills
Fragrammes

& other Short
Courseas

52
47

32
17

39
14

48
10

171
=]

259

Other Total
Forms of
Training
10 62
10 57
1 33
1 18
5 44
3 17
] 69
2 20
0 ¥
0 0
0 ¥
0 [
0 0
0 ¥
0 0
0 L&)
0 ¥
0 0
21 208
15 112
37 320
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4 )
Employees trained
Clerks Legislatars, senior
28% afficials and
E g managers
lecnnicians ana '
dssociate _,/ Professionals
professionals 169
- J
13. INJURED ON DUTY
Injured on duty, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
Nature of Injury on Duty Number % of Total
Required basic medical attention only 3 100
Temporary Total Disablemernt 0 0
Permanent Disablement 0 0
Fatal 0 o
Total 3 100
14. UTILISATION OF CONSULTANTS
Project Title Total Number of Duration: Contract Value
Consultants that Woark in Rand
worked on the Project  payg
Maintenance of BAS System 30 365 14,307,081
Dev of LOGIS System 54 365 51.875.857
IT consultants 15 365 855,801
Development of PERSAL Systern 78 65 64,207 065
Language editing of the 2003 Intergavernmental Review 1 &0 86,000
Advise un the budget process and procedure to amend 75,000
. 1 60
Money Bills
Review the financial regulatory Framewark for Public entities 1 65 747,000
Technical assistance GCIS in their assistance to GCIS in 3 165 175,200
their Enterprise Project Management Initiative
Policy and research support to the Local Government Chief 1 165 210,000

Directorate

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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Project Title Total Number of Duration: Contract Value
Consultants that Work in Rand
worked on the Project  payg
Drafting of Municipal Finance Management Bill 1 385 103,000
Professional services rendered 4 365 474 612
Development of Systems 5 365 4.111,939
Development of Systems B 365 164,673
Development of Systems 9 365 400,140
Provision of Project Management Services to the Accountant 8 65 170,384
General's Office,
Assistance with the re-formulation of the equitable share 1 185 108,000
farmula
Office Dasigner and Space Planner 1 365 81,788
IT Helpdesk 23 363 2,786,088
Development of systems {IFMS) 6 Clans 240,996
Development of systems (IFMS) ] 385 2701 309
Development of systems (IFMS) 4 265 2723440
Development of systemns (IFMS) ] 363 482 765
Rendering of services of an edit team, under the
management of a single edit leader, tc take responsiility for
ensuring the efficient, quality production of the manual £ ez it Ll
between June and November 2003
Proposal for provision of tax advisory to Public Private q 182 664 620
Partnership Unit '
Rendering of Security Services at 240 Vermeulen Street and
40 Church Square in Pretaria for a pericd of three years 26 365 1.328.481
The review of Governance Framework of Non- Business 1 185 1.300.000
Public entiies and Government Business Enterorises B
operating on a National Basis. with reference to: Managing
the data gathering project.
The review of Governance Framework of Mon- Business
Public entities and Govemment Business Enterprises 6 044 551 998
operating on a Mational Basis. with reference ta: Review the !
evaluation of the existing classification framewark
Appointment of consuitants 1o assist in the implementation of 4 265 490,588

the Local Restructuring Grant

Appointment of a consultant to assist the National Treasury in
the development of a strategic soursing strategy and generic 4 365 5.000,000
sourcing precess for government

Appointment of Project Leaders for the four projacts in Phase

2: The Review of Governance Framework of Non-Business

Public entities and Government Business enterprizes 5 a0 1,659,420
operating on a National basis: Corporate governance Review

Appuintment of Project Leaders for the four projects in Fhase
2: The Review of Gavernance Framework of Non-Business
Public entities and Govermment Business enterprises
cperating on @ National basis; Corporate Status Review

& g0 789 800
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Project Title

Appointment of Project Leaders for the four projects in Phase
2. The Review of Governance Framework of Non-Business
Public entities and Gaverament Business enterprises
operating on a National basis: Legislative Review

Appointment of Project Leaders for the four projects in Phase
2: The Review of Governance Framework of Non-Business
Public entities and Government Business enterprises
operating on a Nalional basis: Performance Management

Appointment of a marketing agency to assist with the design
of the media plan relating to the launch of RSA fixed retail

bond

Provision of Technical Assistance Semnvices from 1he
Technical Aszistance Unit to the Nalional Department of
Health for the transfer of Medico legal services from the
South Affican Police Service {SAPS) to provincial Health
Departments.

Government Communications and Information Service
1GCIS)

Kimberley Hospital Complex

Public Entities

Tshwane Homelessness Project
Development Iniliatives

Working for Water

Primary School Mutrilion Programme [PSNP}
SAPS DNA Project

Toalkit for CIDE & Mortuaries Projects

Foundation for Human Righls

Financial Management of the Project Development Facility
Review of Tax Palicy on PPPs

PPP Standardisation document

PPP Guidelines
BEE
Feasihility
Project Finance
Contract Management
Feasibility
Procurement
Whole Documert
Editing

Rantal Housing (W20}

194

Total Number of
Consultants that
worked on the Project

U T Y

M — = a3 3L

Duration:

Work
Days

g0

20

120

182

55

160
559

g0
420
330
286
100

g0

0
120
44
47

100
4.5

25

11.25

120
36.4

Contract Value
in Rand

561,056

80.000

2,300,000

748000

141,800

G83.750
2,944 500
165,500
879,500
383.000
582 000
64,000
293,000

35,000
171.000
564,620

1,466 366

105,000
32,000
35,000

785,000
15,000
15,000
40,000

558,828

109,200
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Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically

Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)

Project Title

Maintenance of Financial Systerms {PESAL and Vulindlela)
Maintenance of Financial Systems (LOGIS)

Maintenance of Financial Systems [BAS and FMS)

Cffice destgner and space planner

IT consuitants

Dev of FERSAL System

Language editing of the 2003 Intergovernmental Review

Advise on the budget process and procedure to amend
Money Bills

Review the financial regulatery Framework for Pubhe entities

Technical assislance GCIS in their assistance to GCIS in
their Enterprise Project managemenl [nitiative

Policy and research support to the Local Government Chief
Directorate

Drafting of Municipal Finance Management Eill
Professional services rendered
Dewvelopment of Systems

Government Communication and Information Services

{GCIS)

Kimherley Hospital Project

Fublic Entities

Develapmeant Initiatives

Working for Water

FENP

Toolkit for CIDB ang Mortuaries Project

Financial Management of the Project Development Facility
Review of Tax Policy on PPPs

FFP Standardisation document
- Drake & Scull

- Turner & Townsend

- \White & Case

-  Plake

Rental Housing

FPF Guidelines
- Aloecap
- BSG

195

Percentage
Ownership by HDI
Groups

51
3z
33
100
20
51
100

100
100

15

100

100
20

50

100
100

100

56
12

100
100

Percentage Number of

Management  Consuitants

by HDI Groups from HOI
Groups that

work on the
Project

14 37
12 35
0 103
100 2
10 1]
Z0 1
100 1
100 1
100 1
1] 1
100 1
(¥ 1)
100 &
20 2
100 1
0 1
100 1
100 1
1] 1
100 1
0 1
62 1
23 &
0 4]
a5 1
50 2
1] ]

o] ]
100 2
100 1
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Project Title Percentage
Ownership by HDI
Groups

Percentage
Management
by HDI Groups

- Fitzroy Ambursely 0] 0]
- Ignis 4 ]
- Turner & Townsend 25 19
- P Abom 0] a
- 5 Galloway g} o
- STE 100 100
Report on consultant appointments using donor funds
Projact Title Total Number  Duration: Work

of Consultants Days

that worked

on the Project
Parliamentary Millennium Project 1 19
Financial Management Improvemnent Plan {FRIF) 1 5]
Commission far Gender Equality 1 2
Social Housing Foundation 5 39
Parliamant 2 29
CPFSP 4 110
PSNP Eastern Cape 4 133
Working on Water 3 62
Assistance to the TAU 1 25
NTSIKA 1 é7
Greater Tzaneen Municipality and LED Limpopa 1 15
Department of Haalth, North Wast and Northern Cape & 120
Department of Education, Eastern Cape 1 35
FPRAG (ELl's Practical Guide on Procurement} 1 10
Department of Social Development. FMIP and Tshwane 1 27
Homelessness Project
HIVIAIDS 3 59
GCIS 1 1"
Various 2 31
SAPS DNA 2 4
FENF Nalichal 3 44
IDCSP (Lang-term Contract) — (EU Funds) 3 713
IDCSP (Technical Assistants) — (UNDF Funds) 2 522
IDCSP (Short-term Contracts) = (EU Funds) 3 435
Technical Assistance from PUK 2 25
USAID — Technical Assistance from AID Conlractors 3 756

(YRS RVAVEVEYS
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Number of
Consujtants
from HCH
Groups that
work on the
Project

P~ == I = B

Danor and
Contract Value
in Rand

13,600
2,750
7500

192100

30,400
285,050
226,100
142,400

79,200

94,000

40,000

234 100
107,400
35,000

46,400

157,500
42,000
77,800
98,000

112,000

808,120

1.193.588
192 682
580,000

2,030,500
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Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds, in terms of historically
disadvantaged individuals (HDIs)

Frojet Title Percentage Ownership by HDl  Percentage Number of
Groups Management by  Consultants
HDI Groups from HDI
Groups that
work on the
Project
Farliament 100 100 1
FhilP 100 100 1
Soeial Housing Foundation 100 100 1
Parliament 25 25 3
CPFSP 25 25 3
Working for Water 100 100 2
Social Housing Foundation 100 100 2
NTSIKA 100 100 1
Greater Tzaneen Municipality and LED Limpopo 100 100 1

Department of Social Development, FMIF and

Tshwane Homelessness Project L el !
HIviAIDS 100 100 3
Various 100 100 1
PSHF 100 100 2
Departiment of Health, Northern Cape a a 1
Department of Health International health Liaison 100 100 2
IDCSP 0 a &
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Annexure 1:

ACCC
ADB
ADF
AFIS
APRM
ASB
AU
BAS
BIS
CFTC
CGE
CISNA
CcMU
CMA
CPD
DBSA
DCIS
DOC
DPE
DPSA
ED

EU
FATF
FFC
FIC
FMS
FOSAD
FSB
G20
G24
GAMAP
GCC
GCIS
GDS
GEPF
GFECRA
GRAP
HDI
HEDCOM
HIPC
HSRC
IAS

ANNEXURES

Abbreviations

Anti-Corruption Coordinating Committee
African Development Bank

African Development Fund

Automated Fingerprint Identification System
African Peer Review Mechanism

Accounting Standards Board

African Union

Basic Accounting System

Bank for International Settlements
Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation
Compatable General Equilibrium

Securities and Non-banking Financial Authorities
Contract Management Unit

Common Monetary Area

Corporation for Public Deposits

Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Corporation Information System
Department of Communications

Department of Public Enterprises

Department of Public Service and Administration
Exposure Drafts

European Union

Financial Action Task Force

Financial and Fiscal Commission

Financial Intelligence Centre

Financial Management System

Forum of SA Directors-General

Financial Services Board

Group of Twenty Countries

Group of Twenty-Four Countries

Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices

Guarantee Certification Committee

Government Communications and Information System

Growth and Development Summit
Government Employee Pension Fund

Gold and Foreign Exchange Contingency Reserve Account

Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
Historically Disadvantaged Individual
Heads of Education Departments Committee
Highly Indebted Poor Countries

Human Sciences Research Council
International Accounting Standards
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IDC
IFAC
IFMS
13S

ILP
IMF
IMFC
10SCO
IPFA
IPSAS
ISDA
LRAD
MFI
MFMA
MFMTAP
MOU
MSP
MTEF
NCOP
NEDLAC
NEPAD
NIA
NOFP
NPA
OAG
PIC
PFAI
PFMA
PPP
PPPFA
RDP
RISDP
RMF
SACU
SADC
SAFCOL
SAPS
SAPO
SARB
SARS
SASRIA
SCM
SCOA
SETA

rirarerTt
BTN

International Development Cooperation
International Federation of Accountants
Integrated Financial Management Systems
Integrated Justice Sector

Inflation linked bond

International Monetary Fund

International Monetary and Financial Committee
International Organization of Securities Commissions
Institute for Public Finance and Auditing
International Public Sector Accounting Standards
International Swaps and Derivatives Association
Land Reform for Agricultural Development
Micro-Finance Intermediaries

Municipal Financial Management Act

Municipal Finance Management Technical Assistance Project
Memorandum of Understanding

Master Systems Plan

Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

National Council of Provinces

National Economic Development and Labour Council
New Partnership for Africa's Development
National Intelligence Agency

Net Open Forward Position

National Ports Authority

Office of the Auditor-General

Public Investment Commissioners

Provident Fund for Associated Institutions
Public Finance Management Act

Public-Private Partnerships

Preferential Procurement Policy Act
Reconstruction and Development Programme
Regional Indicative Strategic Development Plan
Risk Management Framework

Southern African Customs Union

Southern African Development Community

SA Forestry Company Limited

South African Police Services

South African Post Office

South African Reserve Bank

South African Revenue Service

South African Special Risks Insurance Association
Supply Chain Management

Standard Chart of Accounts

Sector Education and Training Authority

199
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SITA
SCOPA
SMMEs
SOEs
STRIPS
WTO

State Information Technology Agency

Standing Committee on Public Accounts

Small, Medium and Micro-Enterprises

State-owned Enterprises

Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal Securities
World Trade Organisation

200
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Annexure 2: Institutions associated with the National Treasury

The National Treasury works closely with a number of public institutions. They have
operational and institutional independence and, in some instances, constitutionally-
guaranteed autonomy. They produce their own annual reports.

Accounting Standards Board

Section 87 of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)
Coin Liabilities

SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

Corporation for Public Deposits

Corporation for Public Deposits Act (46 of 1984)
Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997)
Financial and Fiscal Commission

Financial and Fiscal Commission Act (99 0f1997)
Financial Services Board

Financial Services Board Act (97 of 1990)

The following report to it:

Pension Fund

Financial Markets Advisory Board

Pension Funds Advisory Board

Financial Intelligence Centre

Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001)
Independent Development Trust

Public Accounts and Auditors Board

Policy Board for Financial Services Regulation
Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation Act (141 of 1993)
Public Investment Commissioners

Public Commissioners Investment Act (45 of 1984)
Registrar of Banks

Reports to SA Reserve Bank

SA Banknote Company

SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

SA Mint Company

SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

South African Reserve Bank

SA Reserve Bank Act (90 of 1989)

South African Revenue Services

SA Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997)
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South African Special Risk Insurance Association (SASRIA)
Special Pensions Board

Special Pension Advisory Board

State Tender Board

Statistical Council

Statistics Act (66 of 1976)

Tax Advisory Committee

Tax (Katz) Commission

Unit Trusts Advisory

Advisory Committee on short-term insurance
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